WOODBURY COUNTY
BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT

Monday, October 7, 2024 at 6:00 PM

The Woodbury County Board of Adjustment will hold a public meeting on Monday, October 7, 2024 at 6:00 PM
in the Board of Supervisors’ meeting room in the Basement of the Woodbury County Courthouse, 620 Douglas
Street, Sioux City, IA. Please use the 7™ St. entrance. Public access to the conversation of the meeting will also
be made available during the meeting by telephone. Persons wanting to participate in the public meeting may
attend in person or call: (712) 454-1133 and enter the Conference ID: 742 346 123# during the meeting to listen
or comment. It is recommended to attend in person as there is the possibility for technical difficulties with phone
and computer systems.

AGENDA

CALL TO ORDER

ROLL CALL

PUBLIC COMMENT ON MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA
APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS MEETING MINUTES

ITEM(S) OF ACTION / BUSINESS

» | PUBLIC HEARING: CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT APPLICATION (ACTION ITEM): FOR THE
INSTALLATION AND USE OF THREE 100’ WIND TURBINES (PARCEL #884420300005).
SUMMARY: Consideration of the Conditional Use Permit application by L & K Tabke Holdings, LLC (Kathy Tabke)
for the installation and use of three (3) 100" wind turbines to reduce the electrical costs on the farm. The property is
designated as Parcel #884420300005 and is located in T88N R44W (Wolf Creek Township) in Section 20 in the N %2
of the SW 4. The proposed location is about 5.2 miles southeast of Moville, IA which is on the south side of 195th
Street and east of Jasper Avenue. The property is located in the Agricultural Preservation (AP) Zoning District and
“Electric wind generator (Private use)” is classified as a “conditional use” in Section 3.03.4 of the Woodbury County
Zoning Ordinance. Applicant(s)/Owner(s): L & K Tabke Holdings, LLC (Kathy Tabke), 3112 195th St., Moville, IA
51039.

a (B W=

» | PUBLIC HEARING: CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT APPLICATION (ACTION ITEM): FOR THE
INSTALLATION AND USE OF A 250’ SELF-SUPPORT WIRELESS COMMUNICATIONS
TOWER TO REPLACE AN EXISTING TOWER (PARCEL #874720400004). SUMMARY:
Consideration of the Conditional Use Permit application by Andrew Bobrytzke on behalf of American Tower LLC and
the Bradley J. Kobold Trust who have filed the conditional use permit application to request to construct a 250’ self-
support wireless communications tower to replace an existing tower from the area. The property is designated as
Parcel #374720400004 in T87N R47W (Liberty Township) in Section 20 in the SE V4 of the SE 4. The proposed
location is about one (1) half mile west of the Salix, IA which is on the north side of 260th Street and west of Barker
Avenue. The property is located in the General Industrial (GI) Zoning District and “Telecommunication towers” are
classified as a “conditional use” in Section 3.03.4 of the Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance. Applicant(s)/Owner(s):
Andrew Bobrytzke on behalf of American Tower LLC, 10 Presidential Way, Woburn, MA 01801 / Bradley J. Kobold
Trust, 211 7th Street, Sergeant Bluff, A 51054.

» | INFORMATION ITEM: CONSIDERATION OF A RECOMMENDATION CONTEMPLATING
DECOMMISSIONING REQUIREMENTS AS PART OF A NEW ORDINANCE REGARDING
CARBON PIPELINES. SUMMARY: The Woodbury County Board of Supervisors at their meeting on August
27, 2024 voted to direct the Planning and Zoning Director to work with Planning and Zoning, the Board of
Adjustment, and Legal Counsel in order to make a recommendation contemplating decommissioning requirements
as part of a new ordinance regarding carbon pipelines.




»

INFORMATION ITEM: POTENTIAL PERMITTING OF NUCLEAR ENERGY FACILITIES TO
BE INCLUDED AS PART OF THE WOODBURY COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE.
SUMMARY: Consideration the addition of Nuclear Energy Facilities as a land use option in the Woodbury County
Zoning Ordinance. The hearing will include topics of how to approach the permitting of nuclear energy facilities.
Possible options include to amend the Land Use Summary Table of Allowed Uses (Section 3.03.4) by adding
Nuclear Energy Facilities as a permitted allowed use or a conditional use in all or select the county zoning districts.
Amendments may also be discussed pertaining to the addition of new sections pertaining to nuclear energy facilities,
definitions, the renumbering, and reorganization of content within the zoning ordinance.

PUBLIC COMMENT ON MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA

STAFF UPDATE

BOARD MEMBER COMMENT OR INQUIRY

© (0 N O

ADJOURN




PACKET CONTENTS

PREVIOUS MEETING MINUTES

CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT APPLICATION (ACTION ITEM): FOR THE
INSTALLATION AND USE OF THREE 100" WIND TURBINES (PARCEL
#884420300005).

19

CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT APPLICATION (ACTION ITEM): FOR THE
INSTALLATION AND USE OF A 250’ SELF-SUPPORT WIRELESS
COMMUNICATIONS TOWER TO REPLACE AN EXISTING TOWER (PARCEL
#874720400004).

85

INFORMATION ITEM: CONSIDERATION OF A RECOMMENDATION
CONTEMPLATING DECOMMISSIONING REQUIREMENTS AS PART OF A NEW
ORDINANCE REGARDING CARBON PIPELINES.

146

INFORMATION ITEM: POTENTIAL PERMITTING OF NUCLEAR ENERGY
FACILITIES TO BE INCLUDED AS PART OF THE WOODBURY COUNTY
ZONING ORDINANCE.

148




Minutes - Woodbury County Board of Adjustment Special Meeting — September 4, 2024

The Board of Adjustment meeting convened on the 4th of September 2024 at 6:00 PM in the Board of
Supervisors’ meeting room in the Basement of the Woodbury County Courthouse. The meeting was also
made available for public access via teleconference.

Meeting Audio:
For specific content of this meeting, refer to the recorded video on the Woodbury County Board of
Adjustment “Committee Page” on the Woodbury County website:
- County Website Link:
o https://lwww.woodburycountyiowa.gov/committees/board_of_adjustment/
- YouTube Direct Link:
o https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=hge9GmQB2WA

A YouTube generated “unofficial” transcript can be accessed on a PC:
. Open YouTube by visiting the referenced website above.
e  Click the three dots (---More) below the video title.
e  Select “Show Transcript” from the menu to view the transcript.
o  The transcript will appear on the right of the screen.

BA Members Present: Daniel Hair, Doyle Turner, Pam Clark, Tom Thiesen, Ashley
Christensen

County Staff Present: Dan Priestley, Dawn Norton

Public Present: William Gary Wilcox, Venita Wilcox, Kathy Bernard, Larry Fixsel,

Judy Fixsel, Ron Fixsel, Bruce Sadler, Shelly McCoy Sadler, Karen
Heidman, Rex Rundquist, Maria Rundquist, Austin Wilcox, Braden
Wilcox, Bob Fritzmeier, Heather Dixon, Heather Dixon, Braden
Wilcox, Gayle Palmquist, Patricia Barth, Rosanne Plante, John
Herrig, Tony Ashley, Jordan German, Madonna Nitzke, Tina
Manker, Greg Manker, Deb Main, Eric Wissing, Alan McGaffin,
Terry McGaffin, Jeremy Lane, Linda Waugh, Terry Waugh, Ty
Roberson, Gabriel Diaz, Jared Barnes, Lexi McKee-Hemenway,
Jan Olson, Kourtney Wilcox

Call to Order
Chair Daniel Hair formally called the meeting to order at 6:02 PM.

Public Comment on Matters Not on the Agenda
None

Approval of Minutes
The August 5, 2024 minutes were approved. Motion by Christensen to approve; Second by Clark.
Motion passed 5-0.

Action Item: Public hearing — Consideration of a Conditional Use Permit Application: Data
Processing Business on Parcel #884403400009.

Hair opened the public hearing; Priestley read item summary into record. The consideration of a
Conditional Use Permit application from AUR Correctionville LLC (Applicant) and property owners Ashley
Acres Family Limited Partnership who have filed for a Conditional Use Permit application “to place a
demand response load resource next to the substation in conjunction with local electric utility to support
grid resiliency” for the proposed use to operate a data processing business. The proposed site is on
Parcel #884403400009 in T88N R44W (Wolf Creek Township) in Section 3 in the SE V4 of the SE 4. The
property is located around 6.2 miles southeast of Moville and around 7.7 miles southwest of
Correctionville. The property is located in the Agricultural Preservation (AP) Zoning District and is not



located in the floodplain. Owner(s)/Applicant(s): Ashley Acres Family Limited Partnership, 3356 170th
St., Correctionville, IA 51016 (Owners) and AUR Correctionville LLC, 15988 230th St., Grundy Center, IA
50638.

The following submitted written comments to Planning & Zoning Staff to be entered into the record after
meeting material was prepared: Tony Ashley, Jordan German, Dr. BA Huculak, Vicki Hulse, Alan
Lucken, Jana Martens, Autin Mitchell, Jayme Huber, Carl Palmquist, David Hoferer, Erick Vera, Charles
White. Applicant (AUR) also submitted additional information. Motion to receive into record by
Christensen. Second by Thiesen. Carried 5-0. Copies of submissions are available at in the appendix.

Jeremy Lane from AUR discussed the proposed CUP application.

The following provided comment: David Hoferer, Shelly McCoy Sadler, Bob Fitzmeier, Bruce Sadler,
Rosanne Plante, Lexi McKee-Hemenway, Gary Wilcox, Jordan German, Venita Wilcox, Gayle Palmquist,
Heather Dixon, Tony Ashley, Tyler Roberson, Jan Olson, Greg Manker, Gabriel Diaz. JohnPaul Baric
from AUR spoke via telephone.

Motion by Hair to receive material from Bob Fritzmeyer. Second by Clark. Carried 5-0.

Motion by Hair to receive material from Lexi McKee-Hemenway. Second by Christensen. Carried 5-0.
Motion by Hair to receive material from Gary Wilcox. Second by Turner. Carried 5-0.

Motion by Turner to hear additional comments from the Sadler family. Second by Thiesen. Carried 5-0.
An article was received by the Sadler family and included in the appendix.

JohnPaul Baric from AUR spoke by phone regarding project and addressed questions previously asked.

JohnPaul, by phone, requested Jeremy Lane to add additional information into record. Motion by Clark.
Second by Thiesen. Carried 5-0.

Motion to close public hearing by Christensen. Second by Thiesen. Carried 5-0.

Deliberation by Board members. Motion by Christensen to deny the application due to the application
and testimony not clearly addressing the impact upon adjacent property, the character of the
neighborhood and the public health, safety , and general welfare of the community. Second by Thiesen.
Carried 5-0.

Hair stated applicant could file an appeal within 30 days of the Board’s decision with the Woodbury
County Planning and Zoning department.

Information Item: Consideration of a Recommendation Contemplating Decommissioning
Requirements As Part of a New Ordinance Regarding Carbon Pipelines. Summary: The Woodbury
County Board of Supervisors at their meeting on August 27, 2024 voted to direct the Planning and
Zoning Director to work with Planning and Zoning, the Board of Adjustment, and Legal Counsel in order
to make a recommendation contemplating decommissioning requirements as part of a new ordinance
regarding carbon pipelines. Staff continues research and asks board members to investigate options.

Information Item: Board Of Supervisors’ Consideration of Changes to the Commercial Wind
Energy Conversion Systems (C-WECS) Ordinance #56. Summary: Following the Woodbury County
Fair (2024), the Board of Supervisors (BoS) received a petition from the public to revisit the regulations
contained within the C-WECS ordinance (Ordinance #56) on August 6, 2024. Subsequently, the Board

2



of Supervisors directed county staff to review the ordinance and to make recommendations for changes.
This discussion item will include information about the process ahead for the BoS’s review and
consideration of potential changes. The C-WECS ordinance is a stand-alone ordinance that was
originally approved under the home rule provisions of lowa Code and is not part of the Zoning Ordinance.
Staff exploring options. Board asked to provide input.

Information Item: Planning Process for Nuclear Energy to be Considered for Addition To
Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance. Summary: The Woodbury County Board of Supervisors at their
meeting on July 2, 2024 voted to direct the Zoning Commission to begin the process of exploring nuclear
energy as a potential energy option in Woodbury County. This agenda item is an update about the
process. Staff researching information.

No Public Comments on matters not on the agenda.

Staff Update: Staff will continue gathering information on information items. There will be upcoming
meetings discussing these issues. Public input is encouraged. Informational meetings will keep harvest
in mind when scheduling meetings.

No Board Member Comment or Inquiry

Motion To Adjourn
Christiansen motioned. Second by Clark. Carried 5-0. Meeting adjourned at 8:44 PM



APPENDIX - RECEIVED MATERIALS

Danlel Priestiey

From: Tony Ashley <farmertony44€yahon.coms

Sent: ‘Wednesday, September 4, 2024 1245 PM

To: Danle| Priestiey

Subject: Data center

CAUTION: This emal| originated from OUTSIDE of the srpanization, Piease verify the sender and use caution F the message contalns any

sttochments, Inks, or renuests fer Information as this person may NOT be who they caim. If you for your

Danlel Priestley

From: Jordan German <germiordigmall com>
Sent: Tuesday, September 3, 2024 4:45 PM
To: Danie| Priestiey

Subject: Data Processing Proposal - Yes Vobe

CAUTION: This emall originated from OUTSIDE of the organiztion. Please verify the sender and use caution If the message: contains any
links, or a5 this person may KOT be who they clain. If you wre usked for your ussmeme snd
I werce ENTER mny dets.

plésat call WEICE wid DO NOT ENTER vy it

Everyone except those who hate traditional energy or just do not like Bitcoin have two simply questions. Is there
a solid plan and will there be too much noise. If these two boxes are checked everyone except the haters of
traditional energy and/or Bitcoin say the same thing to me. That this is a win/win.

Ta'so had these two concerns. My family has more at risk by far than anyone e/se. Aimest everyone who lives within 1/2
mile of this project is in my family. This includes 5 school aged children and my mather who is in her 80s. Ten of usin
ohal.

This company got around 10 pages of questions from the board of adjustment where they gave comprehensive
answers to solidify their plans to fullfil the qualifications for the conditional use permit. There are detailed
plans explaining how things will work from set up to decommissioning. This company has a solid track record in
Towa and right here in Weodbury County where their facility that is years in operation and got easy approval
by the board of adjustment has received zero complaints or violations.

This company is putting a much more expensive system in for this project than there is in the current system
already operating in Woodbury County that has zero violations. That system is air cooled while the one for this
project is a waber cooled loop system. You can see from the packet that the noise tests are well below any
moise concern parameters. Houses within 1/2 mile of this project which are mostly my families should not hear
noise above normal according to these readings.

This facility will provide much needed revenue to the Woodbury County REC which should allow them to
mitigate the large energy price increases many are experiencing. This helps the pocket book of all in Woodbury
County using the REC. This project will provide property tax revenue to Woodbury County along with income
tax to the state estimated to be over 70 thousand dollars per year. Two new good paying tech jobs will also be
created here locally. A nice win/win.

Tony Ashley
General Partner Ashley Acres
i 8

and energy use for Bitcoin mining are highly correlated. A 400% increase in Bitcoin's price from 2021 to 2022
triggered a 140% increase in the energy consumption of the worldwide Bitcoin mining network.Oct 24, 2023
The noise poliution from Bitcoin mining can pese significant health risks to nearby communities. The constant
hum and roar of the high-powered computers running day and night are being linked to sieep disturbances,
increased stress levels, and other health problems.

H .nbedfw.co
neighbors/3456364/2amp=1

local/noise-pollution:-from-bitooin-farm-in-hood-cou

Residents report ailments like migraines, hyperbension, and vertigo since the Bitcoin mine starked operating. The mine's
noise levels regularly exceed legal imits, causing sleep disturbances and siress.
Marathon Digital Holdings, the mine's owner, plans o reduce noise by transitioning to quieter cooling systems.

The deleterious impact far outweighs the economic benefits. Say No.

To the Beard of Adjustment,

Tam wrking to you to encourage a yes vote on this data processing proposal. It Is Important to support
businesses that hire local workess, Inareases rellabl ity of power, and can iower overall power costs for
consumess.

Thank you for your careful conslderation of this.

Regards,
Iordan German



Duniel Priestiey

From: alan ludken <alan.|uckangdgmall.com>
Sank Tuesday, September 3, 2024 11:13 AM
o Danlel Priestiey

Subject: Crypto mining proposal

(CAUTION: This emall originated from OUTSIDE of the onganization. Please verify the sender and use caution If the message contains
any attachments, |Inks, or requests for Information as this parson may NOT be wha they daim. If you are asked for your usemame and
passwond, please call WCIOE and DO NOT ENTER any data.

To the board of adjustment, 1 am writing tc you to enccurage a na vate on this aypio propasal. My background has been the
Plymauth County Zoning Administrator (recently retired) and 28 years In the elediric ulllity business as I served many years as
Boand President far Nipon which Is a transmission anaperative In Narthwest Iawa wha many of you may ba famillar with. From a
supply point of view, the generation of electricity ks In a rather precarious situatlon as the supply ks very tight and the demand Is
growing at an alarming rate with all the data centers and data centers for artifidal Intelligence being proposed. Alse the charging
stations for the Increase In electric vehides will be substantial. Consaquently the nation simply does not have the ganeration and
transmission capabiiity for all this growth. These crypio miners provide absalutely no benefit to sodety other than make profits
for the owner. Thelr main eperating expense ks for the electridty that runs the servers and the alr conditioning to keep them
mdl. Naturally they try go where the electric rates are the |owest This Increase In demand wi| drive up our rates without
benefiting our sadety so I am encouraging you to vote ne on this proposal. Alan Lucken

Danlel Priestiey Danle! Prluth
From: Jara < {mamartenss5@gmall. com> From: Austin Mitcha|| <Mitchall @eynota lo>
Sent: Wednesday, September 4, 2024 8:00 AM Sent: Wadneeday, Sepiember 4, 2024 125 AM
To: Derle! Priestiey Ta: Daniai Prisstiay
Subject: EBRcoin mine Subject: Support for data prosaesing fasiity In Weadbury County
This ermal| ofthe Pleass ver{fy the sender and use cmstion If the messuge o This small arginatad from CUTSIDE of th Plaass variy th, dar and tion If the massags contains
contalns wy Tinks, or for ws this persan muy NOT be whe they ciulm. If you wre usived for any atiachmants, links, or raquasts for Information 25 this parson may NOT ha who thay caim. If you are aaked for your Lssmame
your wnd I 1l wexee ENTER wny dute. and password, plaase call WCICC and DO NOT ENTER any data.

Tm unsble to meles the mesting tonight 30 1 would il to give my thoughts. Alh-r-rd-hwlﬂl,n-unlimww
thermal energy- The massive snergy It will use ks w big no for me- Also 1
constant Humming nolss why would I wish thet on my neighbors. ﬂ-mwﬂlhﬂmm_hmm
Iova. I usk that you deny this request. Sincersly Jene me—tens- Y Y Phons

Dear Zoning Board,

| am writing fo express my support for the application to deve\up adata processing site in the county. As

someone with a PhD focused on the environmental, economic, and health impadis of energy development,

and having worked for multiple energy | the of projects like these for

the future of our energy syslem Currently, | serve as the CEO aofa sallware company that helps energy
manage liles data pi more while g financial rigk.

This proposed site would provide economic benefits to the community by increasing local tax and business
revenue. More importantly, data processing fagilities like this are flexible and responsive to eleciricity prices,
makmg them essermal for modernizing the ebedlrluty grid. They heip stabilize the grid, support the

of and inspire ion in the energy sedlor.

By supporiing this. you are positioning your to remain relevant in the evolving
energy land: and enabling future technological that will benefit us all. | strongly urge the
zoning commigsion lo approve this application.

Thank you for your consideration.

Singerely,

Austin Mitchel PhD
Co-founder, CEQ

419283 9858 . Mitehall @synetaio

synAa



Narthwest Iowa Pawer Coaperative
PO Box 240

31002 County Road €38

Le Mars, TA 51031

Office - 712-546-3509
Cell — 319-457-0976
Receptionist — 712-546-4141

NIPCO;

ATottehitone Enesgy Coopemstive YK 1<

n=; LU WAL UDE FErm i — e

Tm nodca 15 to advisa you thit AUR Correctionvila LLG (Appicant) and proplny

rs Ashley Acros Family Umited have fllad for a o Parmit
npplln.ion "to place a demand responsa load rascirca next to |hl sLi:sslcn In
conjunction with local alectric utllity to support grid resllency” for the osed usa to
operats a data prcmnsln_F business. Tha proposed ske Is on Parce| # 03400009 In
T&3N R44W (Wolf Creck mnhlp] In 8action 3In the SE i, of the SE '/;. The p’opﬂy
I locatad around 6.2 miles southeast of Moville and around 7. 1 rlilns sunhwut
Corractionvi|le. The property Is locatad In the Agricultural Preservatiol
Dlﬂﬂﬂ and Is not located In the ﬂmx!r!;\m Own-(s&Agx\harigWAd\\uy Acras Fnrrl?y

3356 170th 8t, ors) and AUR
CnMnmllln LLC, 15988 230th St Grundy Canter, |A 506

To leam rnnr- about this conditlonal use parmit rﬁgleat and how It may affect you and the
charader of your nelghborhood, you mxy{l call the Woodbury County Commu and
Economic Oevelopment (Planning and Zoning} office at 712-2749-8804, attend the Board of
Adustment public hearing, and/or send In written comment.

The Woodlllr! County Board of unmem pl.b\lc hlalllg will be hald an Wlmaﬂlly

Soeptember 4, 2024 during their sp maating which bagia at 8:00 PM | oard of
Suparvisors' meeting room In the Buemam of the Wmd:%x cnuﬂhnun, 820
Oouglas Street, Sloux Clty, lown. Pleasa enter ﬂrotgh tha 7th Strest entrance. Semrly
procadures are In piace an ring tha buliding. Py wanting to

-— - -r L4 "‘ ‘County Zoning
ﬁ -
~ =
ar) AP AP apfl A =
wm
AP » | _ar | @
o) L A ap U
L 12) upo
AP AP -
ar AP AP s e
| m 4d
dom| | o[ o L4 [
mrwm  Bbmsens AT RO OWnar AN ASHLEY ACHES PAMILY LINTED PARTHERSI B
SeYTWIVANG D204 =1} A 3358 L70THST
PTOpAITY AJOREE ATaa0h DBz 'CORRCTIONVILLE. 1A 51018 BL1S
Diine ooss
ErMITIXDWIUEN  WOLF CREEKTONNIHIP €132 OF S 14 OF 3 BB.4 T TCT I 5€ COR oF EOF 5c . BEzh 300 IT by 200
FT) AND (EX AN TRREG TCT DESCRIBED AS COM AT NE COROF B ',0F 5C *. TIANC S 532 55 FTTO POB. T1
INC 5773 7 FT. TIINC MW 2 19 FT. T INC M 324 D287 T NC
otiramat 7871
o

R £



Danlel Priestioy

From: Carl Paimquiet <ezstvieyfarm@amall.com>

Sent: Wednesday, September 4, 2024 1:13 PM

To: mattheswngd woodburveamtyia. gov; Jeremy Taylor; Kelth Radig; Danlel BRiinger; Mark Neison; Daniel
Priestiey; Joshua Widman

Subject: Inside the 'Nightrrare’ Hea (th Crists of a Texas Bitcoln Town

CAUTION: This ermall originated from QUTSIDE of the organization. F\numﬁhmmmmlhmmmhim
linkes, or requests for = L2 y cldm. If you your
password, plesss cull WCKC and DO NOT ENTER any dets.

A Bitcoin mine moved to a small town in Texas. One by one, the residents fell ill.

Source; TIME

Sent from my iPhone

. Th it will not

condneted o determine if this sequinement o thet.

seenic or historic faxmnes — There ia id that any

+ The conditional nuse ia necessery ot desirabie to provide & servioe in fhe public intetest or will oontribute 1o f1e genetsl welfae —Th caly fsma
addressed by the planting and zening comriskion wes an lleped incresse in the thx base But the ordinance cleary envisions & broader
contideration then just the tax base.

s Al posible affirts hawe been taken t mininiize adverse impacts — The aaly izmes noted by the flanting and zoning conmismion sre nedse and
security (fencing and tighting). There was peesented ahove.

A& genersl ion, it i and the planing and soing comisictiply ok ol of AR
tepresentations at face valne, withont axy application requites more
than that.

Om Belatf of Fowa Chapter ferra C'iab, aud the Nortiwent Iows Group of erra Cub, wo rquest fiuat you plose tars daws fie conditimal
wae request.

David Hofisrer
Executive Committes Co-Chair

Northwest Iowa Cronp of Sierra Club

Danlel PN&H

From: Northwest Iowa Group of Slerra Club <rwiaslerragroup@gmall.com>
Sent: Wernesday, September 4, 2024 11:24 AM

To: Danlel Priestiey

ce: Davddl Hoferer

Sulsject: Per proposed Hata mining centsr proposal

CAUTION: This ernall orlghiabed fror OUTSIDE of the organteation, Plisse verFy the serier and uss cautior I the messge contains ay
attzchments, links, or requests for information as this person may NOT be who they claim. If you are asied for your usemame and paswword,
pleass cal| WCICK and DO NOT ENTER any daia.

Dear Mr Priestly,

Thank you in advance for teading this letter per the proposed duta mining center proposel.

AUR Correctioni ditional nse: ining center for . AUR reiirs to this facilify an 2.
'dmnﬂmpnuhdmm'mqum-dnpmu-mlhm Thatia an attempt by AUR 0 give a benign description to a facility et
actually hes a significant adverse impact.

ining centers nse an o AUR cleitns thet the electrieity for the fecility will some from local
mmlnhﬂm:ewpeﬂﬂm e the RECs capeble of providing the requited electricity and still service its segalarenstomers? Will the additionsl load
0 the RECs temlt in higher ility corts for ctawmars? If the RECs need to obtain extra lsctricity ftom other sonrces, will e additional power
coma fom renewahle sources?

Tn order to obtain a conditional wse permit, an spplicant nmst setinfy the requirements of the coanty's aoning ordinance for & conditionsl use. This
project does not setisfy those requirements.

Firet, the zoning administrator and the planning and zofing commisaion adntit that a e mining center doea not come within the description of
any nse fisted a8 & condifional nse in an agricnltnral district. So AUR and the planning and zoting conmission created o fols 6 equivaient of
elainting the data enter is & sercarch and davelopment laboratery. Thet borders on fie abrnd. A research and developnwent Lah oratory does 1ot
tequire the mastive amonnt of energy required by & date canter. Nor ia there any other valid comparison between a ressarch laborstory and &
dete center. The Law does not allow this sort of enipalation of the conditional nse ontinance. The purpose of aconditional nse ordinancs is to
specify certein naes that ean be compatible with the evisting zoning district.

Ssoond, the proposed data center doss 5t comply srith the equis for a oonditional nee permit. The ordinance lrts § requi 42
Emitetions.
o The conditional ns is anthorized in the zoning district — As noted above, 8 d 8 not anthorized in an agri district.

o The conditional mse is competible with fha soning ondinance and the genaral plan — Zoning staffcontend that the preject will ansonrege
diversification o e county'seconcory. Bt then is o evidencsthat theproject will b he eoonemy. AUR adait that th dat caner witl oty
employ two people. While the pmject may increame the tax bese, fua Board mmat o There:a 1o indication
that the plenning end zoning commission did that

e will not or unduly impact mdmhanﬁnhmufﬂmmmdmgpmpntymhgmnd
'alﬁ.m — AUR makes an inconsistent claim that on one hand it will somehow provide a benefit by nsing excess power from.
smbstation, and on the other hand, can somehow provide excess power back o the comomaity. Bnululnbauﬂunnn-mm pnr-aﬂDml
!.lulBCAm-ll’pmdnmmﬂpﬂwﬂ?w'h’nmlntmymuwmh-ckmm,gndhhmﬁlmlmlim?ﬂmm-anhninm
power, how can it have exceas power 1 provide beck to the eommunity? The Board mnst do its dna diligence and obtsin answars to these
questions.

© The conditionsl nse will be ible with th
addressed was the noise. A rmch broader consideration is nequined.

— The oaly point that the planning and zoning commiszion

-mmcmmumymu.mnm“—nmum.mmmmfnmqnﬂ,mmMn-nmm

posrer required for a d ‘before any decision on a condi
1

Danlel Priestiey

From: Erick Vera <ericid unor tech>

Sent: Tuesday, Sepiember 3, 2024 10:58 PM

To: Daniel Prieatey

Ce: leg@miningstore com; Ethan Vera

Sublect: Support for Bltcoln Mining In Woodbury County

CAUTION: Thiaemall originated from QUTSIDE of e organization Please verlly the sender and use caullon If the message contalne any
attachments, ks, or requests for Information as this person may NOT 55 Who hey Giaim. If you ars asied for yourussmams and
pessword, DONOT data.

il Ihape you all are weH We are writing to express our support an
behalf of MiningSlore for the p ial Blbom mining op in ¥ Oounty As a leading Bllooln
mining company in the US, we have seen how it has i d as per the
Job Creatlon: Bitcoin mining can create diverse emp\oymenl opportunities, Trum IT speuahsts to
operational roles, engineers and logistics as security staff. This would not only increase employment rates
bul also stimulate local economlcgmwlh with good paying )obs Increased Tax Revenue: The

ired for mining of would i ingome and cther taxes, providing new revenue
sfreams that can be i into public services and | Grid Stabllity: Bitcoin
mining can enhance your glectric grid by consuming excess energy dunng low demand periods and
reducing usage during peak times. This flexibility supperts grid etability and the integration of renewable
-energy sources without major footprint to the current landscape. All major grids are looking at using Bitooin
mining az a way fo improve their stability. Positloning lowa as a Tech Hub: Embraging Biteoin mining can
position Woodbury County as a leader in blogkchain technology, atiracting more tech companies and setting
lowa on the map as a technology and energy hub. In summary, Bitcoin mining offers a unique opportunity to
beost your economy, stabilize the energy grid, and elevate your region's technological profile. We fully
support and trust MiningStore efforts to bring this industry to Woodbury County. Best regards, Erick Vera
Business Deve lopment Lead, Luxor Technology erick@luxor tech

Dear y County Ri

10



From: Charles White <criovwa2001@gmall.com >

Sent: Tuesday, September 3, 2024 4:54 PM

To: Daniel Priestiey

Subject: Bicoir/data center

CAUTION: This email OUTSIDE of the Please verify the sender and use caution IF the message mntains any
NOT y clam. Ifyou your und

IInks, or requests for £
pessvrord, pleess call WCICC and DO NOT ENTER urry dets.

Hello, I am writing to support the proposed new data center for the county of Woodberry. It should bring in lots
«of money developing the site and instead of supporting an old outdated infrastructure, we are modernizing it
with a purpose. I understand it will also bring a few full-time jobs, and I'm sure there will be some tax revenue
o the county and state, from the jobs and the electricity used. These are also tech jobs this area badly needs to
keep the higher-paying jobs locally and provide positions to our younger people with degrees so they

aren't moving to larger cities. Thank you for taking the time to read this.

Sincerely,

‘Charles White

11



Bob Fritzmeyer

qu enare go dnaigy paop RILON
JIRY07) BRI DANTDIR
Ioisgor] praeg

Jsatib) Bs1L (UL IR ) WGP 11
ota)d nod e jsenbar 3. fqny pucg 10 dnedny ] MO N S U QD BUOLS SCRTT BT JO (B 10

i Ly s s uogEned el 950 [EIOTIPUOS 1 0 U NS 6a0)
opEEnes o sung 10 Fmuonsanh e woys EnjEs aan) e sanRERssdar s iy 10 118 001 Adus
COSELIWIE TLU0Z pug 5:1ue|d 9 LR JOJRISTUTUPY SUILOE 3 187 Juarrhle: S| gL uoleams [Rcusi & sy

H

a0 pajuasd sanss) ) Jo sisedun
UL UL O IOEE015U00 DU SR Ay | {30y puk Suouay ) Aumoas pus asiou a5 UeTssiutes Supes
pra Furaued ougp Ag priou sansst Auo ST — spedng ssimame 100 UAYR URa AARL SU0yR 2qssod [[ve

“asi ) A1) RN UR) GOTRISHISUND PR IQ B SUOISLAT A[125]5 35URTIRIO SY1 ] "a5q ¥E]

SN UL ASRAIOUL PAFA[[R UR SEA UOISSUWIOD SUluoz puR Sujuue)d a1 Aq passaIppr ansst £|ud ay L —amyam (e
Y1 0] SNYLILOD [[14 O JSTUL N SU) U1 201AI2S & 9PIA O 2QRUSIP 10 £I1285238U $1 38N [BUDIIPUCD 3] @
Jow s Juawaanbal sIY) J1 SUTLU2IP O PIRINPUCD SEM JUSLIRSISSE [IYFLueaLL

AUR EY] 20USDIAZ OU 5 200U | 52UNJE OLIDISIY I0 JIUS2S ‘TeIngeu Jobdiun K[@SI8APE JOU [[Im asN [BUONIDUC) U] »
‘nuuad o1 [RUONIPUO) B UY

LOISI3aP AU 2J0)97 PAIEEISOAUL 0 ST QNS 1RIT, T2 BIEP B 10y paunhal zasod Jo nmoum aassen i apiaosd
Ajepenbape uea DAY A1) 1243 BUIMOYS OU ST ALALL — 50 [RUOLIPUOD SY) 3AJ3S KJAIENDIPE [[L4 S9[AI2S N &
pamnbal s1 UCTRIBPISUOD 2PE0IL YA Y IS10U YL SEA PISSAUDPE LOISSTWWoD Suuez

ue Suruueyd o Jem yurad Lo ayf, — seowpeqyFsu Sutpunowuns sy g ojquedwos aq [Lm 3sn [BuCITFUO? AT e
‘stopsenh asel) 01 slemsue uEKGO

pue S2UEIP 2Np S)LOP ISNW PIROY Sy L, (AIUnuuos £y) 01 yrq aptanid 0 1300 £30%3 aARY 31 18D Moty “aMod
BUISN SLI)U TIR 240 J1 £240nd 3:113Ua3 01 PUF 21 U0 Yaq Jamod s320%a Kue Ind 10U AUM (1anod ssaoxa
20npoud ABnoe -y Sy sR0(] (om0l 550X S50 01 LAY B 1L MO AIUNILWOD 311 0] JoBq Iamod $5a0x2
2PIAOI MOTBWIOS (LD ‘PUBY JAO By} U0 PUE ‘UonElSNS D 31 wed) Jamod ssooxa Suisn A7 1yaunyg B apracud
MOYILILS ([ ]F PUTL AUO U0 JULY WIT]D JULISISUCDUT U SaYutl Y)Y arej (e [ssouaF oy Jo Apadoad Suipunonns
aip yo samqune oo pue Guadoud yusselpe jaedwy Aapun 1o AJeHuRlsquS 10U 1M 980 [BUONIPUGD Ol e

“TRL PID UOISSILNGGD Fiio?

PuE BuiLue|d 3y e UOHEY UL OU 1 3491 |, "Ss]0ed Ul SIDAPE PUR $1S09 2U) JZPISUOD 0S]E 130U DIEDE S 358q

X&) 2y aseaaaur Kew pasfead sy a1y apdoad omy Sojdwo juo [fia fyued eep ay) ey siwpe Y11y Awouoda ay
1yauaq [[1x joafaxd ay) et acuapias ou 51 esey) Ing "Auioueds £, 4unes ay) Jo U0 TEILISIRAIR 2TEmodua [[1a jaafod
sy ey pusiuod Jeis Suuoyz — vepd [eiousd oy pue ssUBMPIo Suluoz SY) Y)ia 9]qNBdL0d 198N [MIONIPUO 241 e
“ALNSIP [RINnoLEe

UE U1 PZLIOUINE JOU 51 JAJUED BJEP B *0A0QE PJOU S — I0LNSIP SUIUOZ DU U} PIZLIOING 5] 25N [RI0NIPUOD AT e
SUULEIWI| ¢ puE sjuawannbal g s)51) Souepie

ay 1, uned osn [EmonIpuos 7 10y sjuawaribal ayp s Ajdwod you saop Jausa eiep pesodard oy “puodesy

2SI

ZUIUOZ FUNSIXD D01 Y14 A[qUUAoN 3 UBD 12L) 35N UTBLIDY ATI02dS 01 ST 2URLIPI0 35N [BUOTIFUD) B Je 2sodind
2L VIUEUIFTO 251 [BUOLIPUOS 2T JO UOLZdILEL JU 103 S1LY MU [E 0 S0P ME| 21| Ja1U20 BIEP ¥ PUR ALOTEIOQE]
YDIBISDL B WIS WoSLIEA DD PIBA JAL10 AUR AIAUR SIION “I2)USS BJEP © Aq pasnber A0 Jo Junowe aa ssew
A 2inbas 00 £30p K101210q8] 1UOUO[IASP PUB OTI2E31 Y *PINSE 31 U 5IPIO] 1] *AIEION?] 1UEWCO[3AIP
[ [[2IACA1 2 61 I2)U20 PIPP 311 SUIIR|D J0 W RATNES 9STR) & paj2asd derssiuwos Futuez puz Fuped

AR J0 1ONALIARAP A v 2w

AL PUE Y)Y OF IOLISIP [RINYNOSR UE U] 25T [BUCHIPUOI B ST pajsi]
10U $302 12100 BUILILL EJEp 2 EY1 JIWPE UOIsSIUWeD Suuoz pus Fuluued U] pui Jojestulpe Suiuoz sy 98Iy

“spuatsaanbar osot Leqns 10u sa0p 100(0rd B[], a3t [BUCHIPUOD B A0] dUBUIPIO
FUO? 2 4UN02 Al jo sjuawanabar dyp Ajspes jsuun jrescds u2 Juuasd 250 [pUonIped E UmIgo 0349010 U]

£530ITOS AQRMALA.

WEL JWOD.1M0C EUCHIPPE 31 [[14 Sa0IN08 Jay10 wouy AN01a09]3 BUXS ULKIGO 0) P9l 5.1 ¥ JU ] J520isna

T3 £100 Qunn 3oy RHy UL 110630 57 2L U0 PEO] [BUOLIPEE AU [[1A) (SISWoIsTd e[nFar s)f 301A128 |15 pue

Ayoap> paarnibas 2y Surpiaoad jo ojgedes sHmy oy oy saanmiodoes 9110910 (eI [DAE] WOy WD [jLa AXjLoe)
AL 1Y ANILIIA[A LT TRY) SWIRED YTV ARINND JO VIO AROIPIARxa ue aen s12yuas Fumuiw 2jep LouaamaodAny

Jaedwy esteape sugauELs v sey £|feniae 12y Ao 2 o) vonduosap ufiueg B aaS 01 WY AQ 1dwne
e 51 1B, 's5ausng Julssesald spep e ejesade o) @oaneses peo| asuodsas puswsp,, v se A11j1ou sIq o) sl y[]y
“Kavounacyd Lo 10y 12jusy Furw wiep © 19n0Eu0s 01 JuLad 5m JUUOLIPUOS 10 Pa(1] SEY S[[IAUONALIO) Yr|Y

‘[esodoxd Ja1t20 Sujun wIep pasedoic d Jad 11:3( sy Fuipral 1) animeap? m nad yure |

FRIFUUAW 231/ WIUL0 ) JUS L)

Ty 4o paesay e

esodoad 131w Suruw wiep pasodoad sag valqng

12



DMmo|

Lexi McKee-Hemenway

i ELUGET NEoh]

uinbe, 'sqpuoll dzeiyble Aene E0isy mau jo speacs Buissaso.d

uieuwlsl o} Bulpeibdn jueisw oz Bu
amndwios signaep uas ABojouysal u siuateaacidw) Buil iy o1d s Joy spur soanduwand paiesipap

P pelelfsiu oyoads-uopes|dde 10 SISy DUUILL U] UDIIRADULY JO 3320 U1 5| 215BM 5|1

2 !
112 Buiao uouawcLayd § | SPUBHEYIHN @U1 0 @158 D1U0109]8 |ENnuue aul o) Jusjeabe sead jed

SUOY QOE'ST 40 D181 POIELIISD UL T DISEM Dluo.oafm peonpoid Auaiioe Bulaus UIODHE ‘TOT ung Ul
§PNSE/M JIUDIDA)S Ul STUALLIS[A DIX0) LCLULIOD 3SoL Ayt ale Ansusw pue peat yijesy ognd abeuiep
PUE 'S33UBISANS 2X01 01 SI83ICAM S500x3 'UONN|IDT JS1E/M DU J|E SSMED LD DISE/M DIUGIINE|S

‘spoglew __Wmﬂﬂ_miu sacoad O IUSWRIOJUS RPUR SRIEDURIS INOYHA FISEM 21UDII09|S DL SoNY4IUeD

Buiuiwl 03cliz LHoa) 235240 DILOIS2IS 19110 PUR 'S3|CED 'SPIRGG 1IND13 'SI81NdUInd paplensiq)

;918212 Butuiul 03d K10 80P B1SRM IIUQIII[E YDNW MOH

0 UOIS Y SEM 91 Al 2 U 9jgeieduaon

‘
'SRIOYISr oY $M 000'00F O UoRndUNSUSD 1938 [ENUUE 0BEISAE B ) 0} a1

xoldde 31 siauw

1A 00) PR 2101 U UONRDRSLEL AIBA3 PUR YDRS 10§ 513 10) 00CY faA0 Bulysr |

W1ooig 5N 40

01 WUB[BAINDS 58U ] "DZOZ JO SE UoIdeSsURL 18d £1811) 64Z°9L S| 1UNHI00) I81aM (eqa)h 8L 1|Nsa)

2 se Uemod seulw ordAio eyy Sjodns teyl siueld sesmod |8y 1550 B41 (00D 0] PUE UIBYIYIS|G UIODIE
2u3 uiejLiRwW pue £s0004d 38yl 5611 101Ndul0D 4] (00D D) POPIDU §1 IDIEM JO JUNOUIZ QAISSCLL

(asn b W 03clA4D 5200 J81BM YDNUL MOH

, 19110 uaMep NS Jaas A|jenice Aayl . suyieum sinoy asn ABlsue
sead SulING a0IAISS ANDHI28Ee 1B3YUL 1ni18au] 01 BUljm 20 01 WEUL1 ABC 1BYY sLUBIBOId asundsa.

-pUBWIED WG 1auad GS|8 U2 $auUll 84 ‘AloTi] 3214195 TUE|| W 40 UBDLISWIY I U] 242 SaUlU

o3dhiz 0y 4| Aad e am segal 9y DIUT dn pajel A[EN1UIAS 5] UDSUENYS JO 150D 3Y] S8 SISUUDISTT

1P 1) sa1e. 1a1Biy o) peaj

5 PBIqUUOD 'DDEE

uoniendod Uaiues ApUriG Ul SIaUIcIsNs ey ALD1I09|9 2JCd seoy 0GY

sEIsat 9y

N S8 S8 BAAD] UBIUBD ARUINID Ul sl c1d i SRS R UN S L speal
Y s K F ¥

|9SEIP DI} 9ECUT O
Ul upAnaon odhn uomey e o 241 4o (zonb pE R0 IUNdI00) Uaned By Bl |eisny
AL 507 ‘Alaalieriasuod 'sesn Bujup o1dlin ‘Ajeqo|s

FILUIS SUOISS|LUE 707 U] 317158 OF DLW LSS 51 Sejely Pelld[]

i0 292

£ UBIN 2 ABI2US JO 1UNoUIE aules syl AlYBn o saunsuLes aueie uonanpold Wong s A1DIoe)E
S 40 BT 28A0 SEWNSUOD Aausiinooid Ao U0 jeSIuIWpy Ualieuaoid] Afueus sy o) Durpicdoyg
Lasn Buiuiw 01dAio seop ALIDIIID8 @ Yonul MoK

B e R
B VR Al A A H ] 4K H

owawuoinuy A Z 40 1 30vd

omol ()

. AIUNOD AZUnD) BUE AUNOD AMeH > Skjy Ul suogziedo pesodoid

BLipnio) eamo] 110430011 ssuill 01dXn mau o suonsalas 3 dpinw J) 1ooey Joleuw B usan sey

JUBIU puUE ABp e SUn 850U 8L PLE '2:0ADI0N0W ELIAAGT € 01 163U

SILEEDISEL L0 51U U LI0D 510,

BUIPULIS SE PRO| S8 'S|9gIoop G6 YI80s URS SWID15AS BUooD Ul SLEJ JO 1BOI 8Y_ &S|oU SUBaW 1EY] PUB
Buuen|puoD JE nLemod s2:nba. pajlonuod-ainesadita suitl oydAn g i snduian sy Buidaay|
ucpnjod as|ou pue A2UsakndoldAIn

"R S1U0.108[8 8|qaliapisuod Buiteioush o jym '1olem puz 01130912 o sunoude

BAISSEUL BLUNSUOD SBUILL 8581 PUR 'SUIL ADUSLINDI0ICAID B P8 ED St LUSISAS 191N dLLIDD njsamadd

sey sy | eyedwos o3 S1einduwios Jo wissAs nesmod 5.l B seinkel puE uioD)g YIge 10y ||B-eXET

12U st uoniadulod siy | Aeo g sinoy 47 ‘uiefe 1aso pue 1aao 51831 §58001d S1y] UG MOU

san@Del yolenby QU IAIDS O} 19511 1511 B4 | . Caau ayj uo 518ylo 15U eBE SUIDISAS J21NdWIoD Alayl

Buioes Aq uonenbas xejduios B eajos 01 s1asn sainbail 1841 weiboid sannadwos e yBnodyl su1osg

MaBU 52112333 (U0USHI01g 941 PB|ED) I0MIBL SIUL PHOM BL1 PUNCIR S1ANALIOD |0 sual|itl

SE0I2E PRINGUTSIH 5| 1BYL Iomiau (e BIR & U0 AU 5151%8 'sepusunooyd s Jeuyio &) ‘uooug
‘Bl se oy paliagal ssanoad Bonnduwos paieaydiees e s Aauann2oid i aau o uonesan sy

cauiu LHuannoodAid e sl 1PYm

sivAudale) J2ylo a5y

dn 2aip des pue s.ceLBIaU 413U 10, 3D2UBSINU B 31830 U2o ‘|N)jalsem aia Apuoinooidfio Buneoio
104 5855280010 JUS.UNS JSASMOH 'BOUBULY PUE SSUCW [BUDIIPEN 01 3A12UILE LR S2 ADo|joula&]
SIL140 [PAUDICC puE 2NeA o4l Jrcce sue|s Big @ 2w sjusuodosd 'silold wLel-poys 5a.seys

2ldoad 3luos sEU 1EL] UsLIdo[arap iBDOUYDaT X3 O SP 170S "AaUa0oicAlD

%Z0¢ isnbny

SNVMOI Ol SYS|d
TVLNIANNOYIANG B TVIDONVYNIAL
- ONININ ADN3IHHNDO01dAdD

[H2UNO0D [BIUBLUUOIAUT EMO|

10

13



N e L |

w

]
g

01T
wisimsg !
Lo

15 YLz

AV S¥OAT

i
IAY HLI3SOM |

Gary Wilcox

| S
Jm WREN

dMI NOYJIN
S W06

1s Wogk

18 Yt

m o msgos
HiiRg i
Tad s

o

., 1inEH
2g %

=

Cmgls

! £69% o] =

g el S
o n

- >

miy =

Z \

Bl e i e

W. IE%Q.—. TRRIRIA i

i 58 )
e u £EFL asng -
g progeH A1 230N T

-4 16“

11

14




Bruce & Shelly Sadler

[

‘BUKL 3U) W01 13E0s AU SS0.08 Auadoid Jay uo sub's BpeLIBLIoy S UBPPRYS |UALT

"s18eq h—&uukp 180mIR T8 0 ARTOL §_ STIUT U101y

oy woyy Furmuays A[penuojed sweydwAs yim syraned 8aas o] skrs—o0[2Y( TITES

wm_—u_uuﬂ-.w jmodi]) pus “as0u n:m.ul.,-G—UG.U [2a0] 2uQ puy ,wacﬁmﬂ—u JRIMISRAOIPIED IS

uonny|od astou 03 aunsodio poFuojeid Juryul] $IPNIS SIFHRUAIS JO Apoq TMEEAIILL UF 51

21911 g '2U0 IBaU FULAl] Jo $H0RAUIL 3Y) Uo $HIPRYS [RITPAW JOfRUI 0 1A AARY 1AL,

“sooe|d sj0ma1 Ljowenya Ul pasnoy oI (WaT) JO 180T pue ‘Mau amb ST SIajuen plep PR

s uroopg 2|eos-afin] Jo uowdolaasp o], “swodwAs 983 giim Woor Asuadun
ot} Jo asuo Juedim 01 yjuom opdoad | 1wes] 1y 'sypenw olued ‘soureidiw “snmT
‘o81uea ‘urnd jsaroe ‘suotiendied Jvoy ‘uorsusiadAr AT WOMIG A1)1 |0 [RALLIR

9T} 01 PHIDBULIDD SI DADI[IY ADY3 JET] JUIL[IR [EIIPOW © paodal ofm 2alg AIMGURID

o3 w1 adoad g wey) s1ow o3 exods FWLL ‘prO7 U SHIUOT [RIIAIS JO 9$IN0D OTR TIL0

‘1seq >~_N—u 2 00 saa0eINpIn

aston [eSfe] SuUIPasoN2 SuM PUB—BDIE 9Y) OJUI POADL £[1U3321 pRY Je1) A[1aR) RuUrm

wiooN g & Woly SunTuruIL S ‘PALIBO| PEY IUSUISOIOFUS Ave] [2o0] ‘wing oy “daa
0] s]qeun WA FULIAPURL PUB SMOPULA JIaT) Tures ‘Aep Jo awm 2y wo Sarpuadap
paiter 10 pafrod OIYM ‘saAl] Joyd oJur 3doio pry WNY jRIne [[Np ® :2dUeASTIE re[ndiTs

© paseys e Loy ing -swojdmds asoy) Fuisneo sva '10BX0 JBjM MO WL JO DUON

“uioA-pIm AT ary Jo apprur ayy ut do Furyem “eosneu pue ofuea Juseyyep Ay
paouim aram Layy pius s AemydTg o uo Jaiatp sjugw Fugpnjour ‘sjjads Sujurey
pastaiiadia K13 pres UdILOAL [RISASS 'STea Io Wol] Sunjzs] ouom spiny pue fuLay
127 3UrsO] §8/4 I2INED Plo-18aL-§ 11| PIES IAOTT Y "SISOl Huneji[inap “aduens
wogf uny) wom ofdoad Jo [jny woos & punoy puz LMQUEID UI [JEY UWO] B 0101 pay[2s

243 “PTT AtBnuE[ W ing pAY aq pinod sweydwds asat) 1) YLIES 03 190 | upip 1

L SWIIPIED 121 PUIYaq) WHAq PAL,. & 1] 3l 1eiy
BuImeaIas “reak Jeil 1911480 2580 AT 0] uRe) SEA UTYINED PIO-IBIL-C 5, ZUBIUIS0Y

‘oF1puy mala poxoA AlIE[IUIS 215/ SI01D0D [L20] asnEaaq A|[E10adso ppo sem sup |
‘shms ays ‘ured oy Tmop yoouy o pawsos Soo jng fsroys se[umd pus toTEoIpE UL

AlJO SPIMDT [RI2A3S JAY SARE $10300(] "SA2p DALY 10T paIse] sureId i s ZURIUD oY

& UMIpiy uBy) ossom sem wied yuy ), ~sAes ays | paysmio Furaq

asra arnssald v un sua peal AUt Y1 39) 1], PAQQOI [R5 19 SSI15110 aarsusitad Ay oju

payids aunssozd poojq oy fajnura sod syeaq (g papunod 1woy 19 ‘Woos Louabiataa
Y1 01 PAUSNA ST PUR SRNAL *AINQURIL) O HTI0N 3a1] U1 pasde[[oa Z0enyussoy

[RIEg JaUMO mv\_

2UISnq [[2T08 Plo-TeaA-Ef €707 1aquIanag] U1 AuToasa ug u

LT P 0031 FEIE b AL CHHSITAN ATTYRIDINO | Lad We (2
AVIT ALOANTH (L

L .3
1 dm%_& Y] =

0T 9T AT ALV

12

15



#

£q paprend pue “paurmurewn ‘pajBain §1 WooYL ‘Aouedv [BjuawmIoA0T 10 jueq (RIS

& no Surdpor uey ey Furm spnm-jo-Joord pay(eo ssoocid  1amod siarndutod s

“p207 ‘07 AZIN U0 2US EXBD “yeunuIE s sy Buidsey Lo pasnicy usaq
MOJUH Hum 243 Jeau sBuipeal sunos seye) Sepiys sey Jadzay eQ ULy & A3pIYS UYOf JGRIELOD

“PIIOM 1] Ul SI3PIOY

o Aangqueto) 23 CTO7 T2qua0a(]

moagLg] 1S3EIR] AU 10 210 Uy £q paumo
J0 8V "3iu pue Arp ||¢ GO pIYOILAS O O) PANIE PUR “TTOT Jo lewumns a1 ul mE:a-:
paireys szogndutos asal[], “siaindiunoed p(( g 4240 JO [£I0) 2 PASDOT AT A SLINUIRITOD
Furddiys Surjquissa soxoq (maul jenhs ¢4 | Jo pajsIsuod KT8] MU DU 1] s

10 AJARIIP 1S PO 18T A1rj1oe) Suiur uosny mau & mod o) 170z W [eap & paudls

“oerd a1 peresodo Yonym ‘ATIOUF UONE|[MISTO)) UAYA PIIIBIE swajqoad a1 “1ayIey

‘S]USPIS3 [EI0] G1) 10] SOTSET [BIUBIEGNS PISAED DAY 1uefd seii HuIMols a1} Ing

~aze[qe SIS ‘ueodo Jooig

-yoind & wr Bux pro ue axr| N5 3 JO WO BHELL 1T “Lepy Furmiow uaepasd ‘Apuia e 0
Jue(d oyy presmoy SUTAIT [[ Mofjo}] JI0A\ Paj[eo 10[d B B so1—asnoy wiade Lmuan
AQIG1 R SIPRIOUT RIA—IDITRD UMCT DLl BUTIIRYD 5, Amquein Jo yinos aaLip
Ao noqy epdoed gog*§9 1moqe jo uonendod ugaijqnday puu joinr Apsow

2 $2510Y oIy ‘AINN0Y) POO] Ul YRION 110,{ JO ISOMINOS DY UR INOR SIS AInqueD

'EDLIDUIY S50T0B SUMD]

[[2Ws ss2[junos Jo A101s ay) owos2q pInoo Amqueiny Jo Aiois aqy voy ‘as)a [[8 240qE
sigoId azpuoud pun oo UNSING 10T S137UD i 2JUO0] 0 anunuos sioysiedo
JUpUY 770z W ¢ wioy dn ‘ggoz Aq mmmod *g( (o101 Jo 048 28N [[IAM 5109U30 mup
qaodar yusoar v 01 FuIp1oa0y "S19S RIBP UL suIARd pUlJ 0] S[apow sAnEdUaE Jururen
AB1eua jo junours ysea € spuads Yo IS1E] 2T ]V puz Rurum utontg Jo 25503

uimg a3 03 sURY) Juemmop aaow Fupmosd Ajuo sy agre] 18 ASnpul 121U80 mRp A
puy WS perowewy pue ‘eonrjod ‘feBay yim Auedmos ¢ jo jjua oyl B1E 0 ,mmutmk.o_u

[02F sieypo Aunm ‘eurw ayy Tunsajoad Kf@a1atr ase sjuapisar ATyquedr) aWos 910 M

“Ansnpur ogy weq oy spdwane armny Kue yusaed pue sisurwa joa301d

01 [[1q  SIATY ulnorg,, ® peudis Nug uasy rowmao vwoyein ‘KB u[ “seouBuIpIO
as10u I0 FUIUOZ [BIO] WOLJ $IUMI WOMTE 1dumaxa pinoaL Loy “LINOSET pUR BURIPU] UT
Buipnjour ‘sarmejst3ay aeis yFno sitq qend oy Ay s st Lnsnpur urmiw
WIOINE 9 pUY “RI0AR(] YHON PUR STSURNIY UT SYIITI0R] AU Paus)sTaar 1a0q savy
syuredwod |eatpaur T2y -

T ISEI] JE MOU 248 219 (SIBAA Ma 15B] 21y 10A0 A[dIeys

Ppasmalout sey *§'f) Ay ur suoneiado Surmm LNy S[E9s-|¥IIBWINIOD JO TAQIUNT Ay ]

[LEwa

TR 11 )01 £013 ‘$30URHIPIO 2S10T 21)S JUUAA[2I [[8 Giim souerdwios pue uoranpar
PUNOS T [ NSAT A[RIOAR] HIEITPUT SIOUBINOD UOISIAWINT Wo STUIpEaI PUNos (e
‘pa1mbar yoisuedys ou Wim ‘BUIf00d UDISTANNNT LA SISUIRIUOS pafoos-ain jo Kyitofew
3y paoB|dal 2ARY 01 PUIIT OM ‘$ZOT JO PUR A1 Aq,, “a)s 37 wogy sury As1ow o1y
20wl 0] FunyIos ST ey JN] L PIOT 10 ‘SIordwr T[eay naqe suonsanh 1amsie jou

PIP ‘out oy sumo e fueduoo sy sFuipjoy rendi vopeiepy 107 54

MaRaidar

*a[uas 28iv) © uD parselun pue 2arsuadxa 218 1o ur, Fupjoua uQIsIauIu,,
AUIpU]IUT 'SPOYIOUL PaiNa) KieT) JO WO Ing “suonnjos Smyooo paseq-prubiy ejanb

Janu A sury e poy  saniqioe} 1oy Suroujdal saa[oAut Yalym ‘Op ey sauo o)

107 XIJ (2RI 2 DARY A2} KB SIDPISUL ANSTPUT PUY S510U 23[TUI S181USD EYED [[B 10N

W11 I000E D qeIasim 180 { s1 At {ISAL] ‘S8a138 JO Junows ENOPUIWL]
& Juisnen dp)urgop st Buryy s1y g, “skes oofelg | “alou) UI0I] §][RQMOTS §i pue ‘0F1ioa

‘sapepeay Fumiad 91,004 o5 519a9| 1EI0S pug [050209 A SOSRAIAT 31 200S Ur ],

13

16



‘aotssaxdap puv “wersumuad Ly Yo0[q IRNILOUSADIIE A2THDD PIT)
s ﬂuﬁc:md:u seA o *aIo([[ Jayewnaond [rUIaNd IR Aq aate yday pu Jeridsoy ai) o1
paysna sea oy 'y seajdaals IoUR 12T 1IN0 aaed yeay s1 AIENIGI. U] "saER Yoy
1o wuepd a1 woly peod 2

ur Auaeay Suisof pelims pue Buidoofs paddoys oy sde
N s2aA1] oum 1018ed PRERL Plo-189K-, £ & $104 A11RT BWIPN[IUI-—EFIq J1aY) UF S10TAL)
1124 |45 UL N CXEW D1 03 SI2UONIPULY TIE PUE SUB] X1aY) dn Juruiny pue ‘opisut

Suyeasje ‘sooiod aeyy Fugeoea Aq uoIsTIur 31} 03 papuadsar sjuapisal IsI] 1V

&

‘saul] Kjunoo jsed pue

uonEjUE[d Weds] ANunwiurod pajed a1 ul 5951009 J108 Ysu] oy YInoiy eaL sosely
Furpuim Y} UMOP S3[IWI PAIROTF ASTOW Y| A} |1984 21 WOLY 5201 QAL OUYM SITIPTSAL
2WOIUI-MO] DY} JO AUBLI Jo S3WOY L9]181) 3yl Suneiqia “S1yBru sS3[pnojd YSnoIy pasaal
pue syj[em B0p UOOUISYE PAINSTOD I *3WITua 10l B US “Tomo[q Jra| B UL ‘0z) g
B OXI] PAPUNOS 2SIOU 3T “TO PAYIIAS 2TaM SATIYILW 21O S "ZZ1q SNOI0TA B FUHIWa
SAPURISIND PATINTD AT *SIaUTRIUCD 9} 0} suej 0 SpUBSNOT) poyarye siojeiado s aps

ST "SUYITUL 3Y) [00D 01 JapIe T "asToU o1y 03 apnjaid o 1snf sea ‘o suIng 31 350p 3y

“sAes ‘78 ‘Surumory
YOIN 124 100 [e 11 uanoF 1, Uanry 3y ISNP Ynm SISNOY I00 patake| 11., "PEOI 911 SSOIDE
P 243 UF pa[[BISuL 3q A}I[198] DATSSEW ) JO SIX0Y [BIAW MIT oY1 FURYIEM pIrk juol)

Ty UL 4Es Butumory FIUISILA PUR N SIUDPISOL AINQURID *770Z FUIIMP SITOW o,

‘pasnun 0f HSIMIANO plnom 18y 51005 popurns,, asn Apjsew

pInom L2y TRY1 pws pue sqof [220] pastiiold sIOUMo o1 T “mO[[O] Jopm @ uonriado
Aouannaoidiro v Jo Justudordasp o pasnidde unoy poof] Jo 1N07) SISUOLSSIILIIO)
o ‘puowt Furmoiog sy, ‘AousamooidLis 7 wiegayselq io [a1ms] 4, a1

2q U00S pInom SuXa] 18G) P23 N0qQY ‘s3s1Aqqol agy yitm Fuppaw soyy e8uryoxa
ur pred auam Lo1)3 1) papracad “1sanbai wodn o 1ats v} 9jqe siBwWoISND £3I0UD

MIJ AU JO 9UO B PINOM SIDULW SISLID ATIOUD FULINp 18y} pud ARIaus poveiaso
§.23€15 93 djoy pinom Ansnput 119yl 1Ry PAISTSUT dNOIE DU "UDISURNI S, I0TIA0E a1
Je qrauno)y weyaydo|g sexa] dnord Fuikqgol s pansat] 10qqy Fauny 10W0A00 ‘70T
12qo120 1f ‘suedniod Appustyy-mdLra poe ‘wegendar ey ‘sjuerd 2omod yuoid

0] AWIOY SBXI], UL PUNOY 20 meu ued Ansnpul FUruiur Uros)ig UsoLIswy a) o yan
1 Lp | AL TGO Sy LWy ot Jo U;

"ANUBAI UL UDI|[Iq 7§ PI0d2) & pajesaual Ansnpur Suurm ujvony

AU *2UOJE $TOT YIIBW JO YITOW Y} U] ‘2q0[F 3YI SS0I0E SULIES 1IAIOS AZIS-[RINSNpUL
a1e1ado ofm suonzIodIoD Je[op-uoif[iy Ju [(ypuey E £q PAJBUNIOP MOU ST AT)SPTI 1))
‘STI00IP3Q J13Y) JO 1IN0 FuLjIom USYO 5101813d0 D[OS 1A SIAUTI 18117 §,UT0NIE S|IY Ay

"A119111023[9 JO TINOWE FUISRIISUI-I0A0 PUR ASTATINT Ue sa1rnbol oeje wopsks sy g

"sajdope 91 0) yiRoAL pue ‘ss2uaIvy [e1ouLul ‘wopsaly Tutiq pinom
18 Aausimo [elrSip [2qo|E v poddns pinom mesLs mau st ey padoy siaitoddns 35y
$ur0alig] *0s SUlop JIof UI0o}Lq Yim PapIemal o1z pue ssavold agdvafordimn xeydmoo

€ y3nonp Gunadwe: Juasard oUm ‘sIoUMU se UMOUN PUOM 3yl punoie sfopysiem

14

17



Jeremy Lane / JohnPaul Baric

m:xx:somw Ir
404 AQ3INT N

:o: .>9a:m
MO| OU 3aJe aiday ]|

\

gy

R

Eocaé_usfa us
Pumen © i
o  Biqeagipnes
soleigpaun &
. &

Aemdon

(1202) #ueg pl2om ‘o

($50 Wasind) exde sod 4ao

u. 1gnday :mu_‘o
a% weupin
ey
.@.

peanos] eLdlS
eljewos

1MeH 1punng

uueg

epuemy

Jessebepepy
edoy
iy
eabin ueysiueybjy
euaqn
uooussLue)

sewuekyy YRS

ysope|bueg eanbjquiezoyy

P ueIsped

eyspifes

80~

WPy UonRW.OU| AB1aU3 SN [92n0S

() ende> 1ad onduwnsuod A3

15

18



WOODBURY COUNTY PLANNING & ZONING

620 Douglas Street, Sixth Floor, Sioux City, lowa 51101
712.279.6609 — 712.279.6530 (Fax)
Daniel J. Priestley, MPA — Zoning Coordinator Dawn Norton - Senior Clerk
dpriestley@woodburycountyiowa.gov dnorton@woodburycountyiowa.gov

REPORT - SEPTEMBER 24, 2024
THREE PRIVATE WIND TURBINES — CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT PROPOSAL

APPLICATION DETA "F PROPERTY DETAILS CONTENTS
Applicant(s)Owner(s) h&CKTaveHO ings Parcel(s): 884420300005

) Summary
Application Type: Condtional Use Permit Township/Range: (TV?I?JII\: grzletvkv) Aerial Map / Site Plan
Zoning District: Agricultural —
Tofal A %egzervation - 3edrlt°n. IZ\IOV f the SW Excerpt
ofal Acres: . uarter: % of the ; :
Current Use: Agricultural 114 Rev!ew Relqm.rements
Proposed Use: é\grlcugtural Wind Zoning District: | Agricultural Review Criteria
ower P f T :
Xre-lapptllcatbor; Weefing: /S\ug?St’ 50214 - (A(%;.erva on APP|IcatIO;1 Materials
Dplication Uate: eptember 1, in: i Legal Notification
Legal Nofice Dele: | Septener 21, 20 L " 92
Neighbor(s] Notice Dafe: | September 18, 2024 Property i 2p195th 5 Public Comments
_gtaatlé?holder(s} Notice September 4, 2024 Address: Movil, 1A 51 639 Stakeholder Comments
éongng Commission Sepfember 23, 2024 (Abutting Parcel) Supporting Information
Bview:
Board of Adjustment QOctober 7, 2024

Public Hearing:
E % g i EEe !o! !!! !!at! | !!e! !as !I e! a con!ltlona‘ use permit application !or t!e msta‘ ation an! use o! t!ree !!! !!!!!I

a Ings, a
wind turbines to reduce the eIectrl)::aI costs on the farm. The proposed locations are around 5.2 miles southeast of Moville which is on
the south side of 195 Street and east of Jasper Avenue. The property is located in the Agricultural Preservation (AP) Zoning District
and “Electric wind generator (Private use)” is classified as a “conditional use” in Section 3.03.4 of the Woodbury County Zoning
Ordinance which is eligible for review by the Zoning Commission and for consideration for approval by the Board of Adjustment for a
conditional use permit._This proposal has been properly noticed in the Sioux City Journals legal section on September 21, 2024. The
neighbors within 500 FT were duly notified via a September 18, 2024 letter about the October 7, 2024 Board of Adjustment public
hearing. Aﬁp(oprlate stakeholders including government agencies, utilities, and organizations have been requested to comment.
Based on the information received and the requirements set forth in the Zoning Ordinance, the proposal can meet the criteria for
approval of the conditional use Bermlt. The Zoning Commission voted 4-0 to recommend approval to the Board of Adjustment following
their review session on September 23, 2024.

SITE PLAN EXCERPT

AERIAL MAP

ZONING COMMISSION AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Based on the information received and the requirements set forth in the Zoning Ordinance, it is the opinion of staff that the proposal
can meet the criteria for approval of the conditional use permit.

The Zoning Commission voted 4-0 to recommend approval to the Board of Adjustment following their review session on September 23,
2024.




20



Minutes - Woodbury County Zoning Commission — September 23, 2024

The Zoning Commission (ZC) meeting was held on September 23, 2024 at 5:00 PM in the Board of Supervisors'
meeting room, located in the basement of the Woodbury County Courthouse at 620 Douglas Street, Sioux City, IA.
The meeting was also accessible via teleconference.

Meeting Audio:
For specific content of this meeting, refer to the recorded video on the Woodbury County Zening Commission
“Committee Page” on the Woodbury County website:
- County Website Link:
o https://iwww.woodburycountyiowa.gov/committees/zoning_commission/
- YouTube Direct Link:
o  https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=1mQwWufHt3x0

ZC Members Present:
Corey Meister, Chris Zellmer Zant, Tom Bride, Jeff Hanson

County Staff Present:
Dan Priestley, Dawn Norton

Public Present:
Dan Bittinger, Andy Bobrytzke, Joel Vos, Elbert Baker, Kathy Tabke, Brad Tabke, Jimmie Colyer

CALL TO ORDER:
Chair Chris Zant called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. Barb Parker was absent.

PUBLIC COMMENT ON MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA:
Priestley presented material about grain bins received from MidAmerican Energy. Bride made a motion to accept
the material into the record, which Hanscn seconded. The motion passed 4-0. See appendix.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:
Bride and Hanson were absent at the previous meeting and abstained from the vote. Bride moved to defer the
approval of the August 26, 2024 minutes, with Meister seconding. The moticn passed 4-0.

PUBLIC HEARING {ACTION ITEM): ZONING MAP AMENDMENT {REZONE) FROM AGRICULTURAL
PRESERVATION (AP} TO AGRICULTURAL ESTATES (AE) ZONING DISTRICT {PARCEL #884726200002):
Priestley read the staff report into the record. The Sandra K. Baker Revocable Trust (Applicant: Sandra K. Baker)
and Jimmie L. and Renee T. Colyer (Owners) submitted an application to rezone a 1.14-acre portion of property
(Parcel #884726200002) from the Agricultural Preservation (AP) District to the Agricultural Estates (AE) District.
This portion will be combined with Lot 1 of the Baker Acres subdivisicn through the Woodbury County Assessor's
combination process. A survey conducted by Al Fagan Land Surveying P.C. provides the legal description of the
land to be conveyed to the Sandra K. Baker Revocable Trust. This triangular 1.14-acre portion is not eligible for
development as a standalone lot, as it does not meet the requirements of the Zoning and Subdivision Ordinance. In
the purchase agreement, Baker acknowledges that the property being acquired is "not a legal lot for building
purposes" and must be combined with the adjacent parcel, Lot One (1) of Baker's Acres. The rezoning is requested
to match the zoning of Lot 1, facilitating the combination into a single parcel for tax purposes. This proposal was
properly noticed in the Sioux City Journal Legals Section on September 12, 2024. Neighbors within 1000 feet were
notified via a September 9 lefter about the public hearing on September 23, 2024, and stakeholders including
government agencies, utilities, and organizations have been requested to comment. No objections were received.
Staff recommends approval as the proposal meets the criteria for approval. Bride moved to close the public
hearing, seccnded by Hanson. The motion carried 4-0. Hanson then moved to approve the zoning erdinance map
amendment from AP to AE, with the condition that the portion be combined with Lot 1 of Baker's Acres subdivision,
seconded by Meister. The moticn carried 4-0, and the application will be forwarded to the Board of Supervisors.



PUBLIC HEARING {(ACTION ITEM): CONSIDERATION OF NUCLEAR ENERGY FACILITIES IN THE
WOODBURY COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE:

At the request of the Board of Supervisors, the Commission held a public hearing to discuss the potential
incorporaticn of nuclear energy facilities into the zening ordinance. No public comments were offered. This follows
the Board's directive on July 2, 2024, to explore nuclear energy as a county option. No formal proposals have been
submitted by companies, and few public comments have been received up to this point. Bride suggested seeking
input from MidAmerican Energy regarding future power sources, and a town hall meeting after the harvest season
was proposed to discuss nuclear energy with residents. Bride moved to revisit this topic next menth, seconded by
Hanson. The motion was approved 4-0.

REVIEW OF CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT APPLICATION (ACTION ITEM): INSTALLATION OF THREE 100-
FOOT WIND TURBINES {PARCEL #884420300005):

Priestley read the staff report into the record. L & K Tabke Holdings, LLC (Kathy Tabke) submitted a conditional use
permit application to install three 100-foot wind turbines to reduce electrical costs on the farm. The proposed
locations are approximately 5.2 miles southeast of Moville, on the south side of 195th Street and east of Jasper
Avenue. The property is located in the Agricultural Preservation (AP) Zoning District, where "Electric wind generator
(Private use)" is classified as a conditional use eligible for review by the Zoning Commission and consideration by
the Board of Adjustment. This proposal was properly noticed in the Sioux City Journal's legal section on September
21, 2024. Neighbors within 500 feet were notified via a September 18, 2024 |etter about the October 7, 2024 Board
of Adjustment public hearing. Stakeholders have been requested to comment. Based on the information received
and the requirements of the Zoning Ordinance, the proposal meets the criteria for approval. Bride emphasized that
the turbines are for private use. Priestley discussed setback concerns from other structures on the premises per the
zoning ordinance. The property owner assumes all risks for any malfunctions or tower collapses. Meister moved to
close the public hearing, seconded by Bride. The motion carried 4-0. Based on the information provided and zoning
criteria, Meister moved to recommend approval of the conditional use permit, seconded by Hanson. The motion
carried 4-0, and the application will be forwarded to the Board of Adjustment.

REVIEW OF CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT APPLICATION (ACTION ITEM): INSTALLATION OF 250-FOOT
WIRELESS COMMUNICATIONS TOWER (PARCEL #874720400004}):

Priestley read the staff report into the record. Andrew Bobrytzke, on behalf of American Towers LLC and the
Bradley J. Kobold Trust, has filed a conditional use permit application to construct a 250-foot self-support wireless
communications tower to replace an existing tower on Parcel #874720400004. The proposed location is about half
a mile west of Salix, on the north side of 260th Street and west of Barker Avenue. The parcel is located in the
General Industrial (Gl) Zoning District, where "telecommunication towers" are classified as conditional uses eligible
for review by the Zoning Commission and for consideration by the Board of Adjustment. This proposal was noticed
in the Sioux City Journal's legal section on September 21, 2024. Neighbors within one mile were notified via a
September 18, 2024 letter about the October 7, 2024 Board of Adjustment public hearing. Appropriate stakeholders
have been requested to comment. Based on the information received and zoning requirements, the proposal meets
the criteria for approval. Staff recommends approval. Hanson moved to close the public hearing, seconded by
Bride. Bride then moved to recommend approval of the tower construction and use on the specified parcel,
seconded by Meister. The moticn carried 4-0, and the application will be forwarded to the Board of Adjustment.

INFORMATION ITEM: CONSIDERATION OF DECOMMISSIONING REQUIREMENTS FOR CARBON
PIPELINES:

Priestley provided an update on the Board of Supervisors' August 27, 2024, decision to direct county staff to
explere decommissioning requirements for carbon pipelines as part of a new ordinance. While federal regulations
govern pipeline decommissioning, staff are reviewing local regulations from other counties and states. The Zoning
Commission and Board of Adjustment will be involved in researching and offering recommendations. Bride noted
that pipeline easements remain in place even if a pipeline is no longer in use.

STAFF UPDATE:

Priestley updated the Commission cn the proposed amendments to Ordinance 56, which regulates Commercial
Wind Energy Conversion Systems. He discussed the three-step public hearing process and referenced safety
information obtained from safety data sheets for a Nordex system submitted to the Ohic Public Utilities
Commission.

PUBLIC COMMENT ON MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA:
Ncne.



23



ONING ORDINANCE CRITERIA FOR BOARD APPROVAL

Conditional Use Permits are determined by a review of the following criteria by the Zoning Commission (ZC) and Board of Adjustment
(BOA). The ZC makes a recommendation to the BOA which will decide following a public hearing before the Board.

APPLICANT’S DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPOSED CONDITIONAL USE:

MAP DRAWN TO SCALE, SHOWING THE SUBJECT PROPERTY, ALL STRUCTURES AND OTHER IMPROVEMENTS, WITH THE
PROPOSED CONDITIONAL USE IDNTIFIED PER STRUCTURE OF IMPROVEMENT, PROVID BY ATTACHMENT

Attached.

CRITERIA 1: The conditional use requested is authorized as a conditional use in the zoning district within which the property is located
and that any specific conditions or standards described as part of that authorization have been or will be satisfied (Woodbury County
Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9).

APPLICANT RESPONSE:

STAFF ANALYSIS:

The Land Use Summary Table (Section 3.03.4) of the Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance includes the Agricultural Preservation (AP)
Zoning District as a location authorized for a conditional use pending review by the Zoning Commission and approval by the Board of
Adjustment.

CRITERIA 2: The proposed use and development will be in harmony with the general purpose and intent of this ordinance and the
goals, objectives and standards of the general plan (Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9).

APPLICANT RESPONSE:

STAFF ANALYSIS:

The proposed use of the three (3) wind turbines on the 100 FT support tower is compatible with the Woodbury County’s Comprehensive Plan 2040
including to “support landowners’ individual choices to implement renewable energy infrastructure for personal and private use” (p. 127).

(https:/lwww.woodburycountyiowa.govi/files/community_economic_development/woodbury_county_comprehensive_plan_2040_89417.pdf )

CRITERIA 3: The proposed use and development will not have a substantial or undue adverse effect upon adjacent property, the
character of the neighborhood, traffic conditions, parking, utility facilities, and other factors affecting the public health, safety and
general welfare (Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9).

APPLICANT RESPONSE:

STAFF ANALYSIS:

Based on the site plan and information presented, this project does not appear to have significant impacts on adjacent properties
including the character of the neighborhood, traffic conditions, parking, utilities facilities, and other factors affecting public health, safety,
and the general welfare of the public.

CRITERIA 4: The proposed use and development will be located, designed, constructed and operated in such a manner that it will be
compatible with the immediate neighborhood and will not interfere with the orderly use, development and improvement of surrounding
property (Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9).

APPLICANT RESPONSE:




STAFF ANALYSIS:

There does not appear to be significant impacts to the immediate neighborhood including impacts to the orderly use, development and
improvement of surrounding property.

CRITERIA 5: Essential public facilities and services will adequately serve the proposed use or development (Woodbury County Zoning
Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9).

APPLICANT RESPONSE:

STAFF ANALYSIS:
The property owner(s) will need to work out the details with the local utility in terms of their respective interconnection agreement.

CRITERIA 6: The proposed use or development will not result in unnecessary adverse effects upon any significant natural, scenic or
historic features of the subject property or adjacent properties (Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9).

APPLICANT RESPONSE:

There are no nearby natural, scenic or historic 'features‘
STAFF ANALYSIS:
There does not appear to be any significant impact determined.

OTHER CONSIDERATION 1: The proposed use or development, at the particular location is necessary or desirable to provide a service
or facility that is in the public interest or will contribute to the general welfare of the neighborhood or community (Woodbury County
Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9).

STAFF ANALYSIS:
This proposed conditional use is an optional feature that has been added to the property for the benefit of the property owner(s).

OTHER CONSIDRATION 2: All possible efforts, including building and site design, landscaping and screening have been undertaken to
minimize any adverse effects of the proposed use or development (Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9).

STAFF ANALYSIS:

The appearance of a private wind turbine tower speaks for itself. At a height of 100 FT, there likely is no level of building, site design,
landscaping, and screening available to conceal its effects.




APPLICATION












12

30



13

31



14

32



15

33



16

34



17

35



18

36



19

37



20

38



21

39



22

40



23

41



24

42



LEGAL NOTIFICATION

BOA_Tower_Turbine_10-7-24 - Page 1 of 1

25 43



PROPERTY OWNER(S) NOTIFICATION

Property Owners within 500 Feet: 7

Notification Letter Date: September 18, 2024

Public Hearing Board: Board of Adjustment

Public Hearing Date: October 7, 2024, 6:00 PM

Phone Inquiries: 2 (Anthony Ashley, Jeanette M. Kummer)
Written Inquiries: 0

The names of the property owners are listed below.

When more comments are received after the printing of this packet, they will be provided at the meeting.

PROPERTY OWNER(S) MAILING ADDRESS COMMENTS

Kathy J. Tabke Revocable Trust & | 3112 195th Street Moville IA 51039-8120 No comments received.

Lane D. Tabke Revocable Trust

L & K Tabke Holdings LLC 3112 195th St. Moville IA 51039-8120 No comments received.

Delbert D. Spink Revocable Trust 16796 Birchview Road Park Rapids MN | 56470 No comments received.

2B, LLC C/O Greg Brandt 839 Meadow Dr. Moville IA 51039 No comments received.

Jeanette M. Kummer 1977 Jasper Ave. Moville 1A 51039-8191 Phone inquiry: asked about location of the turbines relative to her
propriety and height. Had no objections (9/24/24).

Todd Tabke 34679 C70 Kingsley IA 51028 No comments received.

Anthony Ashley 3346 170th St. Correctionville | 1A 51016 Phone Inquiry: question about the CUP process for private

turbine. (9/16/24).

STAKEHOLDER COMMENTS

911 COMMUNICATIONS CENTER:

No comments received.

FIBERCOMM:

No comments received.

IOWA DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES (IDNR):

No comments received.

IOWA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (IDOT):

No comments received.

LOESS HILLS NATIONAL SCENIC BYWAY:

No comments received.

LOESS HILLS PROGRAM: No comments received.
LONGLINES: No comments received.
LUMEN: No comments received.
MAGELLAN PIPELINE: No comments received.

MIDAMERICAN ENERGY COMPANY (Electrical Division):

| have reviewed the attached proposal for MEC electric and we have no conflicts. — Casey Meinen,

9/4/24.

MIDAMERICAN ENERGY COMPANY (Gas Division):

No comments received.

NATURAL RESOURCES CONSERVATION SERVICES (NRCS):

No comments received.

NORTHERN NATURAL GAS:

No comments received.

NORTHWEST IOWA POWER COOPERATIVE (NIPCO):

Have reviewed this zoning request. NIPCO has no issues with this request. — Jeff Zettel, 9/10/24.

NUSTAR PIPELINE:

No comments received.

SIOUXLAND DISTRICT HEALTH DEPARTMENT:

No comments received.

WIATEL:

No comments received.

WOODBURY COUNTY ASSESSOR:

No comments received.

WOODBURY COUNTY CONSERVATION:

No comments received.

WOODBURY COUNTY EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT:

No comments received.

WOODBURY COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES:

No comments received.

WOODBURY COUNTY ENGINEER:

No comments received.

WOODBURY COUNTY RECORDER:

No comments received.

WOODBURY COUNTY RURAL ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE (REC):

No comments received.

WOODBURY COUNTY SOIL AND WATER CONSERVATION
DISTRICT:

The WCSWCD has no comments regarding this application. — Neil Stockfleth, 9/5/24.

WOODBURY COUNTY TREASURER:

No comments received.

44




PICTOMETRY

27 45



PARCEL REPORT(S

28 46



29

47



SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA (SFHA) MAP

30 48



ELEVATION MAP

SOIL REPORT(S

31 49



SOIL MAP(S)

32

50




OWNERS MANUAL RECEIVED ON SEPTEMBER 25, 2024 AFTER A
STAFF REQUEST — NOT INCLUDED WITH ORIGINAL ZONING
COMMISSION MATERIALS

33 51



Owner's Manual Bergey EXCEL 15 Turbine

Contents
[ INTRODUGTION. ... e e e e e 4
[I. EXCEL 15 SPECIFICATIONS ... e 5
. SYSTEM DESCRIPTION ..o 6
AL SPINNER L e 7
B. ROTOR SYSTEM ... et 7
C.  ALTERNATOR .. et e e 7
D.  MAINFRAME ... ... e e 7
E. BACK-UP BRAKING ... e 7
F. TAIL ASSEMBLY ..o et 8
G.  SLIP-RING ASSEMBLY ... e e 8
H.  YAW BEARING ASSEMBLY ..ot et 8
. POWERSYNC HINVERTER ..ottt 8
V.  SYSTEM OPERATION. ... 9
A. NORMAL OPERATION .. ...ttt et 9
B. HIGH WINDS ..ot e e e e 10
C. PROBLEMSWITHPOWER GRID........oooiiiiii e 10
D. EMERGENCY SHUTDOWN ..ot 10
E. BACK-UP BRAKING SYSTEM ..ottt 11
V. POWERSYNC I INVERTER. ... 12
A INVERTER SPECIFICATIONS ...t 13
B. OtherSpecifications ... 13
C. Important Inverter Safety Instructions ... 14
D. INSEANALION ... e s 15
1. DIMEBNSIONS . .ottt et e e e e e e e e e e 15
2. o To% 111 o o 15
3. MOUNEING e e e e e 16
4. Electrical Connections ... 16
5  AC Output ConnecCtion ........ueie e 17
6.  AC Input Connection {Turbine) ... e 17
7. Earth Ground Connection ... 17
8. Fuse replacement ... ... 18

34

52



Owner's Manual Bergey EXCEL 15 Turbine

9. Connection exampPle .. ... 18
E. Inverter Operation ... e 19
F. Touch Screen Display ... 19
G.  Inverter Fault Codes. ... 22
VI, TURBINE INSTALLATION ..o 24
A, BWC EXCEL WIND TURBINE and TOWER.........ccccccccciiiiiiii e 24
B. FUSED DISCONNECT SWITCH ... 25
C. WIRERUNANDWIRE SIZES ... 25
D. POWERSYNC HINVERTER.......ooiiiiiiiiii it 25
VII.  INSPECTIONS AND MAINTENANCE..........coo i 27
VIIl.  Trouble-Shooting Prablems .. ... ..o 29
DX APPENAIX o e e 32
Page 3

35

53



Owner's Manual Bergey EXCEL 15 Turbine

. INTRODUCTION

This manual contains important information concerning your Bergey EXCEL 15 wind
turbine system and its operational characteristics. We strongly recommend that you
read and familiarize yourself with its contents.

At several points in this manual items of special interest or significant impact are
hinhlinhtad hyv nna f the fallowina indicatare:

Each Bergey EXCEL 15 wind turbine has a serial number located on the tower adapter.
The turbine serial number can also be found on the outside of the shipping crate and on
the warranty registration card. The blade serial numbers are located on the root pad
and also the shipping crate. We recommend that the serial number be copied to this
manual for possible future reference.

Bergey EXCEL 15 Serial No.:

Bergey EXCEL 15 Blades Serial Numbers:

The Powersync Il inverter has a serial number label on its right side. We recommend
that this serial number also be copied to this manual.

Powersync Il Serial No.:

Page 4

36 54



Owner's Manual Bergey EXCEL 15 Turbine

Il. EXCEL 15 SPECIFICATIONS

PERFORMANCE

START-UP WIND SPEED 9 mph (4 m/s)

CUT-IN WIND SPEED 6 mph (2.5 m/s)

RATED WIND SPEED 24.6 mph (11 m/s)

AWEA RATED POWER (at 11 m/s or 25 mph) | 15.6 kW

AWEA ANNUAL ENERGY (at 5 m/s average 29,800 kWh

CUT-OUT WIND SPEED none

MAXIMUM DESIGN WIND SPEED 134 mph (60m/s)

MAXIMUM POWER 22.6 kW

ROTOR SPEED 0-15C RPM

MECHANICAL

TYPE 3-Blade Upwind, Horizontal-Axis
ROTOR DIAMETER 31.517 (9.2 m)

WEIGHT 1,400 Ib. (636 kg)

GEARBOX none

BLADE PITCH CONTROL none

OVERSPEED PROTECTION Blade stall

TEMPERATURE RANGE -40 to 140 deg. F (-40 to 60 deg. C)

37




Owner's Manual Bergey EXCEL 15 Turbine

lll. SYSTEM DESCRIPTION

The Bergey EXCEL 15 is an upwind horizontal-axis wind turbine designed for
distributed generation applications, connected to the power grid on the customer’s side
of the utility meter. The complete unit consists of the following major components, as
shown in the figure below:

1. Spinner 6. Tail Assembly
2 PrwerFlay® Ratar Rladea 7 Klin-Rinne

Page 6

38

56



Owner's Manual Bergey EXCEL 15 Turbine

A. SPINNER

The spinner (nose cone) is purely cosmetic.

B. ROTOR SYSTEM

The rotor system consists of three high-technology carbon-fiber PowerFlex® blades.
Acting like aircraft wings, the blades convert the energy of the wind into rotational forces
that drive the alternator. The PowerFlex® blades are rigidly attached to the alternator
and they are fixed pitch. The Excel 15 rotor blades have proprietary airfoils, which were
custom designed to provide high efficiency and low noise.

Each blade has a serial number inscribed on its root pad at the inboard end.

C. ALTERNATOR

The alternator converts the rotational energy of the rotor into electricity. The alternator
utilizes permanent magnets and has an inverted configuration in that the outside
housing rotates, while the internal windings are stationary. It was specifically designed
for the Bergey EXCEL 15 and produces power at low speeds, eliminating the need for a
speed- mcreasmg gearbox Since it uses permanent magnets, the alternator is

mannarabna vualbama b anniiae Hha ratae ino hienine

E. BACK-UP BRAKING

The back-up braking system is an added safety system that prevents rotor overspeed in
the event of a failure of the primary speed control system (inverter and dump load).

Page 7

39 57



Owner's Manual Bergey EXCEL 15 Turbine

F. TAIL ASSEMBLY

The tail assembly keeps the rotor aligned into the wind.

G. SLIP-RING ASSEMBLY

The slip-rings and brushes conduct the electricity generated in the alternator from the
moving (as it orients with the direction) wind turbine to the fixed tower wiring. The slip-
rings are enclosed in the steel mainframe housing to help protect them from the weather
and lightning.

H. YAW BEARING ASSEMBLY

The yaw bearing assembly allows the turbine to freely align itself to the wind direction.

. POWERSYNC Ill INVERTER

The Powersync Il inverter converts the “variable AC” from the Bergey EXCEL 15
turbine into utility grade electricity so that it can be connected to the wiring in your home
or business. This conversion requires sophisticated electronics and is designed to
operate automatically. The Powersync Il has a digital display that provides information
on the status of the system, its current output power, and its cumulative energy
production.

The system also includes an auxiliary load bank that absorbs excess wind energy
during strong wind gusts.

Page 8

40

58



Owner's Manual Bergey EXCEL 15 Turbine

IV. SYSTEM OPERATION

A. NORMAL OPERATION

The Bergey EXCEL 15 produces utility compatible power in the form of 240VAC, 60 Hz,
single phase electricity (other voltage options are available). It is connected through the
Powersync® Il inverter to the utility distribution network in the same manner as
household appliances or electrical machinery. When the wind speed is too low to
operate the wind turbine, all of the electrical power needed for the home or business will
be supplied by the utility company. During these idle periods the Powersync® Il will
consume approximately 0.3 kilowatt-hours of electricity per day.

When the system begins producing power, the amount of power which must be
purchased from the utility is reduced by an amount equal to the output of the wind
system. From the perspective of the utility company the wind system output reduces
the electrical load they have to supply, just as if you turned off lights and appliances.
The output of the wind system fluctuates with the speed of the wind so the
instantaneous amount of electricity being saved will be constantly changing. Quite often
your home will be served simultanecusly by the utility and your Bergey wind turbine.

When the output of the wind system exceeds the power requirements of the house the
excess electricity is sent back to the utility. Both the consumer’s right to interconnect a
wind system and the utilities obligation to purchase excess power are prescribed by
federal law (PURPA, Section 210). The amount you will be credited or paid for this
excess production varies state-to-state and sometimes utility-to-utility. If your utility
company offers “net metering” then your meter is allowed to turn backwards so that you
essentially bank energy, at full value, for less windy periods. This banking can be done
over a month or over a year depending on the policy of your state or your utility. If you
do not get “net metering” then you will have a second utility meter to register excess
production and your utility will pay or credit you for this, typically at less than the rate
you pay when you purchase their electricity.

If your utility experiences an outage (blackout) the wind system will cease to produce
power so that it does not present an electrical safety hazard to utility repair crews.
During a power outage the Excel 15 turbine will come to a stop. When utility power is
restored, the Powersync Il will automatically return the wind system to full working
status following a five minute delay and then a two minute countdown. These time
delays are dictated in the UL standards required by the utilities.

The rotor of the EXCEL 15 should begin to rotate when the wind speed reaches
approximately 9 mph {4 m/s). Once started, the rotor may continue to turn in winds

below 5 mph (2.2 m/s), but the system will not be producing power below this wind
speed.

Page 9

41 59



Owner's Manual Bergey EXCEL 15 Turbine

NOTE All operational wind speeds given assume steady winds,
sea-level conditions and moderate temperatures. Hot
weather, high altitude, turbulence and gusting winds will
reduce system performance.

NOTE The Excel 15 may exhibit poor start-up performance in light
steady winds. The design of the blades is optimized for
efficiency and storm protection, which necessitated some
sacrifice in start-up characteristics.

The rotor speed will increase with increasing wind speed and the system will produce a
higher output. This output increases rapidly because the energy available in the wind
varies as the third power (cube) of the wind speed. For example, if the wind speed
increased form 5 mph to 10 mph, a factor of two, the energy in the wind would increase
from one unit to eight units, a factor of eight (2 to the 3" power). One result of this
relationship is that there is very little energy available in light winds. For the average
site, winds in the range of 12-20 mph (5.5 — 9 m/s) will provide most of the system’s
energy production on an annual basis.

The Excel 15 will operate at variable speed up to about 20 mph (9 m/s) and about 150
RPM. The speed of the rotor is contralled to limit at about 150 RPM.

B. HIGH WINDS

Unlike previous Bergey wind turbines, the Excel 15 does not furl {rotor turned away from
the wind). The Excel 15 controls speed and protects itself from high winds by stalling
the rotor progressively as wind speeds increase. In sustained high winds the rotor
speed is reduced to limit power surges during strong gusts.

C. PROBLEMS WITH POWER GRID

If an abnormal condition occurs on the utility line, such as a voltage fluctuation or a
complete interruption, the Powersync Il inverter will automatically disconnect the wind
turbine from the power grid and bring the rotor to a stop.

D. EMERGENCY SHUTDOWN

The Bergey EXCEL 15 is designed for unattended operation over an extended period of
time. Exceptional situations may occur, however, in which the wind turbine should be
shutdown. These situations include:

1. EXCESSIVE VIBRATION - Uneven ice build-up, ice shedding, or blade damage may cause
the wind turbine to experience excessive vibration. Always shut the turbine down as soon as
an increase in vibration is detected. Any new or excessive vibration in the turbine when ice is
not present should be investigated immediately.

2. UNUSUAL SOUND - If the turbine begins making clinking, growling, or other unusual sound it

Page 10

42 60



It will automatically reset if the wind drops below 2 m/s (4.5 mph). Otherwise, you can
manually restart the turbine by activating and then restoring the Emergency Stop button
on the Powersync Il inverter.

If activation of the Back-up Brake occurs repeatedly we strongly recommend that you
contact your dealer or the Service Department at BWC.

Page 11

43 61



Owner's Manual Bergey EXCEL 15 Turbine

V. POWERSYNC Ill INVERTER

The Powersync lll inverter is connected to the household or building electrical circuits
through a dedicated circuit breaker. Before opening the Powersync Il enclosure, the
breaker must be turned off and the turbine Emergency Stop must be activated, to avoid
electrical shock.

In normal operation the Powersync Il will show the status as “Running” and will display
the instantaneous Output Power in Watts.

Page 12

44

62



Owner's Manual
A. INVERTER SPECIFICATIONS

Input — From Turhine

Bergey EXCEL 15 Turbine

Input Voltage Maximum (3 Phase Input) 480 VAC
Input Start Voltage Minimum 270 VAC
Input Operating Voltage Range 270 to 480 VAC
Input Frequency Maximum 47 Hz
Input Current Maximum 34 Amps
QOutput — To Utility
Model PSII-240 PSIII-208
Continuous Output Power Maximum 22600 W 18800 W
Continuous Output Power Tolerance +10%
Qutput Voltage Nominal (Single Phase) Line-Line 240 VAC 208 VAC
Operating Voltage Range Line-Line 212-264 184-228
Qutput Voltage Nominal (Single Phase) Line-Neutral | 120 VAC
Operating Voltage Range Line-Neutral 106-132 VAC
Continuous Qutput Current Maximum 90 Amps
Continuous Qutput Current Tolerance 1+ 10%
Voltage Measurement Tolerance + 10 VAC
Operating Frequency Nominal 60 Hz
Operating Frequency Range 59.31060.5 Hz
Operating Frequency Measurement Tolerance +05Hz
Quiput Power Factor 0.95 £ 0.05
Temperature Range Normal Operation -4°F to 113°F (-20°C fo 45°C)
Quiput Over-Current Protection Maximum 100 Amps
Synchronization In-Rush Current Maximum 6.3 Amps
Utility Interconnection Trip Time 100 msec
Time Measurement Tolerance + 85 msec

B. Other Specifications

Dimensions 32.27Hx 24.3"W x 98" D
817 x 607 x 230 mm

Weight 153 Ibs. / 64 Kg

Enclosure NEMA Type 1

NEMA 1 indicates that the enclosure is constructed for indoor use only. It provides
protection to personnel against incidental contact with the enclosed equipment.

45

Page 13

63



Owner's Manual Bergey EXCEL 15 Turbine

C. Important Inverter Safety Instructions

SAVE THESE INSTRUCTIONS

This manual contains important instructions for Models PSIII-240 and PSIII-208
that shall be followed during installation and maintenance of the inverter.

The output field wiring terminal can be used for connection of a maximum of:
One 1/0 AWG wire per terminal (1 wire for each line)

The input field wiring terminal can be used for connection of a maximum of:
One 2 AWG wire per terminal (1 wire per phase per terminal provided).

The field-wiring terminals shall be connected using the following wire types:

Copper Conductors Only (Input connection)
Use No. 8 - 2 AWG, 90 °C copper wire only

Copper, Aluminum or Copper-Clad Aluminum Conductors Only (Output connection)L|
Use No. 6 — 1/0 AWG, 90 °C Copper Conductors
Use No. 4 — 1/0 AWG, 90 °C Copper Clad Aluminum, or Aluminum Conductors.

The following symbols are used as markings on this product with the following meanings:

Equipment grounding conductor — @

This inverter is intended for operation in an indoor NEMA 1 compatible environment having
a maximum ambient temperature of 45° C {(113° F).

This unit or system is provided with fixed trip limits and shall
not be aggregated above 30 kW on a single Point of Common Connection

CAUTION

To reduce the risk of fire, connect only to a circuit provided with 100 amperes maximum
branch-circuit over-current protection in accordance with the National Electrical Code,
ANSI/NFPA 70.

Hot surfaces — To reduce the risk of burns — Do not touch
ﬂ The enclosure and the rear heatsink can exceed 70° C (150° F).

Note that the input and output circuits are isolated from the enclosure. In accordance with
Clause 15.2.1.1 of CAN/CSA-C22.2 No. 107.1, system grounding, when required by the
Canadian Electrical Code, Part I, is the responsibility of the installer.

Page 14

46

64



Owner's Manual

D. Installation
1. Dimensions
T [°]

47

Bergey EXCEL 15 Turbine

65



Owner's Manual Bergey EXCEL 15 Turbine

The inverter will automatically shut down if the temperature is below -20°C (-4°F).
Protect from extreme cold exposure if this is undesirable.
Enclosure ventilation is to be provided such that the following guidelines are
satisfied.

o Provide a minimum of 12 inches clearance to the bottom air inlet filters.

o Provide a minimum of 6 inches clearance to the outlet side vents.

o Use in a well-ventilated area within the maximum ambient temperature

rating.

If the inverter is installed in a small structure or out building, the structure must be
provided with top and bottom venting of at least 100 square inches at each
opening.

. Mounting

The enclosure, having a NEMA 1 rating, is designed for indoor installation.

The enclosure is provided with four mounting feet with 0.281" dia. mounting
holes.

For mounting to a 0.10” thick metal surface, use M8, %4-20 or %4-28 bolts grade 3
or higher with nuts and flat washers.

For mounting to concrete, use M6 or %4 bolts using concrete anchors with an 800
pound or greater tension rating.

The required bolt length is such that the internal threads need to be 100%
engaged.

The enclosure is to be oriented with the conduit openings facing toward the floor.

48

66



Owner's Manual

5. AC Output Connection

Bergey EXCEL 15 Turbine

s The AC outputis single phase and not bonded to ground.
¢ Connect the two single phase 240VAC or 208VAC wires from the distribution
panel to the dual fuse block located on the lower left side of the enclosure.

« Tightening torque,
allowable wire size,

and type, for the
Field-Wiring
Terminals:

s 6 AWG to a maximum

of 1/0 AWG for

Interconnection and Fuse Locaction Diagram

208/240VAC QUTPUT

Wire Slze Requlrements

No. 6 1o 1/0 AWG, 90°C Copper

No. 4 to 1/0 AWG, 90°C Copper,
Clad Aluminum, or Aluminum

Torque: 100 Ib. in.

TURBINE INPUT

Wire Size Requirements

No. 8 fo 2 AWG, 90°C Copper

Torgue 50 Ib. in.

Copper Conductors Copper Conguctors Only
Onl (3) OUTPUT FUSES
n y Class T
: 80A, 300VAC
4 AWG to a maximum (%) PRE-CHARGE FUSES

Of 1 /O AWG fOI' % Class CC Time Delay
. 2.5A, B0OVAC
Aluminum Or Copper- 0 F] (5) GROUND
Clad Alumln um @ Q(‘D! Ea/ @ WARNING: For Continued Prolection
Against Risk Of Fire, Replace Only With
\?Vond UCtO(;SggonCIy Same Type And Ratings Of Fuse.
. ire rate
minimum

~

100 Ibf-in tightening torque maximum

AC Input Connection (Turbine)

Connect the three phase turbine wires to the terminal block located on the lower
right side of the enclosure.

The inverter's wind turbine input must be connected to a 3-phase “delta” or “wye”
connection with the neutral not connected to earth ground (left floating).

The inverter must be provided with 3, UL listed fuses rated, 400 VAC minimum,
50 Amp maximum for proper protection from the wind turbine input to the unit as
well as an appropriate UL listed fuse holder to accommodate the fuses.
Tightening torque, allowable wire size, and type, for the Field-Wiring Terminals:
50 Ibf-in tightening torque

8 AWG - to a maximum of 2 AWG for Copper Conductors Only

Wire rated 90°C minimum.

Earth Ground Connection

Earth ground is to be connected to the two terminals provided inside the
enclosure indicated by the earth ground equipment marking.

Allowable wire size range is 8 AWG — 4 AWG.

50 Ibf-in tightening torque

The inverter's earth ground connections available on both the input and output
terminals must be bonded directly to the service entrance’s earth ground which in
turn is bonded to neutral. With a second bond, the inverter's earth ground

Page 17

49 67



Owner's Manual Bergey EXCEL 15 Turbine

connection must be bonded directly to the tower disconnect ground lug which in
turn is bonded to the tower’s ground rod.

* The input and output circuits are isolated from the enclosure. System grounding
when required by the Canadian Electrical Code, Part |, is the responsibility of the
installer.

8. Fuse replacement

« Warning: For continued protection against risk of fire, replace only with same
type and ratings of fuse.

+ Two output fuses are located in the dual fuse block on the lower left side of the

enclosure.

Class T 80A, 300VAC

Two pre-charge fuses are located on the Input/Qutput PCB board.

Class CC Time Delay, 2.5A, 600VAC

Three input fuses are located in a separate fuse box provided by the installer.

Fuse type may vary, but must be UL listed fuses rated, 400 VAC minimum, 50

Amp maximum

9. Connection example

240%ac Split-phase connection

— |
[ WWind Turkine

240 Vac Uity Connection ghming
— 1 PowerSync Il ﬂ_l_l. [ Dump Load I

Surge arrestors are not required but are recommended. Mo lightning
protection sysiem provides complate protection. Lightning damane ks not
covared under your warranty  Contact your distributer ar DT1 for application
specific lightning surge suppression solutions.

As typically the tallest structure in the area, lightning damage is a concern to most
inverter customers; especially those customers in areas with frequent cloud to ground
lighting. BWC’s warranty does not cover lightning damage to the inverter. A direct
lightning strike can easily be in excess of 100kV at 100kA. Proper grounding of the
turbine to the tower and running the input wires down the tower in grounded metal

Page 18

50



Owner's Manual Bergey EXCEL 15 Turbine

conduit will take care of most of this energy. The standard inverter is capable of
withstanding input line to ground surges of about 6kV at 3kA. Contact your distributor or
BWC for application specific lightning surge suppression solutions.

E. Inverter Operation

This equipment is a UL 1741 certified’ Utility Interactive Inverter and complies with the
requirements of IEEE1547 which is the standard for interconnecting distributed
resources with electric power systems. It will not operate in an off-grid or backup power
configuration.

The normal operation of the inverter is as follows: When single phase utility power is
applied to the output of the inverter, the display will power up and a message stating
that the unit is initializing is shown. If there are no faults, i.e. grid voltage and frequency
are in tolerance, a countdown timer set for 5 minutes (300 seconds) starts before the
inverter is ready to transfer power to the utility grid. The inverter will automatically
transfer power to the utility when AC voltages in the range of 30VAC to 600VAC are
present at the Turbine input.

As the heatsink heats up after exporting significant power for a period of time the
internal cooling fans will activate. The inverter is be able to operate at full power
continuously if provided with adequate ventilation and the local ambient temperature
stays below 45°C (113°F). If the ventilation is compromised or the heatsink temperature
exceeds 60°C, the inverter will automatically reduce its output power.

F. Touch Screen Display

The touch screen display located on the front panel of the enclosure provides manual
over-ride and status of the inverter's operation. The touch screen display also provides
a Stop and a Reset button. The Stop button is used when it is desired to disconnect the
inverter from the power grid and the wind turbine. After Stop is pressed the inverter will
remain in a powered-up stand-by mode until Reset is pressed or Grid voltage is
removed. When Reset is pressed the inverter will resume normal operation.

The status of the inverter’s operation is shown on the lines one and two of the display.
The following table lists the status messages that may appear.

Status Message Description
Waiting The inverter has been reset or that the 5 minute countdown delay
Initializing is in progress
Waiting The voltage from the turbine is lower than the factory set auto-
For Wind start voltage threshold
AC Running The active rectifier is regulating the internal DC Boost voltage
Running The inverter is transferring power to the utility grid
Fault A fault has occurred. See fault messages
T Pending
Page 19
51 69



Owner's Manual

Bergey EXCEL 15 Turbine

Manual Stop
Press Reset

The manual stop button has been pressed

Fault Limit
Press Reset

Three faults have occurred in an hours time

Disconnected

Indicates that a communication prablem exists between the
display and the inverter. Check for bad cable connection.

OV Power Limit

The inverter has detected that the output voltage is approaching
the over voltage limit and is reducing its output to compensate for
the less than ideal current carrying ability of grid connection.

Using the Up and DOWN arrows you can scroll through the additional Powersync Il
information available, as shown below.

Parameter Description
Grid Voltage Magnitude of the connected single phase grid voltage
Grid Frequency Frequency of the connected single phase grid voltage
Bus Voltage Magnitude of the DC link bus voltage
DC Current Averaged value of the DC current
Turbine Volts Averaged value of the rectified DC voltage from the Input

Quiput Power

Qutput power displayed in Watts

Accumulated Energy

Output Energy (kW hours) accumulated over time of operation

VREF Used for factory/installer setup
IREF Used for factory/installer setup
Displays the last fault that occurred since the inverter was
Last Fault powered up along with a fault code that may be useful when

troubleshooting.

Unit Code Rev

Indicates the firmware revision of the control DSP

Disp Code Rev

Indicates the firmware revision of the LCD display DSP

A hidden feature of the display is the contrast adjustment.

The right side of the display

has invisible up and down arrows that can be used to increase and decrease the

contrast of the display.

Grid Voltage

This the voltage measured line to line on the output of the inverter. The voltage must be
between 212 to 264Vac (184 to 228Vac for 208V units) for the inverter to operate. The
line to neutral voltage is important as well, although it is not reported on the LCD

screen.

Grid Frequency

It must be between 106 and 142Vac for both 240V and 208V units.

This is the frequency of the grid and determined by the utility. The frequency must be
between 59.4 and 60.4 Hz for the inverter to operate.

Page 20

52

70



Owner's Manual Bergey EXCEL 15 Turbine

Bus Voltage

This is the voltage of the boosted DC link bus that is used to generate the output sine
wave. This voltage should stay between 200 and 570 Vdc but will not trip off until it
reaches 680Vdc.

Auxiliary Load Current
This is the current going to the auxiliary load to control the speed of the turbine.

Turbine Volts

This is the DC voltage of the input measured after the 3-phase AC input is rectified.
The inverter will begin exporting power when this voltage exceeds 85Vdc. This voltage
should never exceed 690Vdc.

Vdc =Vac* 1.41

Output Power

This is how much real power in Watts the inverter is currently producing or consuming if
it is waiting for wind. Standby power while waiting for wind is about -10W. This
measurement is not completely accurate and may not agree with an external meter.

Accumulated Power

This is how much real power the inverter has produced or consumed since it was last
calibrated at BWC. This measurement is not completely accurate and may not agree
with an external meter.

VREF

VREF is the input rectified voltage as a raw value. VREF =Vdc * 2.52.

Vref is used as an index look-up into a virtual table used for a customizable 32 point
power curve table.

IREF

IREF is the current request in counts for a given DC input voltage tracked by VREF.
Using this configuration the inverter can be adjusted to provide any power curve
required. IREF =Idc*9

Last Fault
Fault messages are displayed when a fault occurs and when the last fault parameter is
selected. The following table is a list of possible faults that may be displayed.

Page 21

53 7"



Owner's Manual Bergey EXCEL 15 Turbine

G. Inverter Fault Codes

Fault

Fault Message Code

Description

IGBT or control logic fault. An occurrence of this
fault requires that the unit be completely powered
down to reset it. Frequent code 10 faults indicate
that the unit should be returned to BWC for service.
The DC Bus voltage has exceeded its maximum
threshold. This occurs if the input power exceeds
DC OVER VOLT 1 | 1000 | the output power. This may occur in exceptionally
high winds especially if the OV Power limit is active
or temperature throttling is occurring.

The DC Input voltage has exceeded its maximum
DC OVER VOLT 2 | 1500 | threshold. This may occur in exceptionally high wind
conditions.

The internal DC Boost voltage has dropped below its
DC UNDER VOLT | 1250 | minimum threshold. This usually indicates a
configuration problem and is normally never seen.
The AC line voltage has exceeded its maximum
threshold. This occurs if OV limiting was not able to
influence the high grid voltage. If this happens
routinely consider increasing the output wire gage or
making arrangements with the utility to upgrade their
distribution transformer.

The AC line voltage has dropped below its minimum
threshold. It is normal to see this when the inverter
AC UNDER VOLT | 2280 | has been disconnected from the grid. It may also
occur momentarily when large equipment is turned
on nearby.

Indicates that there is a problem with one or more of
the turbine input phases. Bad connection, shorted or
TURBINE PHASE | 2500 | missing phase. When the inverter detects excessive
ripple on the DC input, it shuts down to protect the
turbine from destructive vibration.

Phase A line current sensed by the converter module
has exceeded its maximum current threshold. This
may indicate that current is retuming on the earth
ground wire.

Phase C line current sensed by the converter
module has exceeded its maximum current
threshold. This may indicate that current is returning
on the earth ground wire.

The DC Boost phase of the converter module has
OVER CURRENT | 3050 | exceeded its maximum current threshold. Indicates
a loss of boost control.

INTERNAL ERROR | 10

AC OVERVOLT | 2030

OVER CURRENT | 3000

OVER CURRENT | 3020

Page 22

54



Owner's Manual Bergey EXCEL 15 Turbine

The internal high temperature threshold has been
exceeded. Check that unit has adequate ventilation,
that the intake and exhaust vents are not obstructed,
and that the cooling fans are operating.
The internal low temperature threshold has been
UNDER TEMP 4250 | exceeded. Avoid exposing the unit to temperatures
below -20°C (-4°F).
An input phase appears to be shorted to chassis
GROUND FAULT | 7000 | ground. It may require a high voltage measurement
device such as a Megger to confirm the fault.
The frequency of the utility grid voltage went out of
range. The upper range threshold was crossed. If
supparted (Unit Rev 1005 or greater) this code is
also used to indicate that the ROCOF threshold was
reached. ROCOF might occur when large
equipment is switched on or off.
AC UNDER FREQ | 8100 The frequency of the utility grid voltage went out of
range. The lower range threshold was crossed.

OVER TEMP 4000

AC OVER FREQ 8000

b e

When the Powersync |l is starting up after initialization, or after the RESET button has
been pushed. or after a power outaae. it will ao throuah a 300 second (5 minute)

55



Owner's Manual Bergey EXCEL 15 Turbine

windy day, raise the local utility voltage above the UL 1741 threshold, causing a FAULT.
The Soft Grid feature tries to prevent these FAULTS by reducing power output from the
wind turbine. When the Powersync Il is in this mode the digital display will show “Soft
Grid”.

The STOP pad on the digital display will shut down the Powersync Il inverter. Press
the RESET pad to restart {(which will start the 300 sec. countdown).

If the circuit breaker in your home or business load center (circuit breaker panel) trips, it
should be reset by first switching it to the OFF position and then to the ON position. If
the breaker trips again immediately, or if it continues to trip after brief periods of narmal
operation, switch the breaker OFF and contact your Bergey dealer for assistance.

The following recommendations will help ensure the safe operation of the Powersync |
inverter:

1. Keep all sources of moisture away from the Powersync Il enclosure.

2. Do not work near the Powersync Il with gasoline, paint thinner, or any
material which produces flammable vapor. Do not store flammable materials
near the Powersync Il enclosure.

3. Do not open the Powersync Il enclosure unless the circuit breaker and
Accessible Disconnect Switch (ADC) at the base of the tower have been
switched OFF. Note that even with the circuit breaker and ADC switched
OFF, a shock hazard will still be present inside the Powersync IlI
enclosure for approximately 15 minutes (as the capacitor voltage drains
down).

4. Do not block airflow around the Powersync lll enclosure in any way. A six-
inch clearance must be maintained around the sides, top, and bottom of the
enclosure for adequate air circulation.

VI. TURBINE INSTALLATION

Please use the following instructions in assembling and commissioning your system. If
you need any additional information, please contact us.

A. BWC EXCEL WIND TURBINE and TOWER

Please refer to the BWC EXCEL 15 Installation Manual, and any addendum for the
specific tower design, for instructions on installing the wind turbine and tower.

Page 24

56

74



Owner's Manual Bergey EXCEL 15 Turbine

B. FUSED DISCONNECT SWITCH

The electrical output of the wind turbine is a three-phase alternating current (AC). We
strongly recommend the installation of a fused three-phase AC disconnect switch
between the wind turbine and the Powersync Il, as shown in the drawing on Page 26.
This switch is commonly referred to as an Accessible Disconnect Switch (ADC) and
most utilities will require aone to be installed. A 60A weather-tight switch box with 45A
fuses for the 240 VAC, 60Hz or 220VAC, 50Hz system is recommended. The fuses will
help protect the alternator in the event of a wiring, controller, or load short circuit. The

Fiimmnd AlannmnAan + rsiibnlh A e alhs At AllAAd At A kA A A Faaia-

EXCel 157 Tor appropriaie wire sizes.
D. POWERSYNC Ill INVERTER

The Powersync lll inverter should be installed indoors, near the main breaker enclosure
if possible. The Powersync Il is designed to operate in a clean environment and should
never be installed outdoors as it is not weatherproof and will be damaged by rain. A
minimum of six inches of clearance is required on the top, bottom and sides of the
Powersync Il to ensure adequate air flow through the enclosure.

The Powersync Il should be cannected to a dedicated 125A two-pole breaker installed
in the main breaker box. System grounding is accomplished by attaching a wire, # 8

AWG minimum, from the grounding lug inside the Powersync Il enclosure to the panel
ground inside the main breaker box. Additionally, the tower “bond” ground wire should

hAa ArmmaAandtad A tha ArmamnAln A hia dmAid A kA Drasravnimma H A AlAasiies A hamiaal AvinbAna

57

75



,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,

58

Page 26

76



Owner's Manual Bergey EXCEL 15 Turbine

Vil. INSPECTIONS AND
MAINTENANCE

The Bergey EXCEL 15 turbine and tower should be inspected once 90 - 180 days after
installation to ensure that no hardware was missed and there are no issues with the
turbine.

eage near the tip oT each blade.
C. Condition of the paint.

4.  Remove the spinner and hang it from the machine. Check the marker lines on
each of the blade attachment and torque plate bolts, retorquing and remarking any
bolts that have loosened. Check the front bearing for seal integrity and excessive
grease loss. Reattach the spinner and check that it is secure.

5. Open the cover plate on the mainframe. Inspect the slip-rings and brushes.
Inspect the back-up brake circuit boards.

Page 27

59 77



Owner's Manual Bergey EXCEL 15 Turbine

6. Check the rear alternator bearing for seal integrity and excessive grease loss.

7. Inspect the mainframe for cracks.

8. Check for cracks or loose hardware on the tail boom and fin.
9. Check for corrosion on the alternator. Clean and repaint as needed.
10. While descending the tower, inspect the following:
A. Check that the tower wiring is properly secure.
B. Check all fasteners.
C. Look for any cracks in the tower structure.
D. Check the condition of the guy wire attachment (guyed towers).
11. Check the connection on all ground rods and hardware.
12. Check the disconnect switch.
13. Inspect the wire run, particularly all electrical connections.
14. Check condition of all wiring connections into and out of the Powersync 1.
15. Check the fan filters on the Powersync lll.
16. Switch the turbine breaker in the breaker panel to ON. Move to a spot where you
can observe the turbine. Listen to the sound of the machine as it speeds up. No

mechanical sounds, such as a "clunking" or "banging,"” should be heard. Also
watch for any new or significant vibration. The turbine operation should be smooth.

Page 28

60

78



Owner's Manual

VIIL.

Bergey EXCEL 15 Turbine

Trouble-Shooting Problems

The following guide can help to pin-point the cause of operational problems with the
Bergey EXCEL 15 wind turbine and the Powersync Il inverter For problems or
symptoms not found in the following listing please contact the Service Department at
Bergey Windpower Co. at Tel. No. 1-405-364-4212, Telefax No. 1-405-364-2078, or E-
mail: service@bergey.com

Problem Cause(s) Diagnosis Remedy
Turbine makes an 1. Damaged blade 1. Have leading edge 1. Consult Bergey
unusual blade sound, leading edge inspected Service Department

such as whistling or
buzzing

2. Blade structural
damage

2. Have blades
inspected. Cracks
outboard of the hub can

lead to blade failure.

2. If blade damage is
suspected, the turbine
should be stopped until
it is inspected. Contact
your dealer.

Rotor is unbalanced,
causing the turbine to
move slightly back and
forth as it spins

1. Uneven ice build-up
on blades

2. Blade damage

1. Ice con turbine and
tower. Turbine ran
smoothly before ice
storm. Slow rotor
speed.

2. Noice. Turbine ran
smoothly before

1. Do nothing — ice will
dislodge in a few days.
No not approach the
tower.

2. If blade damage is
suspected, the turbine
should be stopped until
it is inspected. Contact
your dealer.

61

Page 29

79



Owner's Manual

Bergey EXCEL 15 Turbine

Problem

Cause(s)

Diagnosis

Remedy

Turbine makes a
banging or rattling
sound once per
revolution, particularly at
low speeds

1. Loose spinner

2. Alternator rear
bearing ring fasteners
loose or missing

3. Alternator bearings

1. Sound is once per
revolution. Inspect
spinner.

2. Sound is once per
revolution. Inspect rear
of alternator

3. Excessive grease
leakage. Squeaking
sounds at low speed.

1. Have spinner
inspected

2. Have alternator
inspected

3. Have alternator
inspected

Turbine makes a “fog
hern” sound at certain,
typically low, wind
speeds

Electro-mechanical
interaction between
alternator and inverter
that causes transient
vibrations in the turbine

Sound comes and goes,
but occurs at the same
wind speed(s)

This is normal, but
contact your dealer or
the Bergey Service
Department if the noise
IS excessive

Turbine makes a
continuous growling or
rumbling sound, which
reduces at higher wind
speeds

Switch fused disconnect
on tower to OFF. If
growling disappears an
electrical problem is
indicated. If growling
continues a mechanical
problem is indicated

1. Wiring fault

1. Check fuses. Check
wiring for continuity,
phase-to-phase fault, or
short to ground.

1. Repair or replace as
needed

2. Inverter fault

2. After completing the
wiring check, disconnect
the inverter and
reconnect wiring to the
turbine. If the noise
disappears an inverter
problem is indicated.

2. Contact your dealer

3. Alternator bearings

3. Check for excessive
grease loss

3. Have the alternator
inspected

62

Page 30

80



Owner's Manual

Bergey EXCEL 15 Turbine

Problem

Cause(s)

Diagnosis

Remedy

Rotor turns slowly and
does not speed up in
higher winds

1. lce build-up on
blades

2. Short circuit in wiring
or inverter

3. Short circuit in tower
wiring, slip-rings, or
alternator

1. Check for ice

2. Open tower
disconnect. If turbine
spins freely an electrical
system problem is
indicated

3. The most likely
problem is a shorted
alternator.

1. Do nothing — ice will
dislodge in a few days.
No need to furl the
turbine.

2. Contact your dealer

3. Contact your dealer

Rotor does not turn at
all

Mechanical failure
inside alternator

Rotor does not turn
even when winds
exceed 15 mph (6.7
m/s)

Contact your dealer

Powersync Il display
nect functioning

1. No power to inverter

2. Display or other
inverter component not
functioning properly

1. Turn off utility power
to inverter, using the
dedicated breaker in
your breaker panel, for
a minimum of 20
seconds. Then turn
power back on using the
breaker. Wait 300
seconds (5 minutes).

If inverter does not
resume operation, with
full display functionality,
contact your dealer

63

Page 31

81



Owner's Manual

IX. Appendix

64

Bergey EXCEL 15 Turbine

Page 32

82



65

83



66

84



WOODBURY COUNTY PLANNING & ZONING

620 Douglas Street, Sixth Floor, Sioux City, lowa 51101
712.279.6609 — 712.279.6530 (Fax)
Daniel J. Priestley, MPA — Zoning Coordinator Dawn Norton - Senior Clerk
dpriestley@woodburycountyiowa.gov dnorton@woodburycountyiowa.gov

REPORT - SEPTEMBER 24, 2024
COMMUNICATIONS TOWER - CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT PROPOSAL

APPLICATION DETAILS PROPERTY DETAILS CONTENTS

Applicant(s)/Owner(s): | Andrew Bobrytzke obo Parcel(s): 874720400004 Summary
American Towers LLC / Township/Range: | T87N R4TW (Liberty) . .

_ Bradley J. Kobold Trust Section: ) Aerial Map / Site Plan Excerpt
Application Type: Conditional Use Permit Quarter: SEViofthe SE7 Review Requirements
Zoning D'Stf'Ct- General Industrial (Gl) Zoning District: | General Industrial (GI) Review Criteria
Total Acres: 369 Floodplain: Portions in the Zone A L .
gg{)%r;tegslie Fgmg w/ Wireless Tower Property L33 Sarcer Ave. Sal, A Application Wateral

: Address: 51052 i ot
Pre-applcation Aol 23,2028 Legal Notification
Meeting: Public Comments
Application Date: August 23, 2024
Legal Noice Date: | September 21, 2024 Stakeholder Gomments
Neighbor(s) Nofice September 18, 2024 Supporting Information
Date:

Stakeholder(s) Notice | September 3, 2024
Date:

Zoning Commission September 23, 2024
Review:

Board of Adjustment | October 7, 2024

Public Hearing:
Engrew EOE'rytz!e on !e!a ! o! !mencan OoWers !!! an! t!e !ra!|ey ! !o!o|! rust !ave !I e! a con!|t|ona| use permit ai)p||cat|on to

reqiuest to construct a 250" self-support wireless communications tower to replace an existing tower from the area on Parce
#874720400004. The proposed location is about one ﬁ1) half mile west of the Salix which is on the north side of 260" Street and west
of Barker Avenue. The parcel is located in the General Industrial (Gl) Zoning District and “telecommunication towers” are classified as
a “conditional use” in Section 3.03.4 of the Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance which |s_ellq_|blle for review by the Zoning Commission
and for consideration for approval by the Board of Adjustment for a conditional use permit. This proposal has been noticed in the Sioux
City Journals legal section on September 21, 2024 The neighbors within one (1) mile were duly notified via a September 18, 2024
letter about the October 7, 2024 Board of Adjustment public hearing. Appropriate stakeholders including government agencies,
utilities, and organizations have been requested to comment. Based on the information received and the requirements set forth in the
Zoning Ordinance, the proposal meets the appropriate criteria for approval of the conditional use request. It is the recommendation of
staff to approve the proposal. The Zoning Commission voted 4-0 to recommend approval to the Board of Adjustment following their
review session on September 23, 2024.

AERIAL MAP SITE PLAN EXCERPT

_ZONING COMMISSION AND STAFF RECOMMENDATION _

Based on the information received and the requirements set forth in the Zoning Ordinance, the proposal meets the appropriate criteria
for approval of the conditional use request. It is the recommendation of staff to approve the proposal.

The Zoning Commission voted 4-0 to recommend approval to the Board of Adjustment following their review session on September 23,
2024.

| 85



86



Minutes - Woodbury County Zoning Commission — September 23, 2024

The Zoning Commission (ZC) meeting was held on September 23, 2024 at 5:00 PM in the Board of Supervisors'
meeting room, located in the basement of the Woodbury County Courthouse at 620 Douglas Street, Sioux City, IA.
The meeting was also accessible via teleconference.

Meeting Audio:
For specific content of this meeting, refer to the recorded video on the Woodbury County Zening Commission
“Committee Page” on the Woodbury County website:
- County Website Link:
o https://iwww.woodburycountyiowa.gov/committees/zoning_commission/
- YouTube Direct Link:
o  https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=1mQwWufHt3x0

ZC Members Present:
Corey Meister, Chris Zellmer Zant, Tom Bride, Jeff Hanson

County Staff Present:
Dan Priestley, Dawn Norton

Public Present:
Dan Bittinger, Andy Bobrytzke, Joel Vos, Elbert Baker, Kathy Tabke, Brad Tabke, Jimmie Colyer

CALL TO ORDER:
Chair Chris Zant called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. Barb Parker was absent.

PUBLIC COMMENT ON MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA:
Priestley presented material about grain bins received from MidAmerican Energy. Bride made a motion to accept
the material into the record, which Hanscn seconded. The motion passed 4-0. See appendix.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES:
Bride and Hanson were absent at the previous meeting and abstained from the vote. Bride moved to defer the
approval of the August 26, 2024 minutes, with Meister seconding. The moticn passed 4-0.

PUBLIC HEARING {ACTION ITEM): ZONING MAP AMENDMENT {REZONE) FROM AGRICULTURAL
PRESERVATION (AP} TO AGRICULTURAL ESTATES (AE) ZONING DISTRICT {PARCEL #884726200002):
Priestley read the staff report into the record. The Sandra K. Baker Revocable Trust (Applicant: Sandra K. Baker)
and Jimmie L. and Renee T. Colyer (Owners) submitted an application to rezone a 1.14-acre portion of property
(Parcel #884726200002) from the Agricultural Preservation (AP) District to the Agricultural Estates (AE) District.
This portion will be combined with Lot 1 of the Baker Acres subdivisicn through the Woodbury County Assessor's
combination process. A survey conducted by Al Fagan Land Surveying P.C. provides the legal description of the
land to be conveyed to the Sandra K. Baker Revocable Trust. This triangular 1.14-acre portion is not eligible for
development as a standalone lot, as it does not meet the requirements of the Zoning and Subdivision Ordinance. In
the purchase agreement, Baker acknowledges that the property being acquired is "not a legal lot for building
purposes" and must be combined with the adjacent parcel, Lot One (1) of Baker's Acres. The rezoning is requested
to match the zoning of Lot 1, facilitating the combination into a single parcel for tax purposes. This proposal was
properly noticed in the Sioux City Journal Legals Section on September 12, 2024. Neighbors within 1000 feet were
notified via a September 9 lefter about the public hearing on September 23, 2024, and stakeholders including
government agencies, utilities, and organizations have been requested to comment. No objections were received.
Staff recommends approval as the proposal meets the criteria for approval. Bride moved to close the public
hearing, seccnded by Hanson. The motion carried 4-0. Hanson then moved to approve the zoning erdinance map
amendment from AP to AE, with the condition that the portion be combined with Lot 1 of Baker's Acres subdivision,
seconded by Meister. The moticn carried 4-0, and the application will be forwarded to the Board of Supervisors.



PUBLIC HEARING {(ACTION ITEM): CONSIDERATION OF NUCLEAR ENERGY FACILITIES IN THE
WOODBURY COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE:

At the request of the Board of Supervisors, the Commission held a public hearing to discuss the potential
incorporaticn of nuclear energy facilities into the zening ordinance. No public comments were offered. This follows
the Board's directive on July 2, 2024, to explore nuclear energy as a county option. No formal proposals have been
submitted by companies, and few public comments have been received up to this point. Bride suggested seeking
input from MidAmerican Energy regarding future power sources, and a town hall meeting after the harvest season
was proposed to discuss nuclear energy with residents. Bride moved to revisit this topic next menth, seconded by
Hanson. The motion was approved 4-0.

REVIEW OF CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT APPLICATION (ACTION ITEM): INSTALLATION OF THREE 100-
FOOT WIND TURBINES {PARCEL #884420300005):

Priestley read the staff report into the record. L & K Tabke Holdings, LLC (Kathy Tabke) submitted a conditional use
permit application to install three 100-foot wind turbines to reduce electrical costs on the farm. The proposed
locations are approximately 5.2 miles southeast of Moville, on the south side of 195th Street and east of Jasper
Avenue. The property is located in the Agricultural Preservation (AP) Zoning District, where "Electric wind generator
(Private use)" is classified as a conditional use eligible for review by the Zoning Commission and consideration by
the Board of Adjustment. This proposal was properly noticed in the Sioux City Journal's legal section on September
21, 2024. Neighbors within 500 feet were notified via a September 18, 2024 |etter about the October 7, 2024 Board
of Adjustment public hearing. Stakeholders have been requested to comment. Based on the information received
and the requirements of the Zoning Ordinance, the proposal meets the criteria for approval. Bride emphasized that
the turbines are for private use. Priestley discussed setback concerns from other structures on the premises per the
zoning ordinance. The property owner assumes all risks for any malfunctions or tower collapses. Meister moved to
close the public hearing, seconded by Bride. The motion carried 4-0. Based on the information provided and zoning
criteria, Meister moved to recommend approval of the conditional use permit, seconded by Hanson. The motion
carried 4-0, and the application will be forwarded to the Board of Adjustment.

REVIEW OF CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT APPLICATION (ACTION ITEM): INSTALLATION OF 250-FOOT
WIRELESS COMMUNICATIONS TOWER (PARCEL #874720400004}):

Priestley read the staff report into the record. Andrew Bobrytzke, on behalf of American Towers LLC and the
Bradley J. Kobold Trust, has filed a conditional use permit application to construct a 250-foot self-support wireless
communications tower to replace an existing tower on Parcel #874720400004. The proposed location is about half
a mile west of Salix, on the north side of 260th Street and west of Barker Avenue. The parcel is located in the
General Industrial (Gl) Zoning District, where "telecommunication towers" are classified as conditional uses eligible
for review by the Zoning Commission and for consideration by the Board of Adjustment. This proposal was noticed
in the Sioux City Journal's legal section on September 21, 2024. Neighbors within one mile were notified via a
September 18, 2024 letter about the October 7, 2024 Board of Adjustment public hearing. Appropriate stakeholders
have been requested to comment. Based on the information received and zoning requirements, the proposal meets
the criteria for approval. Staff recommends approval. Hanson moved to close the public hearing, seconded by
Bride. Bride then moved to recommend approval of the tower construction and use on the specified parcel,
seconded by Meister. The moticn carried 4-0, and the application will be forwarded to the Board of Adjustment.

INFORMATION ITEM: CONSIDERATION OF DECOMMISSIONING REQUIREMENTS FOR CARBON
PIPELINES:

Priestley provided an update on the Board of Supervisors' August 27, 2024, decision to direct county staff to
explere decommissioning requirements for carbon pipelines as part of a new ordinance. While federal regulations
govern pipeline decommissioning, staff are reviewing local regulations from other counties and states. The Zoning
Commission and Board of Adjustment will be involved in researching and offering recommendations. Bride noted
that pipeline easements remain in place even if a pipeline is no longer in use.

STAFF UPDATE:

Priestley updated the Commission cn the proposed amendments to Ordinance 56, which regulates Commercial
Wind Energy Conversion Systems. He discussed the three-step public hearing process and referenced safety
information obtained from safety data sheets for a Nordex system submitted to the Ohic Public Utilities
Commission.

PUBLIC COMMENT ON MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA:
Ncne.



89



REVIEW REQUIREMENTS - IOWA CODE SECTION 8C.3 ( )

LOCAL GOVERNMENTS CANNOT:

In order to ensure uniformity across this state with respect to the consideration of every application, and notwithstanding
any other provision to the contrary, an authority shall not do any of the following:

1. Require an applicant to submit information about, or evaluate an applicant’s business decisions with respect to, the applicant’s
designed service, customer demand for service, or quality of the applicant’s service to or from a particular area or site, but may
require propagation maps solely for the purpose of identifying the location of the coverage or capacity gap or need for
applications for new towers in an area zoned residential.

2. a. Evaluate an application based on the availability of other potential locations for the placement or construction of a tower or
transmission equipment. b. Require the applicant to establish other options for collocation instead of the construction of a new
tower or modification of an existing tower or existing base station that constitutes a substantial change to an existing tower or
existing base station. c. Notwithstanding paragraph “b”, an authority shall require an applicant applying for the construction of a
new tower to provide an explanation regarding the reason for choosing the proposed location and the reason the applicant did not
choose collocation. The explanation shall include a sworn statement from an individual who has responsibility over placement of
the tower attesting that collocation within the area determined by the applicant to meet the applicant’s radio frequency
engineering requirements for the placement of a site would not result in the same mobile service functionality, coverage, and
capacity, is technically infeasible, or is economically burdensome to the applicant.

3. Dictate the type of transmission equipment or technology to be used by the applicant or discriminate between different types of
infrastructure or technology.

4. a. Require the removal of existing towers, base stations, or transmission equipment, wherever located, as a condition to
approval of an application. b. Notwithstanding paragraph “a’, the authority may adopt reasonable rules regarding removal of
abandoned towers or transmission equipment.

5. Impose environmental testing, sampling, or monitoring requirements, or other compliance measures, for radio frequency
emissions from transmission equipment that are categorically excluded under the federal communications commission’s rules for
radio frequency emissions pursuant to 47 C.F.R. §1.1307(b)(1).

6. Establish or enforce regulations or procedures for radio frequency signal strength or the adequacy of service quality.

7. Reject an application, in whole or in part, based on perceived or alleged environmental effects of radio frequency emissions, as
provided in 47 U.S.C. §332(c)(7)(B)(iv).

8. Prohibit the placement of emergency power systems that comply with federal and state environmental requirements.

9. Charge an application fee, consulting fee, or other fee associated with the submission, review, processing, or approval of an
application, unless the fee charged is in compliance with this section. Fees imposed by an authority or by a third-party entity
providing review or technical consultation to the authority shall be based on actual, direct, and reasonable administrative costs
incurred for the review, processing, and approval of an application. In no case shall total charges and fees exceed five hundred
dollars for an eligible facilities request or three thousand dollars for an application for a new tower, for the initial placement or
installation of transmission equipment on a wireless support structure, for a modification of an existing tower or existing base
station that constitutes a substantial change to an existing tower or base station, or any other application to construct or place
transmission equipment that does not constitute an eligible facilities request. An authority or any third-party entity shall not include
within its charges any travel expenses incurred in the review of an application for more than one trip to the authority’s jurisdiction,
and an applicant shall not be required to pay or reimburse an authority for consultant or other third-party fees based on a
contingency-based or result-based arrangement.

10. Impose surety requirements, including bonds, escrow deposits, letters of credit, or any other type of financial surety, to ensure
that abandoned or unused towers or transmission equipment can be removed, unless requirements are competitively neutral,
nondiscriminatory, reasonable in amount, and commensurate with the historical record for local facilities and structures that are
abandoned.

11. Condition the approval of an application on the applicant's agreement to provide space on or near the tower, base station, or
wireless support structure for authority or local governmental or nongovernmental services at less than the market rate for such
space or to provide other services via the structure or facilities at less than the market rate for such services.

12. Limit the duration of the approval of an application, except that construction of the approved structure or facilities shall be
commenced within two years of final approval, including the disposition of any appeals, and diligently pursued to completion.

13. Discriminate on the basis of the ownership, including ownership by the authority, of any property, structure, or tower when
promulgating rules or procedures for siting wireless facilities or for evaluating applications.

6 90



ONING ORDINANCE CRITERIA FOR BOARD APPROVAL

Conditional Use Permits are determined by a review of the following criteria by the Zoning Commission (ZC) and Board of Adjustment
(BOA). The ZC makes a recommendation to the BOA which will decide following a public hearing before the Board.

APPLICANT’S DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPOSED CONDITIONAL USE:

In order to prevent a loss of wireless cellular phone coverage in the area, American Tower Corp (ATC) wishes to
construct a new 250" Self Support Wireless Communications tower. This is a replacement tower for the tower
located on the property to the immediate west. That lease is expiring, and ATC will be removing that tower
once new tower is built and all equipment is operating on new tower.

MAP DRAWN TO SCALE, SHOWING THE SUBJECT PROPERTY, ALL STRUCTURES AND OTHER IMPROVEMENTS, WITH THE
PROPOSED CONDITIONAL USE IDNTIFIED PER STRUCTURE OF IMPROVEMENT, PROVID BY ATTACHMENT

Attached

CRITERIA 1: The conditional use requested is authorized as a conditional use in the zoning district within which the property is located
and that any specific conditions or standards described as part of that authorization have been or will be satisfied (Woodbury County
Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9).

APPLICANT RESPONSE:

Telecommunications Towers are allowed in Gl with a Conditional Use per
Woodbury Counting Zoning ordinances.

STAFF ANALYSIS:
This conditional use permit requested is authorized in the Agricultural Preservation (AP) Zoning District.

CRITERIA 2: The proposed use and development will be in harmony with the general purpose and intent of this ordinance and the
goals, objectives and standards of the general plan (Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9).

APPLICANT RESPONSE:

Telecommunications Towers are allowed in Gl with a Conditional Use per
Woodbury Counting Zoning ordinances.

There is an existing tower in the parcel to the west that will be removed once this tower is operational

STAFF ANALYSIS:

The granting of this request will assist with adding to the communication infrastructure of the surrounding area, it complies with the Woodbury
County Comprehensive Plan 2040, Chapter 4: Public Infrastructure and Utilities
(https:/lwww.woodburycountyiowa.gov/files/community_economic_development/woodbury_county_comprehensive_plan_2040_89417.pdf )

CRITERIA 3: The proposed use and development will not have a substantial or undue adverse effect upon adjacent property, the
character of the neighborhood, traffic conditions, parking, utility facilities, and other factors affecting the public health, safety and
general welfare (Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9).

APPLICANT RESPONSE:

The area around this parcel are used for farming.
There is an existing tower in the parcel to the west that will be removed once this tower is operational

STAFF ANALYSIS:

The plans submitted comply with the parameters of Section 5.05 of the Zoning Ordinance. This proposal does not appear to adversely
impact the neighborhood, traffic, parking, utility facilities, public health, safety and general welfare. The proposed tower meets the setbacks
from the property lines with either meeting or exceeding 250 feet from the property lines (see site plan).




CRITERIA 4: The proposed use and development will be located, designed, constructed and operated in such a manner that it will be
compatible with the immediate neighborhood and will not interfere with the orderly use, development and improvement of surrounding
property (Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9).

APPLICANT RESPONSE:

The area around this parcel are used for farming.
There is an existing tower in the parcel to the west that will be removed once this tower is operational
STAFF ANALYSIS:

The plans submitted comply with the parameters of Section 5.05 of the Zoning Ordinance. This proposal is compatible with the neighborhood
as noted in Criteria 3.

CRITERIA 5: Essential public facilities and services will adequately serve the proposed use or development (Woodbury County Zoning
Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9).

APPLICANT RESPONSE:

This will be an umnammed facility, with limited traffic. We will only require Electricity and fiber Optics,
which are already in the vicinity at the tower to the west, shceduled to be removed once this

tower I1s operational

STAFF ANALYSIS:

The plans submitted comply with the zoning ordinance. There have been no concerns presented from the stakeholders.

CRITERIA 6: The proposed use or development will not result in unnecessary adverse effects upon any significant natural, scenic or
historic features of the subject property or adjacent properties (Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9).

APPLICANT RESPONSE:
We have conducted a required NEPA Environmental
Site Assessment Report. (Attached)

The purpose of a NEPA Land Use Screening is to comply with the National Environmental Policy Act of
1969 (NEPA). Trileaf performs extensive research and review to provide our clients with a full NEPA

document. The following is a summary of the scope of work Trileaf performs to complete a NEPA/Section
106 Review.

STAFF ANALYSIS:
This proposal does not appear to significantly impact the items as referenced in Criteria #6.

OTHER CONSIDERATION 1: The proposed use or development, at the particular location is necessary or desirable to provide a service
or facility that is in the public interest or will contribute to the general welfare of the neighborhood or community (Woodbury County
Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9).

STAFF ANALYSIS:
This CUP request could be interpreted as a contribution to the local communication infrastructure.

OTHER CONSIDRATION 2: All possible efforts, including building and site design, landscaping and screening have been undertaken to
minimize any adverse effects of the proposed use or development (Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance, Sec. 2.02-9).

STAFF ANALYSIS:

The design of the tower and its proposed use clearly distinguishes itself as a communication structure. The plans submitted comply with
the Zoning Ordinance. Under lowa Code 8C, local governments cannot “dictate the type of transmission equipment or technology to be
used, or discriminate between different types of infrastructure or technology.”




SMJ

Aance of sowutions  SMJ INTERNATI’ONAL, LLC. 49030 Pontiac Trail Ste.100, Wixom, Ml 48393

August 23, 2024

Daniel ). Priestley, MPA

Woodbury County Zoning Coordinator
620 Douglas Street #609

Sioux City, IA51101

Re: CUP American Tower LLC
Dear Daniel,
Enclosed are the following items for the CUP request.

CUP Application
$300.00 Fee

BP Application

$500.00 Fee

Floodplain Development Permit Application
$110.00 Fee

FAA Approval

FCC Approval

NEPA Summary
Construction Drawings
Abstract Mailing list

Please let me know if you need anything else to put this on the next meeting agenda.

Best Regards,

%ﬂfl’j

Andy Bobrytzke

Project Manager

SMJ International, LLC
507-327-2361

Email: abobrytzke@smij-llc.com

93



APPLICATION

10 94



PER SECTION 2.02(9)(C )2 (d) PROVIDE A SPECIFIC DESCRIPTION OF THE
PROPOSED CONDITIONAL USE: (Tab at the end of each line to continue)

In order to prevent a loss of wireless cellular phone coverage in the area, American Tower Corp (ATC) wishes to
construct a new 250" Self Support Wireless Communications tower. This is a replacement tower for the tower
located on the property to the immediate west. That lease is expiring, and ATC will be removing that tower
once new tower is built and all equipment is operating on new tower.

PER SECTION 2.02(9) (C )(2)(e) PROVIDE A MAP DRAWN TO SCALE, SHOWING THE
SUBJECT PROPERTY, ALL STRUCTURES AND OTHER IMPROVEMENTS, WITH THE
PROPOSED CONDITIONAL USE IDENTIFIED PER STRUCTURE OR IMPROVEMENT .

PROVIDE BY ATTACHMENT. Aftsehad

PER SECTION 2.02(9) (C )(2)(e) PROVIDE A STATEMENT IN RESPONSE TO EACH OF SIX
BELOW CRITEREA AND STANDARDS FOR APPROVAL OF CONDITIONAL USES AS
LISTED IN SECTION 2.02(9)F OF THE ORDINANCES. (Tab at the end of each line to continue)

(a) Provide a statement to why you feel the conditional use requested is authorized as a
conditional use in the zoning district within which the property is located and that any
specific conditions or standards described as part of that authorization have been or will be

satisfied.

Telecommunications Towers are allowed in Gl with a Conditional Use per
Woodbury Counting Zoning ordinances.

(b) Provide a statement to why the proposed use and development will be in harmony with the
general purpose and intent of this ordinance and the goals, objectives and standards of the

general plan.  (Tab at the end of each line to continue)

Telecommunications Towers are allowed in Gl with a Conditional Use per
Woodbury Counting Zoning ordinances.

There is an existing tower in the parcel to the west that will be removed once this tower is operational

11 95



(c) Provide a statement to why the proposed use and development will not have a substantial
or undue adverse effect upon adjacent property, the character of the neighborhood, traffic
conditions, parking, utility facilities, and other factors affecting the public health, safety and
general welfare. (Tab at the end of each line to continue)

The area around this parcel are used for farming.
There is an existing tower in the parcel to the west that will be removed once this tower is operational

(d) Provide a statement to why the proposed use and development will be located, designed,
constructed and operated in such a manner that it will be compatible with the immediate
neighborhood and will not interfere with the orderly use, development and improvement of
surrounding property. (Tab at the end of each line to continue)

The area around this parcel are used for farming.
There is an existing tower in the parcel to the west that will be removed once this tower is operational

12 96



(e) Provide a statement to why essential public facilities and services will adequately serve the
proposed use or development.  (Tab at the end of each line to continue)

This will be an umnammed facility, with limited traffic. We will only require Electricity and fiber Optics,

which are already in the vicinity at the tower to the west, shceduled to be removed once this
tower is operational

(f) Provide a statement to why the proposed use or development will not result in unnecessary
adverse effects upon any significant natural, scenic or historic features of the subject
property or adjacent properties.  (Tab at the end of each line to continue)

We have conducted a required NEPA Environmental
Site Assessment Report. (Attached)

The purpose of a NEPA Land Use Screening is to comply with the National Environmental Policy Act of
1969 (NEPA). Trileaf performs extensive research and review to provide our clients with a full NEPA

document. The following is a summary of the scope of work Trileaf performs to complete a NEPA/Section
106 Review.

13 97



AMERICANTOWER"®

~| SITE NAME:

COMPLIANCE CODE

ALL WORK SHALL BE PERFORMED AND MATERIALS INSTALLED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CURRENT EDITIONS OF THE
FOLLOWING CODES AS ADOPTED BY THE LOGAL
GOVERNMENT AUTHORITIES, NOTHING IN THESE PLANS 1S
TO BE CONSTRUED TO PERMIT WORK NOT CONFORMING TO
THESE CODES.

INTERNATIONAL BUILDING CODE (IBC)

NATIONAL ELEGTRIC CODE (NEC)

LGCAL BUILDING CODE

CITY/COUNTY ORDINANCES

e

SURVEY INFORMATION
. TOPOGRAPHY AND BOUNDARY INFORMATION WAS

OBTAINED FROM SURVEY PLAN DATED 12/04/23 BY
LANDTECH PROFESSIONAL SURVEYING & ENGINEERING.

UTILITY COMPANIES

1

POWER COMPANY: UNKNOWN
PHONE: N/A

TELEPHONE COMPANY: UNKNOWN
PHONE: N/A

Know what's below.
Call before you dig.

VICINITY MAP_

PROJECT SUMMARY

SITE ADDRESS:

TBD
SALIX, 1A 510528137
COUNTY: WOODBURY

GEOGRAPHIC COORDINATES:

LATITUDE: N43° 19' 51.85"
LONGITUDE: Wg" 20' 02.11"

GROUND ELEVATION: 1083.9' AMSL.
ZOMING INFORMATION:

JURISDICTION: WOODBURY COUNTY
PARCEL NUMBER: 874720400004

PROJECT TEAM
TOWER OWNER:
AMERICAN TOWER CORPORATION

10 PRESIDENTIAL WAY
WOBURN, MA 01801

PROPERTY OWNER;

BRADLEY J, KOBOLD
221 7TH STREET
SERGEANT BLUFF, 1A 51054

ENGINEER;

ATC TOWER SERVICES
1 FENTON MAIN STREET SUITE 300
CARY, NC 27511

STRELO WOODBURY COUNTY - 108
SITE NUMBER: 211984 ‘
SITE ADDRESS: TBD

SALIX, 1A 510562-8137

STRATEGIC RELOCATION

N

&

s

@

Ll

ZONING DRAWINGS

THIS PROJECT ENTAILS A NEW 250' TOWER TO BE
CONSTRUCTED WITHIN A PROPOSED 75" x 75' LEASE AREA,
ALONG WITH T-MOBILE AND ATAT LINES AND ANTENNAS
INSTALLED ON TIIE TOWER, AND THEIR ASGOCIATED GROUND
EQUIPMENT WITHIN THE COMPOUND

PRGJECT NOTES

THE FACILITY IS UNMANNED.

ATECHNICIAN WILL VISIT THE $ITE APPROXIMATELY ONCE A
MONTH FOR ROUTINE INSPECTION AND MAINTENANGE.

FACILITY WILL MEET OR EXCEEDS ALL FAA AND FCC
REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS.

NO SANITARY SEWER, POTABLE WATER OR TRASH
DISPOSAL IS REQUIRED.

HANDICAP ACCESS IS NOT REQUIRED.

THE FACILITY WILL NQT GENERATE NOISE IN EXCESS OF
§0dh AT THE PROPERTY LINES.

PROJECT LOCATION DIRECTIONS

FROM SALIX:

HEAD NORTH ON TIPTON $T TOWARD POPLAR ST, THEN
TURN RIGHT AT THE 18T CROSS STREET ONTO POPLAR
ST. IN 0.2 MILES, TURN LEFT AT THE 2ND CROSS $TREET
ONTO HWY 75/0LD HWY 75 AND CONTINUE TO FOLLOW
OLD HWY 75 FOR 1.7 MILES. THEN TURN LEFT ONTQ 260TH
ST AND IN 1.6 MILES, SITE DESTINATION WILL BE ON THE
RIGHT.

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

SITE LOCATION

SHEET INDEX

BARKER AVE

LOCATION MAP

AMERICAN TOWER®
ATC TOWER SERVICES, LLC
1 FENTON MAIN STREET
SUITE 300
CARY, NC 27511
PHONE: {919) 468-0112

THESE DRAWINGS ANDIOR THE ACCOMPANYING
‘SPECIFICATION A INSTRUMENTS OR SERVICE ARt 1H-

AL REMAIN THE FIROPFRTY OF

ETHER OR NOT THE PROUI

ISSUANCE OF THIS BRAWING 5 SUPERSEDED BY THE LATEST
VERSION ON FILE WITH AMERICAN TOWER.

mﬂmmﬁ DESCRIPTION: REV:
G001 TITLE SHEET 3
G002 GENERAL NOTES 1
d.i: ALTANSPS LAND TITLE SURVEY \
c-101 OVERALL SITE PLAN 3
c02 WETLAND INPACT SITEPLAN [
GRADING PLAN & PROFILE [ 1
C-401 COMPOUND PLAN 1
cae | TOWER ELEVATION 1
c501 | CONSTRUCTION DETAILS 1 [
502 [ CONSTRUCTION DETAILS I
503 [ SIGNAGE | I
Eant GROUNDING LAYOUT [ |
Es01 | ELECTRICAL DETAILS [
E-601 [ ELECTRICAL ONE LINE DIAGRAM | 1 7
R-601 [ | ,

SPECIAL INSPECTIONS WORKSHEET 1

DATE:

08/06/24

04722724

08/06/24
07729/24
04722124
04122124
narzza
04/22/24
04/22/24
04/22/24
0422124
04i22/24
0422124

04122124

. THE LANDOWNER, ACKNOWLEDGE AND APPROVE OF THE GONSTRUCTION

ACTIVITIES AS INDICATED ON THESE PLANS,

OWNER DATE

REV. DESCRIPTION BY DATE
/0\__FOR CONSTRUCTION JO 032524
PN UPDTS PER PM JD_04/22/24
/3, WETLAND IMPACT EB _07/28/24
/3\___UPDT.SOUTHROWDIM _ JD _08/08/24
AN

ATG SITE NUMBER:

211984
ATC SITE NAME:
STRELO WOODBURY
COUNTY - 108

SCOTTA.
WIRGAU

nleduripped rome _ScottWirgsw |
23705

Wy licers renewal dale 15 Deczber 31, _2023
Pages orsheels coi

Liense Murber

s

Scott
Wirgau

Digitally signed
Scott Wirgau
Date: 2024.08.07
16:58:33 -04'00'

DATE DRAWN: | 03/25/24

ATCJOBNO: | 14188750

OPS$ JOB NO: | 14686635_D6

ATC LEGACY #: | 50182

TITLE SHEET

SHEET NUMEER: REVISION:

G-001 3

98

14



Omzmm>r CONSTRUCTION NOTES:

ALL WORK SHALL CONFORM TO ALL CURRENT APPLICABLE FEDERAL. STATE, AND LOCAL CODES,
INCLUDING ANSI/EIATIA-222, AND COMPLY WITH ATC CONSTRUCTION SPECIFICATIONS FOR
WIRELESS TOWER SITES.

CONTRACTOR SHALL CONTACT LOCAL 511 FOR IDENTIFICATION OF UNDERGROUND UTILITIES
PRIOR TO START OF CONSTRUCTION

CONTRAGTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR COORDINATING ALL REQUIRED INSPECTIONS.

ALL DIMENSIONS TO, OF, AND ON EXISTING BUILDINGS, DRAINAGE STRUCTURES, AND SITE
IMPROVEMENTS SHALL BE VERIFIED IN FIELD BY CONTRACTOR WITH ALL DISCREPANCIES
REPORTED TQ THE ENGINEER.

DO NOT CHANGE SIZE OR SPACING OF STRUCTURAL ELEMENTS,

DETAILS SHOWN ARE TYPICAL; SIMILAR DETAILS APPLY TQ SIMILAR CONDITIONS UNLESS
OTHERWISE NOTED

THESE DRAWINGS DO NOT INCLUDE NECESSARY COMPONENTS FOR CONSTRUCTION SAFETY
WHICH IS THE SOLE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE CONTRACTOR,

CONTRACTOR SHALL BRACE STRUCTURES UNTIL ALL STRUCTURAL ELEMENTS NEEDED FOR
STABILITY ARE INSTALLED. THESE ELEMENTS ARE AS FOLLOWS: LATERAL BRACING, ANCHOR
BOLTS, ETC.

CONTRACTOR SHALL DETERMINE EXACT LOCATION OF EXISTING UTILITIES, GROUNDS DRAINS,
DRAIN FIPES, YENTS, ETC. BEFORE COMMENCING WORK

INGORRECTLY FABRIGATED, DAMAGED, OR OTHERWISE MISFITTING OR NONCONFORMING
MATERIALS OR CONDITIONS SHALL BE REPORTED TO THE ATC CM PRIOR TG REMEDIAL OR
GORREGTIVE ACTION. ANY SUCH REMEDIAL ACTION SHALL REQUIRE WRITTEN APPROVAL BY
THE ATC CM PRIOR TO PROCEEDING.

EACH CONTRACTOR SHALL COOPERATE WITH THE ATC CM, AND COORDINATE HIS WORK WITH
THE WORK OF OTHERS.

CONTRACTOR SHALL REPAIR ANY DAMAGE CAUSED BY CONSTRUCTION OF THIS PROJECT TO
MATCH EXISTING PRE-CONSTRUCTION CONDITIONS TO THE SATISFACTION OF THE ATC
CONSTRUCTION MANAGER.

ALL CABLE/CONDUIT ENTRY/EXIT PORTS SHALL BE WEATHERPROOFED DURING INSTALLATION
USING A SILICONE SEALANT.

WHERE EXISTING CONDITIONS DO NOT MATCH THOSE SHOWN IN THIS PLAN SET, CONTRACTOR
WILL NOTIFY THE ATC CONSTRUCTION MANAGER IMMEDIATELY

GONTRACTOR SHALL ENSURE ALL SUBCONTRACTORS ARE PROVIDED WITH A COMPLETE AND
CURRENT SET OF DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS FOR THIS PROJECT.

ALL ROOF WORK SHALL BE DONE BY A QUALIFIED AND EXPERIENCED ROOFING CONTRACTOR IN
COORDINATION WITH ANY CONTRACTOR WARRANTING THE RQOF TO ENSURE THAT THE
WARRANTY |S MAINTAINED.

CONTRACTOR SHALL REMOVE ALL RUBBISH AND DEBRIS FROM THE SITE AT THE END OF EACH
DAY,

CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE WORK SCHEDULE WITH LANDLORD AND TAKE PRECAUTIONS
TO MINIMIZE IMPACT AND DISRUPTION OF OTHER QGCUPANTS OF THE FACILITY,

CONTRACTOR SHALL FURNISH ATC WITH THREE AS-BUILT SETS OF DRAWINGS UPON
COMPLETION OF WORK.

PRIOR TO SUBMISSION OF BID, CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE WITH ATC CM TO DETERMINE
WHAT, IF ANY, ITEMS WILL BE PROVIDED. ALL ITEMS NOT PROVIDED SHALL BE PROVIDED AND
INSTALLED BY THE CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR WILL INSTALL ALL ITEMS PROVIDED.

PRIOR TO SUBMISSION OF BID, CONTRAGTOR WILL COORDINATE WITH ATC CONSTRUCTION
MANAGER TO DETERMINE IF ANY PERMITS WILL BE OBTAINED BY ATC. ALL REQUIRED PERMITS
NOT OBTAINED BY ATC MUST BE OBTAINED, AND PAID FOR. BY THE CONTRACTOR.
CONTRAGTOR SHALL SUBMIT ALL SHOP DRAWINGS TQ ATC FOR REVIEW AND APPROVAL PRIOR
TQ FABRICATION.

ALL EQUIPMENT SHALL BE INSTALLED ACCORDING TO MANUFACTURER'S SPECIFICATIONS AND
LOCATED ACCORDING TQ ATG SPECIFICATIONS, AND AS SHOWN N THESE PLANS.

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL SUPERVISE AND DIRECT THE PROJECT DESCRIBED HEREIN. THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL BE SOLELY RESPONSIBLE FOR ALL THE CONSTRUCTION MEANS, METHODS,
TECHNIQUES, SEQUENCES AND PROCEDURES AND FOR COORDINATING ALL PORTIONS OF THE
WORK UNDER THE CONTRACT,

CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY ATG GM A MINIMUM OF 48 HOURS IN ADVANCE OF POURING
CONCRETE OR BACKFILLING ANY UNDERGROUND UTILITIES, FOUNDATIONS OR SEALING ANY
WALL, FLOOR OR ROOF PENETRATIONS FOR ENGINEERING REVIEW AND APPROVAL.

EROSION AND SEDIMENTATICN CONTROL PLAN NOTES:

THIS PLAN HAS BEEN DEVELOPED TO PROVIDE A STRATEGY FOR CONTROLLING SOIL EROSION AND
SEDIMENTATION DURING AND AFTER CONSTRUCTION OF THE PROPOSED FACILITY. THE EQUIPMENT
ANTICIPATED TO BE USED FOR THE CONSTRUCTION INCLUDES THE FOLLOWING: BACKHOES,
BULLDOZERS, LOADERS, TRUCKS, CRANES, COMPACTORS, AND GRADERS. THE FOLLOWING
MEASURES WILL BE UNDERTAKEN TO PROVIDE MAXIMUM PROTECTION TO THE SOIL, WATER, AND
ABUTTING LANDS:

1.

ALL EARTH DISTURBANCE AGTIVITIES SHALL PROCEED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE SEQUENCE
PROVIDED ON THE PLAN DRAWINGS. DEVIATION FROM THAT SEQUENGE MUST BE APPROVED IN
WRITING FROM AMERICAN TOWER PRIOR TO IMPLEMENTATION,

THE LIMITS OF DISTURBANCE (LQD) SHOULD BE MARKED PRIGR TQ DISTURBANCE ACTIVITIES
(I.E. SURVEY STAKES, POSTS 8 ROPE, CONSTRUGTICN FENCE, ETC.).

A COPY OF THE SEDIMENT AND EROSION CONTROL PLAN MUST BE AVAILABLE AT THE PROJECT
SITE DURING CONSTRUCTION UNTIL THE SITE IS STABILIZED. (AS APPLICABLE)

PRIOR TO GRUBBING OR ANY EARTHMOVING OPERATION, SILTATION FENGE WILL BE INSTALLED
ACROSS THE SLOPE ON THE CONTOUR AT THE DOWNHILL LIMIT OF THE WORK AS PROTECTION
AGAINST CONSTRUCTION RELATED EROSION. (CONSULT ATC CM AS REQUIRED)

STONE CHECK DAMS WILL BE INSTALLED IN THE DRAINAGE DITCHES TO PREVENT EROSION
PRIOR TO THE STABILIZATION GF THE CHANNELS. ERGSION CONTROL BLANKETS WILL ALSC BE
INSTALLED IN ALL DITCHES TO BE REVEGETATED.

PERMANENT SOIL EROSION CONTROL MEASURES FOR ALL SLOPES, CHANNELS, DITCHES, OR
ANY UNDISTURBED LAND AREA WILL BE COMPLETED WITHIN FIFTEEN CALENDAR DAYS AFTER
FINAL GRADING HAS BEEN COMPLETED, WHEN [T |S NOT PCSSIBLE OR PRACTICAL TO
PERMANENTLY STABILIZE DISTURBED LAND, TEMPORARY EROSION CONTROL MEASURES WILL
BE IMPLEMENTED WITHIN THIRTY CALENDAR DAYS OF EXPOSURE OF SOIL. ALL DISTURBED
AREAS WILL BE MULCHED FOR EROSION CONTROL UPON CGMPLETION OF ROUGH GRADING.
CUT SLOPES IN COMPETENT BEDROCK AND ROCK FILLS NEED NOT BE VEGETATED.

ANY EXPOSED SLOPES GREATER THAN 2:1 AND NEWLY CONSTRUCTED DRAINAGE DITCHES WILL

8

9

10

11,

12

13,

4.

15.

16.

17.

18,

19.

BE STABILIZED WITH EROSIGN CONTROL BLAMKET TO PREVENT EROSION DURING
CONSTRUCTION AND TQ FACILITATE REVEGETATION AFTER LOAMING AND SEEDING,

TO PROVIDE PROTECTION AGAINST EROSION, RIPRAP WILL BE PLACED AT ALL CULVERT INLETS
AND OUTLETS AS SHOWN ON THE ATTACHED DRAWINGS.

IN AREAS OF CONSTRUGTION DEWATERING, ISOLATED SETTLEMENT TRAPS WILL BE
CONSTRUCTED ADJACENT TG THE ACTIVITY. WATER WILL BE PUMPED FROM THE EXCAVATIONS
TO THESE DEPRESSION AREAS FOR SEDIMENT REMOVAL. ADDITIONAL SEDIMENTATION
PROTECTION WILL BE PROVIDED BY THE INSTALLATION OF HAYBALE BARRIERS BETWEEN THE
BASINS AND THE RECEIVING DRAINAGE COARSE.

NATIVE TOPSOIL SHALL BE SAVED, STOCKPILED, MULCHED, AND REUSED AS MUCH AS POSSIBLE
ON THE SITE. SILTATION FENGE SHALL BE INSTALLED AT THE BASE OF STOCKPILES AT THE
DOWNHILL LIMIT TO PROTECT AGAINST EROSION. STOCKPILES WILL BE STABILIZED BY SEEDING
AND MULCHING UPON FORMATION OF THE PILES. UPHILL OF THE STOCKPILES, STABILIZED
DITCHES AND/OR BERMS WILL BE CONSTRUCTED TO DIVERT STORMWATER RLUNOFF AWAY
FROM THE PILES.

FINAL SEEDING WILL BE APPLIED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE AMERICAN TOWER CORPORATION
CONSTRUCTION SPECIFICATION.

SHOULD CONSTRUCTION OCCUR AFTER NOVEMBER 15, ADDITIONAL EROSION CONTROL
METHODS WILL BE IMPLEMENTED. ALL DISTURBED AREAS WILL BE MINIMIZED AS MUCH AS
POSSIBLE. PRIOR TO FREEZING, ADDITIONAL EROSION CONTROL DEVICES WILL BE INSTALLED
AS APPROPRIATE INSPECTION OF THESE EROSION CONTROL ITEMS WILL BE CONSTANT, WITH
PARTICULAR ATTENTION PAID TO WEATHER PREDICTIONS TO ENSURE THAT THESE MEASURES
ARE PROPERLY IN PLACE TO HANDLE LARGE AMOUNTS OF RUNOFF FROM HEAVY RAINS OR
THAWS,

FOR AN EARTH DISTURBANCE ACTIVITY OR ANY STAGE OR PHASE OF AN ACTIVITY TO BE
CONSIDERED PERMANENTLY STABILIZED, THE DISTURBED AREAS SHALL BE COVERED BY A
MINIMUM UNIFORM 70% PERENNIAL VEGETATIVE COVER OR OTHER PERMANENT
NON-VEGETATIVE COVER WITH A DENSITY SUFFICIENT TO RESIST ACCELERATED EROSION AND
SUBSURFAGE CHARACTERISTICS SUFFICIENT TO RESIST SLIDING AND OTHER MOVEMENTS,
THE CONTRACTOR WILL REGULARLY INSPECT THE PROJECT'S EROSION AND SEDIMENTATION
CONTROLS DURING THE ENTIRE ACTIVE CONSTRUCTION STAGES. THE INSPECTIONS WILL BE
PERFORMED WEEKLY AND AFTER ALL RUNOFF EVENTS, THE CONTRACTOR WILL BE
RESPONSIBLE FOR THE INSTALLATION, OPERATION, MAINTENANCE, AND REMOVAL QF ALL
EROSION AND SEDIMENTATION CONTROLS. ALL PREVENTATIVE AND REMEDIAL MAINTENANCE
WORK, INGLUDING CLEAN OUT REPAIR, REPLACEMENT, REGRADING, RESEEDING, REMULCHING,
AND RENETTING MUST BE PERFORMED IMMEDIATELY. SEDIMENT THAT HAS BEEN TRAPPED BY
THE SILT BARRIER WILL BE REMOVED AS REQUIRED, AND IN ALL CASES, BEFORE THE
ACCUMULATION HAS REACHED HALF THE HEIGHT OF THE FENCE. THE SILT BARRIER WILL BE
RE-ANCHORED, REPAIRED, OR REPLACED AS NECESS$ARY. ALL OTHER CONTROLS WiLL BE
INSPECTED ON THE SAME SCHEDULE. IF EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL BMP'S FAIL TO
PERFORM AS EXPECTED, REPLACEMENT BMP'S, OR MODIFICATION OF THOSE INSTALLED WILL
BE REQUIRED.

ALL FILLS SHALL BE COMPACTED AS REQUIRED TO REDUCE EROSION, SLIPPAGE, SETTLEMENT,
SUBSIDENCE OR OTHER RELATED PROBLEMS, FILL INTENDED TO SUPPORT BUILDINGS,
STRUCTURES AND GONDUITS, ETC, SHALL BE COMPACTED IN ACCORDANCE YWITH LOCAL
REQUIREMENTS OR CODES,

ALL EARTHEN FILLS SHALL BE PLACED IN COMPACTED LAYERS NOT TO EXCEED 9 INCHES IN
THICKNESS.

FILL MATERIALS SHALL BE FREE OF FROZEN PARTICLES, BRUSH. ROOTS, SOD. OR OTHER
FOREIGN OR OBJECTIONABLE MATERIALS THAT WOULD INTERFERE WITH OR PREVENT
CONSTRUGTION OF SATISFACTORY FILLS. FILL SHALL NOT BE PLAGED ON SATURATED OR
FROZEN SURFACES.

SEEPS OR SPRINGS ENCOUNTERED DURING CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE HANDLED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE AMERICAN TOWER CORPORATION GONSTRUCTION SPECIFICATION
AND/OR THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY THE ATC CONSTRUCTION MANAGER.

SEDIMENT TRACKED ONTO ANY PUBLIC ROADWAY OR SIDEWALK SHALL BE RETURNED TO THE
CONSTRUCTION SITE BY THE END OF EACH WORK DAY AND DISPOSED IN THE MANNER
DESCRIBED IN THIS PLAN. [N NQ CASE SHALL THE SEDIMENT BE WASHED, SHOVELED, OR
SWEPT INTO ANY ROAGSIDE DITCH, STORM SEWER, OR SURFACE WATER.

CONSTRUCTION SEQUENCE:

1
2
3,
4.

5.
6.

REMOVE EXISTING FENCE AS SHOWN ON SITE PLAN.

INSTALL GRAVEL.

INSTALL PROPGSED GHAIN-LINK FENGE AS SHOWN ON PLANS.
CONSTRUCT PROPOSED TOWER PER TOWER MANUFACTURER'S SPECIFICATIONS.

INSTALL ANY REQUIRED ICE BRIDGES PER ATC SPECIFICATIONS.

DECONSTRUGT EXISTING TOWER ONLY ONCE THE PROPOSED TOWER IS ERECTED AND IN FULL
WORKING CONDITION.

IF CONSTRUCTION IS TERMINATED OR SUSPENDED PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION COMPLETION, ALL

EXPOSED SOIL AREAS SHALL BE SEEDED WITH TEMPORARY SEEDING AND MULCHED
IMMEDIATELY.

CONCRETE AND REINFORCING STEEL NOTES:

1

10.

.
12,
3.

DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION OF ALL CONCRETE ELEMENTS SHALL CONFORM TG THE LATEST
EDITIONS OF ALL APPLICABLE GODES INCLUDING: AC! 301 "SPECIFICATIONS FOR STRUCTURAL
CONCRETE FOR BUILDINGS", AND ACI 318 "BUILDING CODE REQUIREMENTS FOR REINFORCED
GCONCRETE",
MIX DESIGN SHALL BE APPROVED BY OWNER'S REPRESENTATIVE AND SUBMITTED TO ENGINEER
PRICR TO PLACING CONCRETE,
CONCRETE SHALL BE NORMAL WEIGHT, 6 % AIR ENTRAINED (+/- 1.5%) WITH A MAXIMUM 4" SLUMP
AND HAVE A MINIMUM 28-DAY COMPRESSIVE STRENGTH OF 4500 PSI UNLESS OTHERWISE
NOTED.
THE FOLLOWING MATERIALS SHALL BE USED:
PORTLAND CEMENT: ASTM C-150, TYPE 1 OR 2
REINFORCEMENT ASTM A-185, PLAIN STEEL WELDED WIRE FABRIC
REINFORCEMENT BARS! ASTM A§ 15, GRADE 60, DEFORMED

NORMAL WEIGHT AGGREGATE:  ASTM C-33
WATER! DRINKABLE
ADMIXTURES: NON-CHLORIDE CONTAINING

MINIMUM CONCRETE GOVER FOR REINFORCING STEEL SHALL BE AS FOLLOWS (UNLESS
OTHERWISE NOTED}

A. CONCRETE CAST AGAINST EARTH: 3"

B. ALL OTHER CONCRETE: 2"
A 314" CHAMFER SHALL BE PROVIDED AT ALL EXPOSED EDGES OF CONCRETE IN ACCORDANGE
WITH ACI 301 SECTION 4.2.4, UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE.
INSTALLATION OF CONCRETE EXPANSIONWEDGE ANCHOR SHALL BE PER MANUFACTURER'S
WRITTEN REGOMMENDED PROCEDURE. THE ANCHOR BOLT, DOWEL, OR ROD SHALL CONFORM
TO MANUFACTURER'S RECOMMENDATION FOR EMBEDMENT DEPTH OR AS SHOWN ON THE
DRAWINGS. NO REBAR SHALL BE CUT WITHOUT PRIOR ATC CM APPROVAL WHEN DRILLING
HOLES IN CONCRETE.
ADMIXTURES SHALL CONFORM TG THE APPROPRIATE ASTM STANDARD AS REFERENCED IN ACI
301
DO NOT WELD OR TACK WELD REINFORCING STEEL.
ALL DOWELS, ANCHOR BOLTS, EMBEDDED STEEL, ELECTRICAL CONDUITS, PIPE SLEEVES,
GROUNDS AND ALL OTHER EMBEDDED ITEMS AND FORMED DETAILS SHALL BE IN PLACE BEFORE
START OF CONCRETE PLACEMENT.
REINFORCEMENT SHALL BE COLD BENT YWHENEVER BENDING S REQUIRED.
DO NOT PLACE CONCRETE IN WATER, ICE, OR ON FROZEN GROUND.
DO NOT ALLOW REINFORCEMENT, CONCRETE OR SUBBASE TO FREEZE DURING CONCRETE
CURING AND SETTING PERIOD, OR FOR A MINIMUM OF 3 DAYS AFTER PLACEMENT.
FOR COLD-WEATHER AND HOT-WEATHER CONCRETE PLACEMENT, CONFORM TO APPLICABLI
ACI CODES AND RECOMMENDATIONS. IN EITHER CASE, MATERIALS CONTAINING CHLORIDE,
CALCIUM, SALTS, ETC. SHALL NOT BE USED. PROTECT FRESH CONCRETE FROM WEATHER FOR
7 DAYS, MINIMUM.
CONCRETE SHALL BE RUBBED TO A ROUGH GROUT FINISH. PADS SHALL BE SEALED BY STEEL
TROWEL.
UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED:

A ALL REINFORCING STEEL SHALL BE DEFORMED BARS CONFORNVING TO ASTM A815,

GRADE 60.

B. WELDED WIRE FABRIC SHALL CONFORM TO ASTM A185.
SPLICING OF REINFORGEMENT IS PERMITTED ONLY AT LOCATIONS SHOWN IN THE CONTRACT
DRAWINGS OR AS ACCEPTED BY THE ENGINEER. UNLESS OTHERWISE SHOWN OR NGTED
REINFORCING STEEL SHALL BE SPLICED TO DEVELOP ITS FULL TENSILE CAPACITY (CLASS A) IN
ACCORDANCE WITH ACI 318,
REINFORCING BAR DEVELOPMENT LENGTHS, AS COMPUTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH ACI 318,
FORM THE BASIS FOR BAR EMBECMENT LENGTHS AND BAR SPLICED LENGTHS SHOWN IN THE
DRAWINGS. APPLY APPROPRIATE MODIFICATION FACTORS FOR TOP STEEL, BAR SPACING,
COVER AND THE LIKE-
DETAILING OF REINFORCING STEEL SHALL CONFORM TO "ACI MANUAL OF STANDARD PRACTICE
FOR DETAILING REINFORCED CONCRETE STRUCTURES” (ACI 315).
ALL SLAB CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE CAST MONOLITHICALLY WITHOUT HORIZONTAL
CONSTRUCTION JOINTS, UNLESS SHOWN IN THE CONTRACT DRAWINGS.
LOCATION OF ALL CONSTRUCTION JOINTS ARE SUBJEGT TO THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE

1 FENTON MAIN STREET
SUITE 300
CARY, NG 27511
PHONE: (919) 468-0112

AMERICAN TOWER®
ATC TOWER SERVICES, LLC

THESE DRAWINGS ANDIOR THF ACCONPANYING

VERSION ON FIl £ WITH AMERICAN TOWER.

N REVIEW OF THS

REV. DESCRIPTION BY DATE
/0\___FORCONSTRUCTION __ JD _0¥25/24
A\ UPDTS PER PM JD. 0412224
VAN o -~
A R
JAN B
ATC SITE NUMBER
211984
ATC SITE NAME:

STRELO WOODBURY

SFAI"

e 4
I0 ..—._,.i

o,
s,
LTI

tmcndtire

| hereby oeri

Il this smysring douent wes prepar by
e or uder vy diret personal supsruisicn and | am & dly.
ensed Prcfes sinal Enginost under Lhe laws of e

CONTRACT DOCUMENTS, CONFORMANCE WITH AC! 318, AND AGGEPTANCE OF THE
DRAWINGS SHOWING LOGATION OF DETAILS GF THE PROPOSED CONSTRUCTION JOINTS SHALL
BE SUBMITTED W{TH REINFORCING STEEL PLACEMENT DRAWINGS
SPLICES OF WWF, AT ALL SPLICED EDGES, SHALL BE SUCH THAT THE OVERLAP MEASURED
BETWEEN OUTERMOST CROSS WIRES GF EACH FABRIC SHEET IS NOT LESS THAN THE SPACING
OF THE CRO$S WIRE PLUS 2 INCHES, NOR LESS THAN 8"
BAR SUPPORTS SHALL BE ALL-GALVINIZED METAL WITH PLASTIC TIPS.
ALL REIMFORCEMENT SHALL BE SECURELY TIED IN PLACE TQ PREVENT DISPLACEMENT BY
CONSTRUGTION TRAFFIC OR CGNCRETE, TIE WIRE SHALL BE 16 GAUGE CONFORMING TO ASTM
A2
SLAB ON GROUND

A COMPACT STRUCTURAL FILL TQ 85% DENSITY AND THEN PLACE 6" GRAVEL BENEATH

SLAB.
B. PROVIDE VAPOR BARRIER BENEATH SLAB ON GRQUND,

GENERAL FOUNDATION NOTES:

:pnwr:u)wfm FOR EQUIPMENT SHELTER ONLY)

THOROUGHLY COMPACT BOTTCM OF EXCAVATIONS PRIOR TO PLACING RIGID INSULATION
BARRIER. BACKFILL AND COMPAGTION PROCEDURES SHALL BE DONE PER INDUSTRY
STANDARDS.

ALL REINFORCING STEEL SHALL BE ASTM AB15 - GRADE 60. SECURE REINFCRGING IN PLACE TO
PREVENT MOVEMENT DURING CONCRETE PLACEMENT.

VERIFY DETAILS AND DIMENSIONS WITH SHELTER DRAWINGS. NOTIFY ATC CM OF ANY
DISCREPANGIES,

INSULATION BARRIER PROVIDED IS FOR FROST PROTECTION IN LIEU OF STANDARD
FOUNDATIONS WITH BEARING AT CODE REQUIRED FROST DEPTH.

SHELTER MUST BE ANCHORED TO ITS EOUNDATION. ANCHOR IN ACCORDANGE WITH SHELTER
MANUFACTURER SPECIFICATIONS.

Proedoripednan:, ScottWirgay
Lense Nurber _ 23705
d December 1, _2023

Pages o sheels eoverasby s sl _ALL

)

Digitally Signed: 2024-08-07

DATE DRAWN: | 03/25124
ATC JOBNO: | 14188750
OPS JOB NO: | 14686635_D6
ATC LEGACY #: | 50182

GENERAL NOTES

SHEET NUMBER:!

G-002

REVISION

1

99

15



PROJECT SUMMARY SURVEYOR'S NOTES

5 SHOWN O THE
‘SURFACE EVIDENCE

FLogmnan

[FER THE FEAA FLOOD 1AAPS. THE STTE 15 LOCATED M AN ARER
oEsiGHATED o5 20N %

COnUMTY PANEL N, 14193604000

aTeD:

aounpase e
FHR SURNEY 12 7ot 148 RESULT OF A COMPLES

NDARY SURVEY

o' WERE QESERVED NTE T

% S T LA o ErAEE (EACEESS AND LTILTY |  ANDSPROVEMENTS PRUSIMAL T0 GAID WTCRESTS

Easenciris) 1 DOES NOT CONSTITUTF A\ A TATISPE SURVEY OF
IHE EXTIRE PARENT SARGEL UNLESS NOTED

an wsiny

B s H
7\ ) >
£ T 2om s L]
o / z
\
\ 2500 51
\ \
m:f \s
260 I ﬁ./
s
2 &t

LEGAL DESCRIPTION

eaent erace as paovncn
FHe FCLLGP WG DESCABED NEAL ESTATE Ik VOOOHURY COUNTY, 10
THE EAS] ¥ GF FHE SOUTHEAST % GF SECTION 20 TORMSHIP 67 NORTH, RSHGE 47 WEGT OF THE STH PH,

TS BEING & PORTION OF THE PROPEATY COVEYED TO TRADEY.J KOBOLO TRUSTEE OF 1
emnnLF  KoBoLD. KasoLD m
7672 4 INSTRURENT KO 202208018 1 VIGODSURY COLIY. 10V1A

KOBOLE TRUSTFRAN
ECORDED AUSHIET 5

auctssuytuiry cAStMEN - 48 SUFCVEYED.
AN EASFHE NT U Fr WGER ARG ACROSS ALL THAT PART OF THE S

1 1112 REPOR 15500 B wrsTODR Unsp T mSURANCE o
Joan o nowebines . 1 contal FOLLOWING SURYEY KELAIEL1 RS

|| Y OEFECT LIEN. ENOUNBRANCE AGVERSE GLAIM R GTHER MATTER THAT AFPEARS FOR THE FIF: INTHE PUBLIC
ATED, ATIAGHEE. 0F IHE SOMIAENT DATE AND THE DATE GHMICH ALL OF THE

[SCHEDULE B BAAT I REGUREMENTS ARE M1 [UMKIOVIM T0 SURVEYOR]

> s HGUN BY THE PUBL G HECIAS, (UNKNOWN T0 SURVEVOR]

- exoe SHON Y THE PUBLIG IVARNOVE 10 SURVEYOR]

[ csoreraNGIFe GonF, (CTS IN BOUNEARY LINES ENCROAZKIHENTS GVERLARS VARIATIONS G SHORTAGE Ih ARCAOR
CConiTEt PARTY iAdLS IHD AN OTHER MATIERS THAT 9i0XJLD BE DISCLUSEI) Y A GURRELT SLRVEY ANDIOR PIIVGICAL
FisPecton aF THE LaNo (3HOWH HEREON,IF ANY

3 R RIGHT TOUIES, FOR SARVIGES. LES0R 06 MATERAL HeHE (13- ORE 08 AESEATTER FURNSHED, INPOSED Y L3
AN HOT SHOSN BY THE PUBLIC REGVHY. (N1 SURVEY RELATSL)

0 iy WATE R O WELL FIGHYS 05 FIGHTS O TITLE T WATER OH CLAMS THEREGE N OH 05 LNDER THE LAWD.|UNKINOWN
1o suvevom

LIPATENTED BAHING CLMWS, RESERVATONS N LHTER KNS IN #ATENTE O1 INTHE ACTS AUTHORING THE WSUANGE OF
oo raries o 5 suRsevem

AL TAXES, ASSESSHENTS chawcE WELUDNG

THE TS AND PROVISIONS OF ANY.
EXCERTIONS UNLE8S T3 EARED T0

VICINITY MAP

NTS

F ASCUMED T)IAT THEY ARE THE ,

PARENT PARCEL

REW. DESCRIPTION BY  DATE
0 PRELIM RIH 07/01/24
ATC SITE NUMBER:

AMERICAN TOWER"
ATC TOWER SERVICES, INC.

3500 REGENCY PARKWAY
SUITE 100

WERSION ON FILE WITH AMERICAN TOWER

211984
ATG SITE NAME:

STRELO - WOODBURY
COUNTY 108

SITE ADDRESS:
2593 BARKER AVE.
SALIX, 1A 51052

SURVEY CERTIFIGATE:

TO AMERICAN TOWER CORPORATION AND
WESTCOR LAND TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY -
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THIS MAP OR PLAT AND
THE EURVEY ONWHICH [T IS BASFR WFRF MADE
IN ACCORDANCE WITH 2016 MINIMUM STANDARD
DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR ALTAINSPS LAND
TITLE SURVEYS, JOINTLY ESTABLISHED AND
ADOPTED BY ALTA AND NSPS, AND INCLUDES
ITEMS 2, 3, 4, 6(B) (TO THE EXTENT, GRAPHICALLY
DEPICT ON SURVEY DRAWING THE ZONING
SETBACK LINES), 7(A), 71 7(C). 8,9, 13, AND 14
TABLE ATHEREOF. THE FIELD WORK WAS
COMPLETED ONBI27/28 .

DATE OF PLAT DR MAP: 07/02/24

(SIONED)_Shatethod.

NAME!  Matthow T Makanyk 1.8, P E
lowa P.§ No. 18018

LANDTECH

Prafezanal Sty & ERgectng

G
DRAWNBY. | RH
REVIEWED BY: | MM
| DATE DRAVN: | 0701124

[Joswo. | aesseomo |
ALTA/NSPS
LAND TITLE SURVEY

ATC DEAL TYPE: STRELO .
SHEET NUMBER: REVISION:

v-101 0

100

16



— —x— —
—— —X— = —

I |

LEGEND
EXISTING PROPERTY
EXISTING ADJ. PROPERIY

S EASEMENT

i CONTOUR (WMAJOR)
EXISTING CONTOUR A\SZQ.M\,
LXISTING TREELINE
EXISTNG CF

CXISTING BUILDING
STORM DRAIN

EXISTING ROAD

EXISTING ROAG (
NG ROAD (PAVED)
NG CONCRETE

EXISTING LEASE AR,
EXISTING OVFRH
EXISTING UTILITY

AT Right Te

AMERICAN TOWER"®
ATC TOWER SERVICES, LLC
1 FENTON MAIN STREET
SUITE 300
CARY, NC 27511
PHONE; (319) 463-0112

BT ATG 1P UL

THESE DRAWINGS ANGIOR THE ACCOMPANYING.

EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY OF AMERICAN TOWER. THEIR USE AND.
BE RESTRICTED TO THE ORIGINAL SITE

FORWHICH THEY ARE PREPARED.

OTHER THAN THAT WWHICH RELATES TO AMERICAN TOWER OR

THE SPECIFIED CARRIER IS STRICTLY PROMBITED. TITLE 1O

THESE DOCUMENTS SHALL REMAIN THE PROPERTY OF

TopyIgn &

REV. DESCRIPTION BY DATE
A FOR 1ON D 03725124 |

ATC SITE NUMBER:
211984
ATC SITE NAME:
STRELO WOODBURY
COUNTY - 108

i,
n,,

e
SEAL: M :n.- .m.w SCOTTA /_MWM
i 1

Digitally Signed: 2024-08-07

DATE DRAWN: | 03/26/24
ATG JOB NO: | 14186750
OPS JOB NO: | 14666635_D6
ATC LEGACY #:| 50182

OVERALL SITE PLAN

SHEET NUMBER: REVISION:

C-101 3

101

17



1

2.

CONSTRUCTION NOTES:

SEDIMENT TRACKED ONTO ANY PUBLIC ROADWAY OR SIDEWALK

SHALL BE RETURNED TO THE CONSTRUCTION $ITE BY THE END OF

EACH WORK DAY AND DISPOSED IN THE MANNER DESCRIBED IN
THIS PLAN. IN NO CASE SHALL THE SEDIMENT BE WASHED,

SHOVELED, OR SWEPT INTC ANY ROADSIDE DITCH, STORM SEWER,

OR SURFACE WATER,

NOTIFY ATC GONSTRUCTION MANAGER AT LEAST 7 DAYS PRIOR TO

STARTING ANY EARTH DISTURBANCE ACTIVITIES.

AT LEAST 3 DAYS PRIOR TO STARTING ANY EARTH DISTURBANCE

ACTIVITIES, THE ONE CALL 8YSTEM, INC. SHALL BE NOTIFIED.
SILT FENCING AND OTHER SEDIMENTATION CONTROL METHODS
TO BE IMPLEMENTED DURING CONSTRUCTION AS REQUIRED.

REFER TQ ATC CONSTRUCTION SPECIFICATION SECTION 312500-3.7

WETLAND IMPACT TABLE (EASEMENT OPTION A}

AREA TYPE TOTAL (SF) TOTAL|(
PERMANENT DISTURBANGE ARER
(COMPOUND} 5250 s
PERMANENT DISTURBANCE AREA
(EASEMENT & ROAD) 737280 917
PERMANENT WETLAND DISTURBANCE AREA 843.00 002
TOTAL PERMANENT PROJECT DISTURBANCE AREA 12997.00 030
ToTAL WETLAND AREA 843.00 0.0z
CIVIL LEGEND
B WETLAND FLAG
B —— Y
[ T3 WETLAND BOUNDARY
UTEEPAITEGRD)  PROPOSED LOD
LEGEND
——————mm— DOSTING PROPERTY
— - ——— == — EXSTING ADJ. PROPERTY
“““““““““ EXISTING EASEMENT
XN —  EXISTING CONTOUR (MAJOR)
— — —Xxy— — — EXISTING CONTOUR (MINOR)

rerveerereeerereeen. LXISTING TREELINE

— e e LXISTING CHAINLINK FENCE

E 5555 4 EXISTING BUILEING
s ———st———  EXISTING STORM DRAIN
EXISTING ROAD (i)

FXISTING ROAD (STONE)
FXISTING ROAD (PAVEE)
EXISTING CONCRETE

EXISTING LEASE AREA
EXISTING OVERHEAD Wik
EXISTING UTIITY POEE

JNDARY
DATED

ATED BY LAND
ISIONAL
ENGINEERING)

60TH ST amme

AMERICAN TOWER®
ATC TOWER SERVICES, LLC
1 FENTON MAIN STREET
SUITE 300
CARY, NC 27511
PHONE: (919) 468-0112

o

TTATG P LLS

8
:
:
]
4
3
H
!
&

ATC SITE NUMBER:
211984
ATC SITE NAME:
STRELO WOODBURY
COUNTY - 108

Q

uj
«
%

%

f

“,

(graurs)

T veraby ooty hal this engineenng docamen! wis prepares Ly

e of under i direc! personel supsrsion ane | ama sy

i under toea
Scott Wirgau

Licznse Nurber. _ 23708

by iarsa reoewal dal s Decenrber 3,_2023

[Pages o sheets covered by tis sear _ALL

e

Digitally Signed: 2024-08-07

DATE DRAWN: | 03f25/24
ATC JOB NO 14188750
OPS JOB NO: 14686635_D6

ATC LEGAGY #: | 50182

WETLAND IMPACT
SITE PLAN
SHEET NUMBER: REVISION:

C-102 2

102

18



103

19

CUTFILL cut NET _ _
VOLUMES o' (Yo' | H ,/
ACCESS ROAD 1.43 157.63 | 15620 FILL b : -~ Ay #
\ \
COMPOUND 0.00 10583 | 10583 FILL 5 o~
T S \ AMERICAN TOWE!
| BT R = b \ ATC TOWER SERVICES, LLC
_ 2 / 1 FENTON MAIN STREET
STONE STONE | STONE © SUITE 300
REQUIRED WMWMMHN <M\_MWAHI FMHHMWI IMPORT | IMPORT 2 \\ CARY, NC 27511 5
FOR ROAD " : ? o'} | (ToNs) ’ — 1083.70 — 108295 PHOME: (219) 460-r112 5
1083.41" I
OMPOUND 6 T 7! 5 R _ /
C 5 5 10417 14177 H J PROPOSED 250
) O THESE DRANINGS ANDIOR THE ACCOMPANYING g
ROAD | PROPOSED 20 ACCESS SPECIFIGATION AS INSTRUWENTS OR SERVIGE ARE: THE :
COARSE g 1200, f| 1269 5918 | 8130 & UTILITY EASEMENT LAT: Nd2° 16 51.85" EXGLUSIVE PROPERTY OF Rubican Tomen. HesR use wo |
PROPOSED 20' OF 18" :%m 5 LONG: Wee" 200211 B A omeoAne ot LS O DSCHOBRE |2
TOTAL 163.94 | 22343 @ 2% SLOPE OTHER THAN THAT WHICH RELATES TO AMERICAN TOWEROR |2
-——— THE SPECIFIED CARRIER IS STRICTLY PROMIBITED. TITLE TO
THESE DOCUMENTS SHALL REMAIN THE PROPERTY OF
JAMERICAN TOWER VHETHER OR NOT THE PROJECT (5
* CUT/ FILL CALCULATIONS ARE APPROXIMATE. THE AMOUNT OF 1 i 34 3475 EXECUTED. NEITHER THE ARCHITECT NOR THE ,;n._-mmné
TORSOIL THAT WILL NEED TO BE REMOVED AND THE COMPACTION | —- 22— Vvl - ey 2L — = ~ 1% o) e JERE AL EIENSIONS YD
AND SHRINKAGE FACTORS WILL VARY BASED ON SITE CONDITIONS. ADVISE AMERICAN TOWER OF ANY DISCREPANCIES. ANY PRIOR
= oL L a END LIMITS OF WORK ISSUANGE OF THS DRAWING 15 SUPERSEDED BY THE LATEST
* AMOUNT OF STONE TO IMPORT |S APPROXIMATE. THE CONTRACTOR - e — - B A STA3+44 VERSION ON FIL E WITH AVERICAN TOWER
SHALL FOLLOW THE DETAILS ON THE PLANS TO THE APPROPRIATE N D PROPOSED 1 m u
STONE DEPTHS. N AGCESS ROAD ﬁ = /l — REV. DESCRIPTION BY  DATE
N STAQMCTORE PROPOSED 12 X 20' - ;
\ TURN AROUND /O\___FORCONSTRUCTION __ JD 0325124 |
GRADING PLAN \ PROPOSED \ L 108347 i
1 UPDTS PERPM _ JD__0d4z2/24 |
) POWER AND TELCO \ PROPOSED 75' X 75' A~
UTILITY ROUTE ﬁ 108870\ COMPOUND FAN— . ——
0 500 100 HY \C50)/ (10 BE FIELD CONNECTED . A
——— } i TO EXISTING POWER & TELCO \ v s
= — ROUTE ALONG 260TH ST} 3y 7ay —
Ay ”
(11X17) | \ /
(22%34) \ \ ATC SITE NUMBER:
N / 211984
A\ ATC SITE NAME:
\
_ \ STRELO WOODBURY
/ OOCZ._.< - 108
N \
N \
N N
F \
SEAL: m
PROPOSED & £
GHAIN-LINK FENCE 7 H
1090 1090 W
H Isgn 2urt)
| herotyy it
/ me or uner my direct parscnal supervision and | ama daly
20 32 Profassinnal Enginanr under e ows al the: State of lava
237% umOMWmmm — Pinicdo pednane. ScottWirgaw |
1085/ 1085  cerse vres 23705
e st sl FIUFUSEL LU \ 55 / 152 revewaldake s Decerrber 71,_2023
LEGEND % — A\ s 0% Pages or sl corered by s seat _ALL
— - —————— EXISTING PROPLRTY Bt s e | e T [
; PROPERTY ﬂ \ M I Digitally Signed: 2024-08-07
EASEMENT r /G GRADE —
CONTOUR (MAJ0R) Sy
- . I~ PROPOSED
CONTOUR (MINOR) CULYERT
reerennereremenreeme. EXISTING TREELINE
— ———  EXISTING CHAINLINK Fi _cm.% = @z Tl EMH Tz @|E w|E e o Tz M G|z oE W ) [ 1080
e Y o S =l h =l =I5 =l5a Sloa e P ez Sl =5~ i ) Tles == S Tl= DATE DRAWN: | 03726124
. ) «|2E o (2T -2 © 8§ ~|GR w | B& o |38 NG o) - k@ ol|tR 2|35 2|8y a|2Y 2T @i U<
BUILDING slge dlge oles b Ey- ElETs PAEES zlge g3 slde glze g|ge pl=e dlme ] s 2 ATC JOB NO: | 14188750
STORM DRAIN B g ele 28 2 e 82 g2 22 ] 2|2 2ic =e 2le = 2 OPS JOB NO: | 14686635_D6
ROAD (DIRT) 0+00 0+25 0+50 0+75 1+00 1425 1450 1475 2+00 2425 2+50 2+75 3+00 3+25 3+50 3475 4+Q0 ATC LEGACY #:] 50182
T EXISTING ROAD (PAVED) P PROFILE PROFILE
e —
I | LXSTNG CONCRETE R
(FASE A4RCA 9 il 8 SHEET NUMBER: REVISION:
- [— s e—
QUERMEAD WIRC — —d A A
S UHLITY POLE OINO




75.0°

750"

&

(PROPOSED

20.2

GRAVEL
mcnnﬁmmv

PROPOSED
ICE BRIDGE
(TYP)

ATET
PROPOSED

1240

100 X 200
GROUND SPACE

40"

T-MOBILE
PROPOSED
10X 15"

PROPOSED 250'

SELF SUPPORT TOWER

PROPOSED 120" GATE

GROUND SPACE

|
— L

&

PROPOSED
GENERATOR

(TO BE RELOCATED
FROM PREVIOUS SITE)

(2 ProposeD
\C-503/ ATC H-FRAME

(3 PROPOSED POWER AND
\G50y TELCO UTILITY ROUTE

—.l —— — —l— — —u—

S

w.gr

7
WAV

Q COMPQOUND PLAN

w

SCALE: 1"=10' (11X17)
125 (22X34)

PROPOSED §*
GHAIN-LINK FENCI
AND GATE

&

AMERICAN TOWER®
ATC TOWER SERVICES, LLC
1 FENTON MAIN STREET
SUITE 300
GARY, NG 27511
PHONE: (913) 468-0112

THESE DRAWINGS ANDIOR THE ACCOMPANTING
‘SPECIFIGATION AS INSTRUMENTS OR SFERVICE ARE THE
EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY OF AMERICAN TOWER, THER USF AND
PUBLICATION SHALL BE RESTRICTED TO THE ORIGINAL SITE
FOR WHIGH THEY ARE PREPARED, ANY USE OR DISCLOSURE

PROJECT. CONTRACTORIS) MUST VERIFY Al L DIMENSIONS AND.
ADVISE AMERICAN TOWE OF ANY DISCREPANGIES. ANY PRIOR
ISSUANCE OF THIS DRAWING 15 SUPERSEDED BY THE LATE 5T
VERSIGM ON FILE WITH AMERICAN TOWER

REV. DESCRIPTION BY DATE
/0\_ FORCONSTRUCTION __ _JD 0325024 |
A\ UPDTSPERPM JD__04/22024

ATC SITE NUMBER:
211984
ATC SITE NAME:
STRELO WOODBURY
COUNTY - 108

(sgndte)

| hevety osriythe s engin
me of under my:

et the aws ol [

Scott Wirgau

Lcerne Number 23705

[ty lcemse renewal dale is Decomizer 31, 2023
Pagss of s covetedby s et _ALL

Digitally Signed: 2024-08-07

DATE DRAWN; | 03/25/24

ATC JOBNO: | 14188750

OPSJOB NO: | 14686635_D

ATC LEGACY # | 50182

COMPOUND PLAN

SHEET NUMBER: REVISION:

C-401 1

104

20



AMERICAN TOWER®
TOP OF PROPOSED TOWER ATC TOWER SERVICES, LLC
JAIN STREET
ELEV. 1334.1' AMSL 1 mmzqmu_ﬂm _us
ELEV.250.2' AGL.

CARY, NC 27511
PHONE: (919} 468-0112 -

THESE DRAWINGE ANDIOR THE ACCOMPANTING d
SPECIFIGATION A5 INSTRUMENTS OR SERVICK ARE THE =
TOWER NOTE. EX: PROPERTY OF AMERICAN TOWER THEIR USE AND

SHOWN IS FOR
PROPOSED ATAT MOBILITY ANTENNAS " _nf\wqm_Amxﬂ_q.@wo_ﬁw_Smmm ONLY AND
RAD CENTER 216 AGL. MAY NOT REPRESENT ACTUAL FINAL
LOADING. PLEASE REFER TO THE
LATEST RFDS OR APPLICATION FOR
CONFIRMATION.

Ty

VERSION ON FILE 4I1H ANERICAN TOWER

REV. DESCRIPTION
/B\  FORCONSTRUCTION

/N UPDTSPERPM D 042224

=
-

ATC SITE NUMBER
211984
ATC SITE NAME

STRELO WOODBURY

PROPOSED T-MOBILE ANTENNAS
RAD CENTER 150' A.G.L.

:

-
-

his enginesring doc
e or under my direct perscnal supervisicn and Lam  ddy

Q'ﬁh@m_..ﬁm.l 0P OF PIER i 2
EL. 1084.7 (AMSL) ; 3 ~"EL 70070 (A eretadon i v, _Scott Wirgau
23705

My licerise renewal dafe is December 31,2023

Pages or sheets enveredt by this seal _ALL

o)

Digitally Signed: 2024-08-07

TOWER BASE TABLE
ISHED GRADE EXPOSED
LEG (FT) TOPOFPIER(FT} | concreTe (FT) DATE DRAWN: | 03125124
A 1083.2 1083.8 0.8 ATC JOB NO: 14188750
OPS JOB NO: 14686635_D6
° = = = ATC LEGACY #:| 50182
c 1083.4 10838 0.5
PROPOSED GRADE
ELEV 1083.9° AMSL
ELEVO'AG.L.

>")_TOWER BASE ELEVATION TOWER ELEVATION

SCALE: NOT TO SCALE

PROPOSED TOWER ELEVATION

SCALE: NOT TO SCALE

SHEET NUMBER REVISION.

C-402 1

105

21



22

106



23

107



24

108



GROUNDING PLAN NCTES:

1. ALL DETAILS ARE SHOWN IN GENERAL TERMS, ACTUAL INSTALLATION

AND CONSTRUCTION MAY VARY DUE TO SITE SPECIFIC CONDITIONS,
2, ALL GROUND CONNECTIONS SHALL BE EXOTHERMIC WELDED. ALL
WIRES SHALL BE COPPER.
CONTRACTOR TO VERIFY AND TEST GROUND TO SOURGE.

GROUNDING AND OTHER OPERATIONAL TESTING WILL BE AMERICAN TOWER®
WITNESSED BY OWNER REPRESENTATIVE, ATC TOWER SERVICES, LLC
4. REFER TO ATC CONSTRUCTION SPEG AND COMPLY WITH ALL 4 FENTON MAIN STREET
REQUIREMENTS OF GROUNDING STANDARDS, SUITE 300
5. ELECTRICAL GONTRACTOR TO PROVIDE DETANLED DESIGN OF CARY, NC 27511
GROUNDING SYSTEM, AND RECEIVE APPROVAL OF DESIGN BY PHONE: (319) 4680112

OWNER REPRESENTATIVE. PRIOR TO INSTALLATION OF GROUNDING
SYSTEM. PHOTO DOCUMENT ALL CONNECTIONS AND GROUND RING
6. NOTIFY CONSTRUCTION MANAGER IF THERE ARE ANY DIFFICULTIES

INSTALLING GROUNDING SYSTEWM DUE TO SITE SOIL GONDITIONS. D o Ttk SERNCE o
7. TOAVOID TOWER FOUNDATION, GROUND RODS MAY BE INSTALLED e ot oI zbh =l
e

OTHER THAN THAT WHICH RELATES TO AMERICAN TOWER O
THL SPECIFIED CARRILR 1S STRICTLY PROMIBITED, TITLE TO

PROJECT. CONTRACTORIS) MUST VERIFY ALL DINENSIONS AND
KEYED NOTES: ADWSE AMERICAN TOWER OF ANY DISCREMANCIES. ANY PRIOR
ISSUANCE OF THIE DRAWING IS SUPERSCDED BY THE LATEST.

OTHERWISE INDICATED. PLACE MINIMUM OF 10 FROM ALL
GTHER GROUND RODS,

TOWER TO GROUND RING BONDS, SEE DETAIL 3 ON SHEET
E-501.

#2 AWG SBTC TOWER GROUND RING, VERSION ON FILE WITH AMERICAN TOWER
(MIN 2 FT FROM FOUNDATION)
REV. DESCRIFTION BY DATE
#2 AWG SBTC TOWER RING RADIALS. GROUNDING RADIAL o
{TYP.) SEE TRENCH DETAIL 4 ON SHEET E-501. MAINTAIN DEPTH ___FOR CONSTRUCTION _JD 032524
@ AND MINIMUM 15 FT, SEPARATION FROM QTHER RADIALS AT /N UPDTSPERPM U0 0dzaze
ENDS AND MINIMUM 5 FT. SEPARATION AT GROUNDING A
SYSTEMS AND BUILDING FOUNDATIONS, S
@ 342" X 10 FT GROUND ROD (TYP). SEE DETAIL 2 ON SHEET T - B
E-501 ==
3/49" X 10 FT GROUND ROD WITH TEST WELL (MIN. ONE PER ATC SITE NUMBER:
SITE ON TOWER GROUND RING). SEE DETAIL § ON SHEET E-501 211984
BOND TO ELECTRICAL SERVICE AT MAIN BONDING JUMPER .
@ WITH #2 AWG SBTC. PARALLEL CONNECTION AWAY FROM L
TOWER, SEE DETAIL 1 ON SHEET E-501. STRELO WOODBURY
° SERVICE GROUND ROD SIZE MINIMUM PER NEC OR AS COUNTY - 108

fsgaaturs)

[ erety centily
me or uncies

Privegor pedname _Scott Wirgau
Uicnnss purber. 23705

wal daleis Decamber 3%, _Z023
sed AL

e
1. INSTALL STANDARD LEVEL | DESIGN {BASE BID) WHICH INCLUDES: Digitally Signed: 2024-08-07

- 14,  TOWERRING, 1 GROUND RQD PER LEG, SERVICE GROUND ROD
AT H-FRAME, RADIALS TO H-FRAME . ADDITIONAL WORK
NECESSARY BELOW SHALL BE CONSIDERED AN ALLOWANCE.
2, MEASURE GROUNDING SYSTEM RESISTANGE WITH A 3-PROBE TEST
PRICR TO BACKFILL/DEMOBILIZATION AND PRIOR TO CONNECTION
OF UTILITY POWER NEUTRAL TO THE SYSTEM.
3. IF GROUNDING SYSTEMRESISTANCE IS GREATER THAN 10 OHMS
COORDINATE WITH ATC ENGINEER OF RECORD.

GROUNDING PLAN [ _

_m‘ o INSTALLATION NOTES: "“.e: .x‘d
‘/.\ / \.\ _

DATE DRAWN: | 03/25/24

ATC JORNO: | 14188750
OPS JOB NO: | 1468663506
ATC LEGACY # | 50182

e e ] —e—

GROUNDING LAYOUT

0 20 e m = GROUND WIRE COPPER GROUND
4 J ROD
J
ELD SHEET NUMBER: REVISION
SCALE: 1"=10' (11X17} | - FroTHERMET TEST WELL
1°=5" (22X30) | m L.O A ;_
| (] MECHANICAL WELD -

109

25




NOTES
ANTENNA GROUND BAR W0
1. LOCATE BEFORE DIGGING, INSULATORS, BONDED DIRECTLY
o TO THE BOTTGM OF TOWER WITH .
N RADIAL DEPTHS AT 30 OR v
5 OHiCHEvERTs oREaTER FABETONESCST LES STAINLESS STEEL HARDWARE E
(SEENOTE 1) :
3. WELD GROUND TO FENCE AS LOW AS POSSIBLE TO DETER AMERICAN TOWER®
GOPPER THEFT ATC TOWER SERVICES, LLC
CADWELD SIZE § AWG LUG 1 FENTON MAIN STREET
EXOTHERMIC WELD SUITE 300 8
CARY, NG 27511
ROUTE N TO TRANSMISSION EQUIPMENT VIA . =
PVC CONDUIT TRAY OR ICE BRIDGE PHONE: (919) 468-0112 -
EXOTHERMIC WELD
SIZE2AWCBOW BOND TO BASE PLATE. DO NOT THES E DRAWINGS ANDJOR THE ACCOMPANYING
SOLID TINNED BOND TO TOWER LEG. ey by iy MO

EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY OF AMERICAN TOWER THEIR USE ATD.

PARALLEL, NO T-WELDS ALLOWED
10N SHALL BE RESTRICTED T0 THE ORIGINAL SITE

%mﬁw%

\ ATC SITE NUMBER
211984

ATC SITE NAME:

STRELO WOODBURY
OD DETAIL COUNTY - 108

@ONOCZD R
SCALENTS.

(NO SLAG OR DEFORMITIES ALLOWED)
SIZE 2 AWG BGW
] SOLID TINNED GROUNDIWIEE
T |
o
JUMPER, #2 SBTC o m #2EHIG) GROUND RING
GROUNDING
e TR THEARCHITECT 16 T ENGTEER WL
12 g0 EXIERCR GROUND NG SONBUCTOR A e
1. NUMBER OF GROUNDING BARS MAY VARY DEPENDING ON
THE TYPE OF TOWER, ANTENNA LOGATIONS AND VERSION ON FILE W H AMERICAN TOWER
EXQTHERMIC WELD CONNECTION ORIENTATION. PROVIDE AS REQUIRED.
GROUND BAR IS NOT REQUIRED FOR SITES WITH ONE
oG] REV. DESGRIPTION BY DATE
COPPER CLAD STEEL GROUND ROD \ 5\___FORCONSTRUCTION _ JD _0325/24
/i uPDTSPERPM D 04122724
TIE CONNECTION DETAIL wo%o
SCALE'NTS .,..oo aO - -
e € 2 3 TOWER GROUNDING S
SCALE NOT TO SCALE Ay .

110

26

<2
SEAlC F %Y
£ 23
3
L H Bi
GRADE ‘m
T8 E
3
=l £y
= 4 ol
l i I (TN Er ey p—p—"T
i e o undex my ditect personal supensicn 3nd kam a daly
MINIMUM 6°8 PYC WITH FEMALE .
o ! \\ MMM B PVC WITH PV et oo s w301 S o
£ / Pited o1 Gyped name._Scott Wirgau
S f 23705
u H FENGE POST M My ersa renewaldale s Decernbe 41,2023
L { Fages or shasls covereby s st _ALL
i
1. i EXOTHERMIC WELD e
RESTORE SURFACE TO ORIGINAL H 12 STC CROUNDING FING COLDIGALVANIZEAFTERCOOTING Digitally Signed: 2024-08-07
GONDITION L #2 SBTC
§ GROUND CONDUCTOR
\ TG GROUNDING
5 } ELECTRODE GONDUCTOR LOOF
= :M_L UNDISTURBED SOIL I 3" OF GRUSHED ROCK BELOW
% WELD. WELD SHALL REMAIN _—
i ] VISIBILE Y ,m.wﬁ»mﬂ.mmu.q
5 COMPAGTED BACKFILL ﬂm.gwh» ; = DATE DRAWN: | 03/2524
z i 95% STANDARD PROCTOR, 7 > ATC JOBNO: _| 14186750
I WITHIN 2% OF OPTIMUM MOISTURE \/ d =
@ CONTENT EXOTHERMIC WELD COPPER CLAD STEEL GROUND ROD a\/ OPS JOBNO: | 14686635_06
X ATC LEGACY # | 50182
) SEE DETAIL 4
. 42 SBTC
SHEET NUMBER:
GROUND CONNECTION TRENCH DETAIL (STD.) TEST WELL DETAIL FENCE GROUNDING DETAIL
SCALE: NTS, SCALE:NTS mlmvo\_
e SCALE: NS




CAP EX INSPECTION NOTES

THE SPECIAL INSPECTION (S1) PROGEDURE 1S INTENDED TO CONFIRM THAT CONSTRUCTION AND
INSTALLATION MEETS ENGINEERING DESIGN, ATC PROCEDURES AND ATC STANDARD

SPECIFICATIONS FGR WIRELESS TOWER SITES.

TO ENSURE THAT THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE SI ARE MET, IT IS VITAL THAT THE GENERAL
CONTRACTOR AND THE INSPECTOR BEGIN COMMUNICATING AND COORDINATING AS SOON AS A PO
IS RECEVED FROM AMERICAN TOWER CORPORATION (ATC). IT IS EXPECTED THAT EACH PARTY
WILL PROAGTIVELY REACH OUT TO THE OTHER PARTY. IF CONTACT INFGRMATION 1S NOT KNOWN,

CONTACT YOUR AMERICAN TOWER POINT OF CONTACT,

SPECIAL INSPECTOR

THE SPECIAL INSPECTOR IS REQUIRED TO CONTACT THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR AS SOON AS RECEIVING A
PO FROM ATC, UPON RECEIVING A PG FROM ATC THE SPECIAL INSPECTOR AT A MINIMUM MUST:

«  REVIEW THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE SI CHECKLIST.

«  WORK WITH THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR TO DEVELOP A SGHEDULE TO GONDUCT ON-SITE INSPECTIGNS
INCLUDING FOUNDATION INSPECTIONS.

ANY CONCERNS WITH THE SGOPE OF ‘WORK OR PROJECT COMMITMENT MUST BE RELAYED TO THE ATC
POINT OF CONTACT IMMEDIATELY,

THE SPECIAL INSPECTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR COLLECTING ALL GENERAL CONTRACTOR INSPECTION AND
TEST REFORTS, REVIEWING THESE DOCUMENTS FOR ADHERENCE TO CONTRACT DOCUMENTS, CONDUCTING
THE IN-FIELD INSPEGTIONS, AND SUBMITTING THE S| REPORT TO AMERICAN TOWER CORPORATION,

GENERAL CONTRACTOR

THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR IS REQUIRED TO CONTACT THE S1INSPECTOR AS SOON AS RECEIVING A
PO FOR THE MODIFICATION INSTALLATION OR TURNKEY PROJECT TO. AT A MINIMUM

= REVIEW THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE S| CHECKLIST.

- WORKWITH THE §I TO DEVELOP A SCHEDULE TO CONDUCT ON-SITE INSPECTIONS, INCLUBING
FOUNDATION INSPECTIONS,

+  BETTER UNDERSTAND ALL INSPECTION AND TESTING REQUIREMENTS,

THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR SHALL PERFORM AND RECORD THE TEST AND INSPECTION RESULTS IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE SI CHECKLIST.

CAP EX SPECIAL INSPECTION CHECKLIST

INSPECTION ITEM

DESCRIPTION

INSPECTION
TESTING Iy

S| REVIEW REQUIRED
PRE CX POST CX

INSPECTION FREQUENCY
PERIODIC | CONTINUOUS

DURING CX

AMERICAN TOWER® =
ATC TOWER SERVICES, LLC
1 FENTON MAIN STREET

SUITE 300 :
GARY, NC 27511
PHONE: (919) 4680112

THESE DRAWINGS SNEIOR 1HE ACCOMPANYING
SPE =
FXCLUSIVE PROPERTY OF AWERICAN TOWER THEIR USE anD |

SPECIAL INSPECTION FIELD WORK & REPORT

DOCUMENTATION AND SITE VISIT CONDUCTED BY AN ATC APPROVED SPEGIAL INSPECTOR AS REQUIRED BY ATC AND OTHER
AUTHORITIES HAYING JURISDICTION. INSPECTION PARAMETERS TO FOLLOW ATG'S CONSTRUCTION SPECIFICATIONS FOR
WIRELESS TOWER SITES.

Y st Y4 P

ENGINEERING ASSEMBLY DRAWINGS

GC SHALL SUBMIT DRAWINGS TO $1 FOR INCLUSION IN S| REFORT

FABRICATED MATERIAL VERIFICATION & INSPECTION

MTR AND CR MILL CERTIFICATIONS FOR SUPPLIED MATERIALS GC SHALL SUPPLY SI WITH REPORTS TO BE INCLUDED IN S|
REPORT WHEN REQUIRED BY ATC

4
v

VERSION ON FILE WITH ANERICAN | OWER.

ROAD INSPECTION

STONE SHOULD HAVE A MINIMUM DEPTH OF 67, ENTRANCE SHALL HAVE A MINIMUM WIDTH OF 20 FOR A MINIMUM LENGTH OF
30 AND A 30" RADIUS, IF POSSIBLE. TRAVEL LANE SHALL HAVE A MIN, WIDTH OF 12' IN THE TANGENTS AND 15' AT THE CURVES.
ROAD HAS NO SIGNS OF RILLS AND EROSION. ROAD IS PROPERLY GROWNED OR SUPER-ELEVATED. ALL DIMENSIONS AND
DEPTHS SHALL BE PER THE PLANS OR ABOVE UNLESS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED.

v ce/sl 4 v

INSPECTION

ADITCH SHOULD BE INSTALLED PER THE APPROVED PLANS, INSPECT EROSION PROBLEMS, DAMAGE TO YEGETATION,
SEDIMENT AND DEBRIS ACCUMULATION (ADDRESS WHEN >3 INCHES AT ANY SPOT OR COVERING VEGETATION). INSPECT FOR
POOLS OF STANDING WATER. IF REQUIRED, DEWATER AND DISCHARGE TQ AN APPROVED LOCATION AND RESTORE GRADE
TO PROVIDE POSITIVE DRAINAGE. VEGETATION ALONG THE SURFAGE OF THE DITCH SHOULD BE KEPT IN GOOD CONDITION,
AND ANY BARE SPOTS IMMEDIATELY RE-VEGETATED. IF THE DITCH IS RIP-RAP VERIFY IF ADDITIONAL RIP-RAP NEEDS TO BE
INSTALLED, THE CHANNEL SHOULD BE CLEANED WHENEVER THE TOTAL DEPTH IS REDUCED BY 25% AT ANY LOCATION OR A
MINIMUM g DEPTH IS NOT ACHIEVED.

REV. DESCRIPTION BY DATE
\=/ ____FOR CONSTRUCTION JO 0325124

/N UPDTSPERPM D oa2224

CHECK DAM INSPECTION

INSPECT AND CORRECT CHECK DAMS WHEN SIGNS OF ALTERED WATER FLOW (CHANNELIZATION, OBSTRUCTICNS, EROSION
ETC.) ARE IDENTIFIED.CHECK DAMS SHOULD BE HALF OF THE DITCH HEIGHT. A CHECK DAM SHALL BE INSTALLED AT THE
CULVERT TO PREVENT BYPASS FLOW.

WATER BAR INSPECTION

1S THE WATER BAR FUNCTIONING PROPERLY AND PREVENT WATER FROM TRAVELING DOWN THE ROADWAY IN STEER SLOPES.
OR AT CURVES. SHOULD BE CONSTRUCTED AND MAINTAINED AT A CROSS SLOFE OF 2% AND DISCHARGE TO A DITCH OR WELL
VEGETATED AREA.

TURN-OUT INSPECTION

1S THE TURNOUT LOCATED TO TAKE ADVANTAGE OF NATURAL DRAINAGE COURSES OR BUFFER AREAS WHERE POSSIBLE?
INSPECT AND VERIFY IF THE TURNOUTS ARE FUNCTIONING PROPERLY AND IF EARTHEN BERMS OR RIP-RAF IS NECESSARY TO
MAINTAIN THE DRAINAGE PATTERN.

CULVERT INSPECTION

INSTALLED THE CORREGT SIZE AND MATERIAL TYPE AND AT THE PROPER LOCATIONS WITH A MINIMUM OF 1* COVER
GULVERTS SHOULD BE KEPT CLEAN AND ENSURE WATER FLOW. UNLESS AT A LOW FOINT ALL A DOWNS IREAM EARTHEN OR
STONE BERM SHALL BE INSTALLED AT THE CULVERT TO PREVENT BYPASS FLOW.

ATC SITE NUMBER:
211984
ATC SITE NAME:
STRELO WOODBURY
COUNTY - 108

QUTLET PROTECTION INSPEGTION

SHALL BE INSTALLED ON LEVEL GRADE TO PREVENT SCOUR AND EROSION AT FIPE OR CHANNEL OUTFALL DISPLACED RIP-RAP
SHALL BE REPLACED, DEPTH SHALL BE 1,5 TIMES THE $TONE SIZE OR MIN OF 9", AMINIMUM LENGTH OF 8' IS REQUIRED. MIN
STONE SIZE: AASHTO R-3 RIP RAP (36" CLEAN STONE].

BASIN INSPECTION

UP GRADIENT CULVERTS, CATCH BASINS AND INLETS OF BASIN SHOULD BE INSPECTED AND CLEANED. VEGETATION ALONG
THE SURFACE OF THE BASIN SHOULD BE MAINTAINED [N GOOD CONDITION, AND ANY BARE SPOTS REVEGETATED AS SOON AS
POSSIELE. INSPECT FOR ACCUMULATION OF SEDIMENT, DAMAGE TO QUTLET CONTROL STRUCTURES, EROSIGN CONTROL
MEASURES. SIGNS OF WATER CONTAMINATION/SPILLS, AND SLOPE STABILITY IN THE BERMS AND PONDING OF WATER
GREATER THAN 72 HOURS SINCE THE LAST RUNOFF EVENT.

SILT FENCE INSPECTION

ALL SILT FENCE AND STAKES SHOULD BE REMOVED BY THE CONTRACTOR AFTER THE SITES HAS ACHIEVED STABILIZATION.
NC LONG TERM MAINTENANGE IS REQUIRED.

SEEDING INSPECTION

SITES SHOULD OBTAIN AND MAINTAIN AT LEAST 70% STABILIZATION. STONE IS CONSIDERED STABILIZED

COMPACTION VERIFICATION

CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE AN INDEPENDENT THIRD PARTY CERTIFIED INSPECTICN WHICH PROVIDES TEST RESULTS FOR
COMPACTION TEST OF SOILS IN PLACE TO ASTHM STANDARDS.

L8

Y GCITA

COMPOUND INSPECTION

THE COMPOUND SHALL HAVE A MAXIMUM GRADE OF 5% AND A MINIMUM OF % IN ANY DIRECTION. A 1 MINIMUM GRAVEL
APRON ARQUND THE COMPOUND WITH A DITCH INSTALLED PER THE PLANS SURROUNDING THE UP GRADIENT PERIMETER OF
THE COMPOUND. THE DITGH SHALL FREELY GRAVITY DRAIN TO AN APPROPRIATE LOCATION WITH NO IMPACT TO DOWN
GRADIENT FEATURES SUCH AS THE ACCESS ROAD OR OTHER STRUCTURES.

v GCITA "4 "4

s 2oty hal 103 segiesing Qoo s pregare By
me o ster s e perscnal supeestsic ane | am

Enpy
Protedorjpearame ScottWirgew |
License Number 23705
My icense rengwal dale is Deoember 31, 2023

Pages orsheets wierea b s seat ALL

SLOPE STABILITY INSPECTION

EROQSION CONTROL BLANKETS SHALL BE USED ON ALL SLOPES GREATER THAN 2H-1V OR STEEPER OR AS DIRECTED BY LOCAL
REGULATING AGENCIES, AND WHERE POTENTIAL EXISTS FOR SEDIMENT FOLLUTION TO RECEIVING SURFACE WATERS. SINCE
ROCK SLOPES POSE LITTLE, IF ANY. POTENTIAL FOR ERQSION, CUT SLOPES IN COMPETENT BEDROCK AND ROCK FILL SLOPES
DO NOT NEED TO BE BLANKETED.

POWER AND GROUNDING

POWER PANELS, DISCONNECTS. ATS, TROUGH, H-FRAVE, CONDUIT AND GROUNDING SYSTEMS ARE IN CONFORMANCE WITH
THE DESIGN DRAWINGS.

GC AS-BUILT DRAWINGS WiTH CONSTRUCTION RED:

INES

GC SHALL SUBMIT "AS-BUILT" DRAWINGS INDICATING ANY APPROVED CHANGES TO ENGINEERED PLANS TO 81 FOR
APPROVALREVIEW AND INCLUSION IN S| REPORT

taste

Digitally Signed: 2024-08-07

DATE DRAWN: | 03/25(24
ATC JOB NO 14188750

OPS JOB NO: | 14685635_D6

51 AS-BUILT DRAWINGS WITH INSPECTION RED-LINES (AS REQUIRED)

S1 SHALL SUBMIT "AS-BUILT" DRAWINGS INDICATING ANY APPROVED CHANGES TO ENGINEERED PLANS WITHIN S| REFORT

PHOTOGRAPHS

PHOTOGRAPHIC EVIDENCE OF SPECIAL INSPECTION, ON SITE REMEDIATION, AND [TEMS FAILING INSPECTION & REQUIRING
FOLLOW UP TO BE INCLUDED WITHIN THE S| REPORT. COMPLETE PHOTO LOG IS TO BE SUBMITTED WITHIN S| REPORT.

N GCrsl o

NOTE

1. SPECIAL INSPECTIGNS ARE INTENDED TO BE A COLLABORATIVE EFFORT BETWEEN GC AND St WHENEVER POSSIBLE GC S TO PROVIDE S WITH PHOTOGRAPHIC OR OTHER ACCEPTABLE EVIDENCE GF PROPER INSTALLATION IF PERIODIC INSPECTION FREQUENCY IS ACCEPTABLE. THE GC AND SI SHALL
WORK TO COMPILE EVIDENGE OF PROPER GONSTRUCTION AND LIMIT THE NUMBER OF SI SITE VISITS REQUIRED.
2.GC TO REFERENCE TOWER AND FOUNDATION DRAWINGS FOR SPECIAL INSPECTION REQUIREMENTS,

TABLE KEY:
81 - ATC APPROVED SPECIAL INSPECTOR
GG - GENERAL GONTRACTOR

CX - GONSTRUCTION
CM - CONSTRUCTION MANAGER

TA - 3RD PARTY TESTING AGENCY
ATC - AMERICAN TOWER CORPORATION

COMMENTS:

ATC LEGACY #: | 50182

SPECIAL INSPECTIONS
WORKSHEET

SHEET NUMBER: REVISION:

R-601 1

111

27



Mail Processing Center Aeronautical Study No.
Federal Aviation Administration 2024-ACE-1110-OE
Southwest Regional Office

Obstruction Evaluation Group

10101 Hillwood Parkway

Fort Worth, TX 76177

Issued Date: 04/12/2024

\J

Alyse Brussard

American Towers LLC - AB
10 Presidential Way
Woburn, MA 01801

** DETERMINATION OF NO HAZARD TO AIR NAVIGATION **

The Federal Aviation Administration has conducted an aeronautical study under the provisions of 49 U.S.C.,
Section 44718 and if applicable Title 14 of the Code of Federal Regulations, part 77, concerning:

Structure: Antenna Tower STRE;LO WOODBURY COUNTY - 108 (211984)
Location: Salix, TA

Latitude: 42-19-51.87N NAD 83

Longitude: 96-20-02.07W

Heights: 1083 feet site elevation (SE)

265 feet above ground level (AGL)
1348 feet above mean sea level (AMSL)

This aeronautical study revealed that the structure does not exceed obstruction standards and would not be a
hazard to air navigation provided the following condition(s), if any, is(are) met:

Emissions from this site must be in compliance with the parameters set by collaboration between the FAA and
telecommunications companies and reflected in the FAA 5G C band compatibility evaluation process (such as
power, frequencies, and tilt angle). Operational use of this frequency band is not objectionable provided the
Wireless Providers (WP) obtain and adhere to the parameters established by the FAA 5G C band compatibility
evaluation process. Failure to comply with this condition will void this determination of no hazard.

As a condition to this Determination, the structure is to be marked/lighted in accordance with FAA Advisory
circular 70/7460-1 M, Obstruction Marking and Lighting, a med-dual system-Chapters 4,8(M-Dual),&15.

Any failure or malfunction that lasts more than thirty (30) minutes and affects a top light or flashing obstruction
light, regardless of its position, should be reported immediately to (877) 487-6867 so a Notice to Air Missions

(NOTAM) can be issued. As soon as the normal operation is restored, notify the same number.

It is required that FAA Form 7460-2, Notice of Actual Construction or Alteration, be e-filed any time the
project is abandoned or:

At least 10 days prior to start of construction (7460-2, Part 1)
_X__ Within S days after the construction reaches its greatest height (7460-2, Part 2)

See attachment for additional condition(s) or information.

Page 1 of 6

28 112



This determination expires on 10/12/2025 unless:

(a) the construction is started (not necessarily completed) and FAA Form 7460-2, Notice of Actual
Construction or Alteration, is received by this office.

(b) extended, revised, or terminated by the issuing office.

(c) the construction is subject to the licensing authority of the Federal Communications Commission
(FCC) and an application for a construction permit has been filed, as required by the FCC, within
6 months of the date of this determination. In such case, the determination expires on the date
prescribed by the FCC for completion of construction, or the date the FCC denies the application.

NOTE: REQUEST FOR EXTENSION OF THE EFFECTIVE PERIOD OF THIS DETERMINATION MUST
BE E-FILED AT LEAST 15 DAYS PRIOR TO THE EXPIRATION DATE. AFTER RE-EVALUATION

OF CURRENT OPERATIONS IN THE AREA OF THE STRUCTURE TO DETERMINE THAT NO
SIGNIFICANT AERONAUTICAL CHANGES HAVE OCCURRED, YOUR DETERMINATION MAY BE
ELIGIBLE FOR ONE EXTENSION OF THE EFFECTIVE PERIOD.

This determination of No Hazard is granted provided the following conditional statement is included in the
proponent's construction permit or license to radiate:

Upon receipt of notification from the Federal Communications Commission that harmful interference is being
caused by the licencee's (permittee's) transmitter, the licensee (permittee) shall either immediately reduce the
power to the point of no interference, cease operation, or take such immediate corrective action as is necessary
to eliminate the harmful interference. This condition expires after 1 year of interference-free operation.

This determination is based, in part, on the foregoing description which includes specific coordinates, heights,
frequency(ies) and power. Any changes in coordinates, heights, and frequencies or use of greater power, except
those frequencies specified in the Colo Void Clause Coalition; Antenna System Co-Location; Voluntary Best
Practices, will void this determination. Any future construction or alteration, including increase to heights,
power, or the addition of other transmitters, requires separate notice to the FAA.This determination includes all
previously filed frequencies and power for this structure.

If construction or alteration is dismantled or destroyed, you must submit notice to the FAA within 5 days after
the construction or alteration is dismantled or destroyed.

This determination does include temporary construction equipment such as cranes, derricks, etc., which may be
used during actual construction of the structure. However, this equipment shall not exceed the overall heights as
indicated above. Equipment which has a height greater than the studied structure requires separate notice to the

FAA.

This determination concerns the effect of this structure on the safe and efficient use of navigable airspace
by aircraft and does not relieve the sponsor of compliance responsibilities relating to any law, ordinance, or

regulation of any Federal, State, or local government body.

A copy of this determination will be forwarded to the Federal Communications Commission (FCC) because the
structure is subject to their licensing authority.

If we can be of further assistance, please contact our office at (817) 222-5924, or Christopher.Grote@faa.gov.
On any future correspondence concerning this matter, please refer to Aeronautical Study Number 2024-
ACE-1110-OE.

Page 2 of 6

29 113



Signature Control No: 614201725-618841951
Christopher Grote
Technician

Attachment(s)
Additional Information
Frequency Data
Map(s)

cc: FCC

Page 3 of 6

30

(DNE)

114



Additional information for ASN 2024-ACE-1110-OE

BASIS FOR DECISION

Part 77 authorizes the FAA to evaluate a structure or object's potential electromagnetic effects on air navigation,
communication facilities, and other surveillance systems. It also authorizes study of impact on arrival,
departure, and en-route procedures for aircraft operating under visual or instrument flight rules, as well as the
impact on airport traffic capacity at existing public use airports. Broadcast in the 3.7 to 3.98 GHz frequency
(5G C band) currently causes errors in certain aircraft radio altimeters and the FAA has determined they cannot
be relied upon to perform their intended function when experiencing interference from wireless broadband
operations in the 5G C band. The FAA has adopted Airworthiness Directives for all transport and commuter

category aircraft equipped with radio altimeters that prohibit certain operations when in the presence of 5G C
band.

This determination of no hazard is based upon those mitigations implemented by the FAA and operators of
transport and commuter category aircraft, and helicopters operating in the vicinity of your proposed location.
It is also based on telecommunication industry and FAA collaboration on acceptable power levels and other
parameters as reflected in the FAA 5G C band evaluation process.

The FAA 5G C band compatibility evaluation is a data analytics system used by FAA to evaluate operational
hazards related to aircraft design. The FAA 5G C band compatibility evaluation process refers to the process
in which the telecommunication companies and the FAA have set parameters, such as power output, locations,
frequencies, and tilt angles for antenna that mitigate the hazard to aviation. As the telecommunication
companies and FAA refine the tools and methodology, the allowable frequencies and power levels may change
in the FAA 5G C band compatibility evaluation process. Therefore, your proposal will not have a substantial
adverse effect on the safe and efficient use of the navigable airspace by aircraft provided the equipment and

emissions are in compliance with the parameters established through the FAA 5G C band compatibility
evaluation process.

Any future changes that are not consistent with the parameters listed in the FAA 5G C band compatibility
evaluation process will void this determination of no hazard.

For 2496-2690 MHz: No Objection with provision that upon receipt of notification from the Federal Aviation
Administration (FAA) or Federal Communications Commission (FCC) that harmful interference is being
caused by the licensee's (permittee's) transmitter, the licensee (permittee) shall either immediately reduce the

power to the point of no interference, cease operation, or take immediate corrective action as is necessary to
eliminate the harmful interference.

Page 4 of 6

31 115



Frequency Data for ASN 2024-ACE-1110-OE

LOW HIGH FREQUENCY ERP
FREQUENCY FREQUENCY UNIT ERP UNIT
6 7 GHz 55 dBW
6 7 GHz 42 dBW
10 11.7 GHz 55 dBW
10 11.7 GHz 42 dBW
17.7 19.7 GHz 55 dBW
17.7 19.7 GHz 42 dBW
21.2 23.6 GHz 55 dBW
21.2 23.6 GHz 42 dBW
614 698 MHz 2000 "
614 698 MHz 1000 W
698 806 MHz 1000 W
806 824 MHz 500 W
806 901 MHz 500 W
824 849 MHz 500 W
851 866 MHz 500 Y
869 894 MHz 500 W
896 901 MHz 500 Y
901 902 MHz 7 W
929 932 MHz 3500 A
930 931 MHz 3500 W
931 932 MHz 3500 W
932 9325 MHz 17 dBW
935 940 MHz 1000 W
940 941 MHz 3500 W
1670 1675 MHz 500 W
1710 1755 MHz 500 A
1755 1780 MHz 3280 W
1850 1910 MHz 1640 W
1850 1990 MHz 1640 Y
1930 1990 MHz 1640 W
1990 2025 MHz 500 w
2110 2200 MHz 500 w
2305 2360 MHz 2000 w
2305 2310 MHz 2000 Y
2345 2360 MHz 2000 W
2496 2690 MHz 500 W
3450 3550 MHz 1640 w
3550 3700 MHz 47 dBm
3700 3980 MHz 1640 w
Page 5 of 6

32

116



Verified Map for ASN 2024-ACE-1110-OE

Page 6 of 6

33 117



« 05/28/2924 at 10:52:46

A1277938
FCC Form 854 Approved by OMD — 3060-0139
Main Form See instructions for public burden estimate

Application for Antenna Structure Registration

Purpose of Filing
1) Enter the application purpose: ( AM )

AM — Amendment of a Pending Application NE — Registration of a New Antenna Structure

AU — Administrative Update NT — Required Construction/Alteration Notification

CA - Cancellation of an Antenna Structure Registration OC - Ownership Change

DI - Notification of an Antenna Structure Dismantlement RE - Registration of a Replacement Antenna Structure

MD - Modification of a Antenna Structure Registration WD - Withdrawal of a Pending Application

2a) Ifthe answer to 1is AU, CA, DI, MD, NT, OC or RE, provide the FCC Antenna Structure FCC ASR Number:

Registration (ASR) Number.

2b) If the answer to 1 is AM or WD, provide the File Number of the pending application on file. File Number:
A1277938

2c) Ifthe answer to 1 is MD or NT, provide the date the Antenna Structure was constructed or the date it Date:

was last altered (mm/dd/yyyy).

2d) If the answer to 1 is DI, provide the date the Antenna Structure was dismantled (mm/ddlyyyy). Date:

Antenna Structure Ownership Information
3) Select one of the entity types:

( ) Individual ( ) Unincorporated Association ( ) Trust ( ) Government Entity

( ) Corporation (X ) Limited Liability Company ( ) General Partnership ( ) Limited Partnership

( ) Consortium ( ) Limited Liability Partnership ( ) Other:

4) FCC Registration Number (FRN): 5) Assignor FCC Registration Number (FRN):
0011498342

6) First Name (if individual): MI: Last Name: Suffix:

7) Legal Entity Name (if not an individual):
American Towers LLC

8) Attention To: 9) P.O. Box: And/Or
FAA-FCC Regulatory Team
10a) Street Address 1: 10b) Street Address 2:
10 Presidential Way
11) City: 12) State: 13) Zip Code:
Woburn MA 01801
14) Telephone Number (XXX-XXX-XXXX): 15) Fax Number: (XXX-XXX-XXXX):

(781) 926-4500
16) E-mail Address:
faa-fcc@americantower.com

FCC Form 854 - Page |
June 2021

34 118



.Contact Representative Information

17) First Name (if individual): MI: Last Name: Suffix:
18) Business Name:
American Towers LLC
19) Attention To: 20) P.O. Box And/Or
FAA-FCC Regulatory Team
21a) Street Address 1: 21b) Street Address 2:
10 Presidential Way
22) City: 23) State: 24) Zip Code:
Woburn MA 01801
25) Telephone Number (XXX-XXX-XXXX): 26) Fax Number: (XXX=-XXX-XXXX):
(781) 926-4500
27) E-mail Address:
faa-fcc@americantower.com
Antenna Structure Information
28a) Latitude (DD-MM-SS.S): 28b) North or South:
42-19-51.8 North
29a) Longitude (DDD-MM-SS.S): 29b) East or West:
096- 20- 02.1 West
30) Street Address or Geographic Location: 31) City:
260th Street (site # 211984) Salix
32) County: 33) State: 34) ZI‘? Code:
WOODBURY IoWA Hiha-ala?
35) Elevation of site above mean sea level (meters): 330.1 meters
36) Overall height above ground level (AGL) of the supporting structure without appurtenances: 76.2 meters
37) Overall height above ground level (AGL) of the antenna structure including all appurtenances: 80.8 meters
38) Overall height above mean sea level (add items 35 and 37 together): 410.9 meters
39a) Enter the type of structure on which the antenna will be mounted: (LTOWER )
B — Building NNLTANN - Lattice Tower Array
BANT — Building with Antenna on Top NNMTANN - Monopole Array
BMAST - Building with Mast PIPE - Any type of Pipe
BPIPE - Building with Pipe POLE - Any type of Pole
BPOLE - Building with Pole RIG - Oil or Other Type of Rig
BRIDG - Bridge SIGN - Any type of Sign or Billboard
BTWR - Building with Tower SILO - Any type of Silo
GTOWER - Guyed Structure Used For Communication Purposes STACK - Smoke Stack
LTOWER - Lattice Tower TANK — Any type of Tank (water, gas, etc.)
MAST — Mast TREE - When used as a support for an antenna
MTOWER - Monopole UPOLE - Utility Pole/Tower used to provide service
NNGTANN - Guyed Tower Array (electric, telephone, etc.)
39b) Number of Towers in Array: 39c) Position of this Tower in the Array:
40a) Array Center Latitude (DD-MM-SS.S): 40b) North or South
41a) Array Center Longitude (DDD-MM-SS.S): 41b) East or West:

FCC Form 854 - Page 2
June 2021

35 119



Proposed Marking and/or Lighting

42) Enter the proposed marking and/or lighting: ( 7 )
See Form 854 Item 42 Instructions for detailed tier and lighting information.

1) None 4) FAA Style B 7) FAA Style E
2) Paint Only 5) FAA Style D 8) FAA Style F
3) Other 6) FAA Style C 9) FAA Style A

10) FAA Style G

FAA Notification

43) FAA Study Number:

44) Date Issued:
2024-ACE-1110-OE

04/12/2024

Environmental Compliance

45) Does the applicant request a waiver of the Commission’s rules for environmental notice prior to
construction due to an emergency situation?

(No ) YesorNo

46a) If the answer to 45 is No, is another federal agency taking responsibility for environmental review of
the Antenna Structure?

( No ) YesorNo

46b) If the answer to 46a is Yes, indicate why:

1) The Antenna Structure is on Federal Land and the landholding agency is taking responsibility for the
environmental review of the Antenna Structure.

2) Another federal agency has agreed with the FCC in writing to take responsibility for the environmental
review of the Antenna Structure.

( ) 1or2

46c) If the answer to 46a is Yes, provide the n: ¢y taking responsibiiity for the
environmental review of the Antenna Structure.

47) If the answers to 45 and 46a are No, provide the National Notice Date for the application to be
posted on the FCC’s website (mm/dd/yyyy).

Date:
04/12/2024

48) Is the applicant submitting an environmental assessment?

( No ) YesorNo

49) Does the applicant certify that grant of Authorizations at this location would not have a significant
environmental effect pursuant to Section 1.1307 of the FCC’s rules?

(Yes ) Yes or No

50) If the answer to 49 is Yes, select the basis for this certification.

(3)123,4
1) The construction is exempt from environmental notification (other than due to another agency’s review)
and it does not fall within one of the categories in Section 1.1307(a) or (b) of the FCC's rules?
2) The construction is exempt from environmental notification due to another agency’s review, and the
other agency has issued a Finding of No Significant Impact.
3) The environmental notification has been completed, and the FCC has notified the applicant that an
Environmental Assessment is not required under Section 1.1307(c) or (d) of the FCC's rules, and the
Construction does not fall within one of the categories in Section 1.1307(a) or (b) of the FCC'’s rules.
4) The FCC has issued a Finding of No Significant Impact.
51) If the answer to 50 is 3 or 4, enter the date that Local Notice was provided (mm/dd/yyyy). Date:
04/11/2024

36

FCC Form 854 - Page 3

June 2021

120




Certification Statements

1 1) -The applicant certifies that all statements made in this application and in the exhibits, attachments, or documents incorporated by
reference are material, are part of this application, and are true, complete, correct, and made in good faith.

application" as used in this certification.

2) The applicant certifies that neither the applicant nor any other party to the application is subject to a denial of Federal benefits
pursuant to Section 5301 of the Anti-Drug Abuse Act of 1988, 21 U.S.C. § 862, because of a conviction for possession or
distribution of a controlled substance. See Section 1.2002(b) of the rules, 47 CFR § 1.2002(b), for the definition of "party to the

Signature (Typed or Printed Name of Party Authorized to Sign) (For OC Applications, to be completed by Assignee)

52) First Name: MI: Last Name: Suffix:
Alyse Brussard

53) Title:
Specialist

54) Signature: 55) Date:
Alyse Brussard May 28, 2024

Signature (Typed or Printed Name of Party Authorized to Sign) (For OC Applications, to be completed by Assignor)
56) First Name: MI: Last Name: Suffix:

57) Title:

58) Signature:

59) Date:

37

FCC Form 854 - Page 4
June 2021

121



NEPA Environmental
Site Assessment Report

STRELO WOODBURY COUNTY - 108
ATC Site # 211984
2593 Barker Avenue
Salix, TA 51052

Prepared for

American Towers LL.C
10 Presidential Way
Woburn, MA 01801

Prepared by

Trileaf
8600 LaSalle Road, Suite 301
Towson, MD 21286

Job Number: 739770
May 27, 2024

Powered By PARCEL

38 122



NEPA Report Table of Contents
STRELO WOODBURY COUNTY - 108

FL0 INErOAUCHION. .. ettt ea bbb sane s e s s aeesesae e ae s enesse s e e smeens st aneneneseessneeneennssanenennns 2
1.1 SCOPE OF SEIVICES. ...ttt ettt ettt et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e oo 2
1.2 Site Location/Project DESCIIPON. .......c.ciuiiiiieiiieietei ettt ettt ettt eeee e eeeeneae et eeeeenes 2

2.0 NEPA Summary.......cccccveerverrvnrseeesenssnnenas
2.1 Wilderness Area

2.4 Threatened and ENdangered SPECIES. .........ccciicriiriiiee ettt ee e eneeens 2
2.5 MIGPatOry BiFOS. .......c.cuiiiiiiiiiie ettt ettt ettt et et e s e et e e et et e et eeeeee et et eeenene s 3
2.6 Historical and CUltural CONCEINS. .........e ittt ettt s et et eee e eae et e e eeeen e 4
2.7 INdi@n REHGIOUS SIES........cciiiiriiieiii ettt ettt e et e e e et et et et et eeeeee et eeeeeeeeeeens 4

2.8 FIOOAPIGINS. ...ttt e e et e et e e et e e ee e e et et et e et e e et e e eee et e e eae et eeseeeesaneas
2.9 Significant Changes in Surface Features

2.10High Intensity White LIGhtS........c.couei ittt ettt en et et een e e eeeeeenenas
2.11Radio Frequency Radiation...............
3.0 Limitations......cccceeeereevercnrcirccenercnene
4.0 Cortification. .o cmumssnmnessmmnssssmsimssmm
L5 (o LR o1 = | O R 7
Appendix
T VIS iurimimssurmmsmasmassiuassasnsse snoness asasrssmsas smsamases sns aes astvawess s sonsnssss se mai s s s e B S R S ST 10
2. FEMA MAP . ciiiiiisiiisiaamennmssenssasssssssessamsassrassssatsasssssasasesissesiasssess osssressssssnsestasoss et sessesessssensesssssasansntessessss 23
T | S O 25
4. Wetlands Permitting.......c.ccooioiiiiiiii ettt e et e ettt eee et et et et et et et er et et et et eeneen 150
5.1 SHPO CONCUITENCE LEHET.......eeieieiiieiiieieeeeee ettt ettt et et e e et ee et e eeeeaeeeeens 185

5.2 SHPO Documentation
8. CLG AN ITC IEHEIS. ...ttt s e et e e e et e e et e e s e e et ereereeeeensereesreennesesersens
7. PUBLC NOICE. ...ttt

8. Native American Tribes
9. DAt@D@SE REPOIL...... oottt ettt et e e et e et et e et et et e e e e e e e ean et e e e s e s eeeeranen
10, BIDHOGIAPRY ...ttt ettt e e ettt ettt ettt ettt en et e e eeeeeaaaen
11. Other

Trileaf

39 123



American Tower Co:;poration FCC NEPA CHECKLIST
(47 CFR Subpart 1, Chapter 1, Sections 1.1301-1.1319)

Site Name:  STRELO WOODBURY COUNTY - 108Site Number: 211984
Site Address: 2593 Barker Avenue

Category | Special Interest Item Potential Effect
Yes No N/A
1 Is the antenna structure located in an officially designated wilderness area? X
4 Will the antenna structure likely affect threatened or endangered species or designated critical habitats? (Ref. 50 X
CFR Part 402)
5 Will the antenna structure likely impact migratory birds? (Ref. Draft Programmatic Environmental Assessment of X
the Antenna Structure Registration Program 08/26/11)
6 Wiii the antenna structure affect districts, sites, buildings, structures, or objects significant in American history, X
architecture, archeology, engineering, or culture that are listed, or potentially eligible for listing in the National
Register of Historic Places (NRHP)? (Ref. 36CFR Part 800 regulations implementing Section 106 of the National
Historic Preservation Act)
7 Will the antenna structure affect Indian religious site(s)? X
8 Will the antenna structure be located in a flood plain? (Ref. Executive Order 11988 and 40 CFR Part 6, Appendix X
A)
9 Will construction of the antenna structure involve significant change in surface features (e.g. wetlands, X
deforestation, or water diversion)? (Ref. Executive Order 11990 and 40 CFR Part 6, Appendix A)
10 Is the antenna structure located in a residential neighborhood and required to be equipped with high intensity X
white lights?
11 Will the antenna structure equal or exceed total power (of all channels) of 2000 Watts ERP (3280 Watts EIRP) X
and have antenna located less than 10 meters above ground level?
12 Will the roof-top antenna project equal or exceed total power (of all channels)? X
If any of the above responses is 'yes', an Environmental Assessment must be prepared and filed with FCC Form 854. Construction can not start until
the FCC issues a ‘Finding of No Significant Impact' (FONSI)
Preparer's Signature: j Date: May 27, 2024
Printed Name and Title: John Lawhon, Assistant Project Manager
Company Name: Trileaf

40

124



NEPA Assessment
STRELO WOODBURY COUNTY - 108

1.0
1.1

1.2

2.0

21

2.2

2.3

24

Introduction
Scope of Services

The purpose of a NEPA Land Use Screening is to comply with the National Environmental Policy Act of
1969 (NEPA). Trileaf performs extensive research and review to provide our clients with a full NEPA
document. The following is a summary of the scope of work Trileaf performs to complete a NEPA/Section
106 Review.

Site Location/Project Description

American Towers, LLC proposes to construct a 250-foot (260-foot overall) self-support telecommunications
tower and associated equipment compound within a 75-foot by 75-foot (5,625-square-foot) lease area. In
addition, a 30-foot-wide access/utility easement is proposed to extend approximately 217.5 feet south
towards 260th Street. Additionally, a 30-foot buffer surrounding the proposed expansion area and the
perimeter of the fenced compound will be evaluated. The site is currently agricultural land.

The address listed in this report and throughout the attachments is the best approximation of this project's
address at the time environmental services were ordered. It should be noted that the address may change
once the E-911 address is established by the local municipality. Despite any change in address, the site has
not changed position and the correct site location was reviewed in this report.

NEPA Summary

There are no noted concerns for this project. The following sections describe the results of the research for
each of the NEPA requirements.

Wilderness Area

Is the antenna structure located in an officially designated wilderness area? No

Wildlife Preserves

Is the antenna structure or facility located in an officially designated wildlife preserve? No
National and Scenic Historic Trails

Is the proposed facility located within one mile of a National Scenic Trail? No

Trileaf Corporation reviewed the topographic map as well as the National Trails System map provided by the
National Park Service to determine the proximity of the project location to a National Scenic Trail. Trileaf
determined that the proposed tower is not located within one mile of a National Scenic Trail.

Threatened and Endangered Species

Will the antenna structure or facility likely affect threatened or endangered species or designated critical
habitats? No

Trileaf reviewed topographic maps for designated wildermness or wildlife areas at or near the project location.
On March 5, 2024, a staff scientist took photographs and performed a visual survey of the property during a
site visit. Trileaf reviewed both state and federally listed threatened or endangered species. The state list is
broken down by county. Currently, the proposed lease area and surrounding 30-foot buffer area consists of
an area Lhat is existing agricultural land. The access easement is currently a agricultural land. The Project
site is not located within an aquatic or riparian habitat, and the lease area is an existing heavily disturbed
agricultural area, therefore any obligate aquatic, riparian, or plant species should not be impacted by this
proposed project.

Trileaf

Page 2

41 125



NEPA Assessment
STRELO WOODBURY COUNTY - 108

2.5

The 260-foot self-support tower will be built within a 75-foot by 75-foot lease area and will include a
proposed 30-foot-wide, 217.5-foot-long access easement and utility easement (collectively known as the
project area). Upon our site investigation, it was determined that the project area is not located in a
waterway, wildlife refuge, national wilderness area, native grassland or forest area, ridge-line, mountain top,
coastline or area commonly known to have high incidences of fog or low clouds, where migratory birds may
be found. In addition, the nearest NWI mapped wetland is located at the terminus of the proposed
access/utility easement and the nearest body of water is greater than 1/4 mile away from the project site.
Therefore, based upon these findings, the probability that migratory birds will be found within the project
area is minimal; however, the presence of migratory birds cannot be ruled out.

Per the interim guidelines of the FCC Programmatic Environmental Assessment of the Antenna Structure
Registration Program (FCC PEA), implemented on June 18, 2012, towers over 450 feet in height require
additional environmental review for potential migratory bird concerns. This tower will be 260 feet, which is
below the FCC PEA height threshold. The area surrounding the project location is currently agricultural
development. If the tower is required to be lit, to the extent FAA regulations allow, American Tower will use
the most preferred lighting system possible outlined in the FCC PEA. Furthermore, this tower will be
constructed to accept future collocations, thus reducing the need to build additional towers within the
immediate project area, and will not be constructed with guy wires. The findings in the above paragraphs
suggest that measures for minimizing impacts to migratory birds have been incorporated into this proposed
undertaking.

The findings in the above paragraphs suggest that measures for minimizing impacts to migratory birds have
been incorporated into this proposed undertaking. Based on the current data made available, and the interim
FCC PEA, we have concluded that there is minimal potential for the proposed project to have a significant
effect on migratory bird species, and that this project adheres to the guidelines set forth in the United States
Fish & Wildlife Service's "Service Interim Guidelines For Recommendations On Communications Tower
Siting, Construction, Operation, and Decommissioning."

FEDERAL

Trileaf reviewed a list of federally-listed species provided by the USFWS — lllinois & lowa Ecological
Services Field Office. After a review of the information, none of the listed species above were observed on
the site or within 30 feet surrounding the proposed lease area or easements. In addition, no mapped critical
habitat was identified. Therefore, it is expected that there will be no effect to listed species or their habitat.

STATE

Trileaf reviewed a list of state-listed species through the lowa Department of Natural Resources (IDNR).
After a review of the information, none of the listed species above were observed on the site or within 30 feet
surrounding the proposed lease area or easements. In addition, no mapped critical habitat was identified.
Therefore, it is expected that there will be no effect to listed species or their habitat.

On April 10, 2024, Trileaf reviewed the Section 7 Consultation guidance set forth by the USFWS — lllinois &
lowa Ecological Services Field Office. According to guidance obtained on April 10, 2024, "consultation with
the Service is not mandatory if an action agency determines that an action will have no effect on species."
Agency concurrence with a no effect determination is not required under the Endangered Species Act and
will not be provided by the lllinois & lowa Ecological Services Field Office. Therefore, as Trileaf determined
the project would have no effect on listed or proposed threatened or endangered species or critical habitats,
no further consultation with the USFWS was required.

On April 10, 2024, Trileaf initiated consultation with the IDNR regarding the proposed project. On May 13,
2024, the IDNR responded that "No land or water under the jurisdiction of the State of lowa is involved in the
project area; therefore, a Sovereign Lands Construction Permit pursuant to Chapter 461A of the lowa Code
will not be required for this project. If the construction plans change, the Department should be contacted for
another review".

Migratory Birds

This 260-foot self-support tower will be built within a 75-foot by 75-foot lease area and will include a
proposed 30-foot-wide, 217.5-foot-long access easement and utility easement (collectively known as the
project area). Upon our site investigation, it was determined that the project area is not located in a
waterway, wildlife refuge, national wilderness area, native grassland or forest area, ridge-line, mountain top,
coastline or area commonly known to have high incidences of fog or low clouds, where migratory birds may

Trileaf

Page 3

42 126



NEPA Assessment
STRELO WOODBURY COUNTY - 108

2.6

2.7

be found. In addition, the nearest NWI mapped wetland is located at the terminus of the proposed
access/utility easement and the nearest body of water is greater than 1/4 mile away from the project site.
Therefore, based upon these findings, the probability that migratory birds will be found within the project
area is minimal; however, the presence of migratory birds cannot be ruled out.

Per the interim guidelines of the FCC Programmatic Environmental Assessment of the Antenna Structure
Registration Program (FCC PEA), implemented on June 18, 2012, towers over 450 feet in height require
additional environmental review for potential migratory bird concerns. This tower will be 260 feet, which is
below the FCC PEA height threshold. The area surrounding the project location is currently agricultural
development. If the tower is required to be lit, to the extent FAA regulations allow, American Tower will use
the most preferred lighting system possible outlined in the FCC PEA. Furthermore, this tower will be
constructed to accept future collocations, thus reducing the need to build additional towers within the
immediate project area, and will not be constructed with guy wires. The findings in the above paragraphs
suggest that measures for minimizing impacts to migratory birds have been incorporated into this proposed
undertaking.

Based on the efforts undertaken during this IBA, as well as the project specifications, the current data made
available, and the interim FCC PEA, we have concluded that there is minimal potential for the proposed
project to have a significant effect on migratory bird species, and that this project adheres to the guidelines
set forth in the United States Fish & Wildlife Service's "Service Interim Guidelines For Recommendations On
Communications Tower Siting, Construction, Operation, and Decommissioning."

Historical and Cultural Concerns

Will the antenna structure or facility affect districts, sites, buildings, structures, or objects significant in
American history, architecture, archeology, engineering, or culture that are listed, or potentially eligible for
iisting in the Nationai Register of Historic Piaces (NRHP)? No

Trileaf performed a NEPA Review in accordance with the Nationwide Programmatic Agreement for Review
of Effects on historic Properties for Certain Undertakings Approved by the Federal Communications
Commission dated September 2004. Our investigation includes determining if the site is contained in, on, or
within the viewshed of a building, site, district, structure, or object, significant in American history,
architecture, archaeology, engineering, or culture, that is listed, or eligible for listing on the State or National
Registers of Historic Places, or located in or on an Indian Religious Site.

A Cultural Resource Evaluation was conducted by Abraham Ledezma of In Situ Archaeological Consulting,
LLC. The records and literature search determined that there are two (2) listed or eligible National Register
of Historic Places (NRHP) identified within the Direct Area of Potential Effects (APE) or within the Visual
APE. No archaeological sites or other cultural resources were identified within the direct APE or near the
subject property. On April 3, 2024, Trileaf submitted the Form 620, with a "No Effect" finding, to the lowa
SHPO. The State Historic Preservation concurred on April 29, 2024, that there will be no historic properties
affected.

Trileaf submitted information with regards to this project to the Woodbury County Community & Economic
Development and the Rural Woodbury County Historical Society on March 12, 2024. No responses have
been received in regards to this project as of the date of this report. Further, public involvement was solicited
through the Sioux City Journal, in which a public notice was published on March 28th and April 4th, 2024. No
comments were received from the public to Trileaf's knowledge as of the date of this report.

Indian Religious Sites

Will the antenna structure or facility affect Indian religious site(s)? No

Trileaf referred to the Section 106 review to determine if the property is located in or on a Native American
Religious Site. Also, in compliance with the Federal Communications Commission (FCC) regulations, Trileaf
contacted all federally recognized Native American Tribes as specified by Section IV.G of the Nationwide
Programmatic Agreement (NPA). On February 26, 2024, Trileaf submitted project information through the
Tower Construction Notification System (TCNS) to the FCC who initiated contact with the tribes on March 1,
2024. As of May 31, 2024, all tribes have confirmed clearance either directly or by default via the FCC
referral process. Trileaf determined that the subject Property is not located on or near a Native American
Religious or Sacred Site.

Trileaf

Page 4

43 127



NEPA Assessment
STRELO WOODBURY COUNTY - 108

2.8

2.9

Floodplains

Will the antenna structure or facility be located in a floodplain? No

Trileaf reviewed the USGS topographic map and the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA)
Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) Panel No. 19193C0400D, dated September 29, 2011, to determine if the
project was located within the 100-year flood plain. The Property is mapped in Zone X, a zone known to be
outside the 100- and 500-year floodplain. Based on this review, Trileaf determined that the property is not in
a 100-year floodplain.

Significant Changes in Surface Features

Will construction of the antenna structure or facility involve significant change in surface features (e.g.
wetlands, deforestation, or surface water diversion)? No

Trileaf performed a field visit and identified all surface water bodies in the action area. Using local maps in
combination with an area reconnaissance, Trileaf determined that there were no bodies of water found within
the action area. Based on examination of the topographic map, groundwater flow in the area is generally
south. The closest body of water is Browns Lake located approximately 2,200 feet south from the proposed
tower location.

According to the U.S. Soil Conservation Service Soil Survey of Woodbury County, lowa, the Property is
underlain by Salix silt loam, Albaton silty clay, and Onawa-Albaton complex with 0 to 2 percent slopes, rarely
flooded.

Salix soils consist of moderately well drained soils that are formed from alluvium and are found in
floodplains. A typical profile of a Salix soil consists of a surface layer of silty clay loam extending from 0 to 7
inches, two distinct layers of silty clay loam extending from 7 to 15 inches and 15 to 25 inches, and followed
by two distinct layers of silty loam extending from 25 to 40 inches and 40 to 60 inches. The depth to the most
restrictive feature is more than 80 inches. The depth to water table is about 48 to 72 inches. Salix soils do
not typically flood or pond.

Albaton soils consist of poorly drained soils that are formed from calcareous clayey alluvium and are found
in floodplains. A typical profile of an Albaton soil consists of a surface layer of silty clay extending from 0 to 7
inches followed by a subsurface layer of silty clay extending from 7 to 60 inches. The depth to the most
restrictive feature is more than 80 inches. The depth to water table is about 0 to 12 inches. Albaton soils
rarely flood and have no frequency of ponding.

Onawa rarely flooded soils consist of somewhat poorly drained soils that are formed from clayey alluvium
over silty alluvium and are found in floodplains. A typical profile of an Onawa rarely flooded soils consists of
a surface layer of silty clay extending from 0 to 9 inches followed by a subsurface layer of silty clay
extending from 9 to 36 inches, and silt loam extending from 36 to 80 inches. The depth to the most
restrictive feature is more than 80 inches. The depth to water table is about 12 to 42 inches. Onawa soils
rarely flood and have no frequency of ponding.

Salix silt loam and Onawa-Albaton complex with 0 to 2 percent slopes, rarely flooded are not considered
hydric soils, however, Albaton silty clay with 0 to 2 percent slopes, rarely flooded is considered a hydric soil.

Trileaf has reviewed the USGS topographic map, soil composition and survey drawings, as well as the
National Wetlands Inventory (NWI) Map to determine if the proposed lease area and easements, and the
area encompassing an additional 30 foot surrounding this site would have an impact on any wetlands or
required significant amounts of fill or grading. On May 7, 2024, AquAeTer, Inc. performed a wetland
delineation of the project site. It was determined that the proposed lease area compound is not located
within a recognized national wetland area. However, a recognized national wetland area was identified south
of the proposed compound south of the proposed lease area, located at the terminus of the proposed
access/utility easement. AquAeTer, Inc. determined that less than 0.1 acres of this recognized national
wetland area is to be impacted by the proposed site development. Additionally, the United States Army Corp
of Engineers (USACE) has confirmed the boundaries of this wetland and that the impacted wetland area is
less than 0.1 acres. Since the impacted wetland area has been confirmed by the USACE to be less than 0.1
acres, Trileaf has determined that the proposed project development will not have a significant impact on
wetlands or other surface features.

Trileaf

Page 5

44 128



NEPA Assessment
STRELO WOODBURY COUNTY - 108

2.10  High Intensity White Lights

Is the antenna structure or facility located in a residential neighborhood and required to be equipped with
high intensity white lights? No

High intensity white lights are required by FAA for aviation avoidance marking on towers over 499 feet above
ground surface. Towers less than 499 feet are not equipped with high intensity white lights.

2.11  Radio Frequency Radiation

Will the antenna structure equal or exceed total power (of all channels) of 2000 Watts ERP (3280 Watts
EIRP) and have antenna located less than 10 meters above ground level? N/A

This category applies to FCC licensees and not antenna structure owners. Antenna structures (towers) do

not emit radio frequency radiation. FCC licensees transmitting from antennas mounted on American
Tower-owned antenna structures are required to comply with radio frequency exposure standards.

3.0 Limitations
Trileaf noted no limiting conditions with this assessment.

4.0 Certification

Avenue, Salix, lowa 51052, by Trileaf Corporation.

Report Writer Senior Reviewer
) W
i
John Lawhon John Hosek
Assistant Project Manager Project Manager
Trileaf Page 6

45 129



46

130



47

131



48

132



49

133



WOODBURY COUNTY

Floodplain Development Permit Application

TOWA

Date:.ggtggtgggq .

TO THE ADMINISTRATOR: The undersigned hereby makes application for a Permit to develop in a flood plain. The work to
be performed, including flood protection works, is as described below and in attachments hereto. The undersigned agrees
that all such work shall be done in accordance with the requirements of the Woodbury County Flood Plain Management
Ordinance and with all other applicable county ordinances and the laws and regulations of the State of lowa.

Andrew Bobrytzke American Tower LLC
(Owner or Agent) (Builder)
49030 Pontiac Trail, Ste 100 Wixom, Ml 48393 10 Presidential Way, Woburn, MN 01801
(Address) 507-327-2361 (Address)
Telephone # Telephone #
1. Location: Y% % , Section , Township 20_87‘47
Stvest Addess: TBD 260th Street, Salix, IA .
o5 4 874720400004 GL L
- S QERL
Communications Tower VO
2. Type of Development:
Filling Grading, Excavation Routine Maintenance
Minor Improvement Substantial Improvement New Construction

3. Descrioti . Build new communications tower w access driveway
. Description of Development:

75 75 5625 250,000.00

4. Premises: Size of site: ft. x ft. Area of Site: sq. ft. Estimated cost:

- Communications Tower
Principal Use:

Aegesaary Eles [k, yaikog, St Base Station equipment in fences tower compound

5. Addition or modification to non-conforming use? Yes No Assessed value of structure $

6. Is property located in a designated Floodway (FW District)? Yes No X

IF ANSWERED YES, CERTIFICATION MUST BE PROVIDED PRIOR TO THE ISSUANCE OF A PERMIT TO DEVELOP, THAT THE
PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT WILL RESULT IN NO INCREASE IN THE 100 YEAR (BASE) FLOOD ELEVATION.

7. Property located in a designated Floodway District (FW), Floodway Fringe (FF) General Flood Plain District (FP),
Shallow Flooding District (SF), or Dam Failure Inundation District (DI)?

Yes No X If so, indicate which one:

a. Elevation of the 100 year (Base) flood (identify source if other than FIRM):

b. Elevation of the proposed development site (natural ground): MSL/NGVD
Required elevation/flood-proofing level for lowest floor: MSL/NGVD

50 134



51

135



LEGAL NOTIFICATION

BOA_Tower_Turbine_10-7-24 - Page 1 of 1

52 136



PROPERTY OWNER(S) NOTIFICATION

Property Owners within 500 Feet:

I

Notification Letter Date:

September 18, 2024

Public Hearing Board:

Board of Adjustment

Public Hearing Date:

October 7, 2024, 6:00 PM

Phone Inquiries:

2 (Anthony Ashley, Jeanette M. Kummer)

Written Inquiries:

0

The names of the property owners are listed below.

When more comments are received after the printing of this packet, they will be provided at the meeting.

PROPERTY OWNER(S) MAILING ADDRESS COMMENTS

Kathy J. Tabke Revocable Trust & | 3112 195th Street Moville IA 51039-8120 No comments received.

Lane D. Tabke Revocable Trust

L & K Tabke Holdings LLC 3112 195th St. Moville IA 51039-8120 No comments received.

Delbert D. Spink Revocable Trust 16796 Birchview Road Park Rapids MN | 56470 No comments received.

2B, LLC C/O Greg Brandt 839 Meadow Dr. Moville IA 51039 No comments received.

Jeanette M. Kummer 1977 Jasper Ave. Moville 1A 51039-8191 Phone inquiry: asked about location of the turbines relative to her
propriety and height. Had no objections (9/24/24).

Todd Tabke 34679 C70 Kingsley IA 51028 No comments received.

Anthony Ashley 3346 170th St. Correctionville | 1A 51016 Phone Inquiry: question about the CUP process for private
turbine. (9/16/24).

PROPERTY OWNER(S) NOTIFICATION

Abstractor’s Listing:

Total Property Owners within one (1) mile via Certified

35 Deed Holders/Owners of 180 Properties

Notification Letter Date:

September 18, 2024

Public Hearing Board:

Board of Adjustment

Public Hearing Date:

October 7, 2024

Phone Inquiries:

0

Written Inquiries:

0

The names of the property owners are listed below.

When more comments are received after the printing of this packet, they will be provided at the meeting.

PROPERTY OWNER(S) MAILING ADDRESS COMMENTS

SENT TO “CURRENT PROPERTY OWNERS” OR TO THE FOLLOWING: No comments received.

Fred L. & Margaret A. 2403 Barker Ave. Sergeant 1A 51054-8037 | No comments received.

Godfredson Revocable Trust Bluff

George & Jodi Nelson 2514 Buchanan Ave. | Salix IA | 51052 No comments received.

CF Industries Nitrogen, LLC 4 Parkway North Deerfield IL | 60015 No comments received.

Suite 400

Lindgren-Baker Farm LC PO Box 6 Algona IA | 50511 No comments received.

Three Bee's LC 2201 East 4th St. Sioux City IA | 51101 No comments received.

MidAmerican Energy Co. PO Box 657 Des Moines IA 50303-0657 | No comments received.

Larry Eisenhauser Trust 1801 Glen Ellen Rd. | Sioux City 1A 51106 No comments received.

Barbara D. Wiggs 409 Beall St. PO Box | Sloan IA | 51055 No comments received.

121

Barbara D. Wiggs PO Box 121 Sloan IA | 51055 No comments received.

C&NWRR Co 400 W Madison St. Chicago IL 60606 No comments received.

Chicago Northwestern RR Co | 400 W Madison St. Chicago IL | 60606 No comments received.

Michael Lee & Vicki Jo Smith | 2575 Barker Ave. Sergeant IA | 51054-8084 | No comments received.

Christine & Matthew Cappetta Bluff

Bradley J. Kobold Trust 211 7th St. Sergeant 1A 51054 No comments received.
Bluff

United States of America Real | 106 S. 15th St. Omaha NE | 68102-1618 | No comments received.

Estate Division Omaha District

53

137




Irwin A. Grau Revocable Trust, | 433 E Maple Lawton 1A 51030 No comments received.

Wilma C. Grau Revocable

Trust

A & A Cattle Company Inc PO Box 767 Sergeant IA | 51054-0767 | No comments received.

Bluff

Richard John Glen Patterson 2708 Benton Ave. Salix IA~ | 51052-8039 | No comments received.

Dennis Brouillette 605 Aspen St. Salix IA~ | 51052-8060 | No comments received.

Randall T. Beck Revocable 201 1st St. Sergeant 1A 51054 No comments received.

Trust Bluff

Randall T. Beck Revocable PO Box 845 Sergeant IA 51054-0845 | No comments received.

Trust Bluff

Richard J. G. Patterson PO Box 108 Salix IA" | 51052-0108 | No comments received.

Dennis Brouillette & Andrew J. | 101 Liberty LN Salix IA | 51052-8060 | No comments received.

& Katherine L. Brouillette

Andrew J. & Katherine L. 101 Liberty LN Salix IA | 51052-8060 | No comments received.

Brouillette

PNW, LLC c/o Daniel G. Lee 2568 Barnett Ave. Salix IA 51052 No comments received.

Barbara Oeherking Revocable | Box 168 Sergeant IA | 51054 No comments received.

Trust Bluff

Carlye Erika Diana Patterson | PO Box 108 Salix IA | 51052 No comments received.

Michael L. Patterson 1866 Highway 141, Sloan IA | 51055-0044 | No comments received.
Box 44

Michael L. Patterson Box 44 Sloan IA | 51055-0044 | No comments received.

Michael T. & Patricia J. Ping 2550 Benton Ave. Salix IA | 51052-8037 | No comments received.

Daniel G. & Barbara J. Lee 1405 260th St. Salix IA | 51052 No comments received.

Daniel Gordon Lee 1405 260th St. Salix IA | 51052 No comments received.

William J. Smith 5309 Hwy 75 North Sioux City IA | 51108 No comments received.
Lot 44

State of lowa Property 800 Lincoln Way Ames IA | 50010 No comments received.

Management Section

Nora Reynolds Lerer 415 Sherman St. Healdsburg CA | 95448 No comments received.

D & H Himmel Farms LLC & 4110 Floyd Blvd Sioux City IA | 51108 No comments received.

ML Kimmel Farms LLC:

Kriener Farm Management

ATTN: Dan Kriener

lowa State Conservation 800 Lincoln Way Ames IA | 50010 No comments received.

Northern Natural Gas PO Box 3330 Omaha NE | 68103-0330 | Nocomments received.

Kimmel Family Farms, LLC & | 111 Doral Lane Dakota SD | 57049 No comments received.

Kent W. Ivener Living Trust Dunes

Mark W. Maupin c/o Bob Cook | 705 Winfield Cir Sergeant IA | 51054 No comments received.

Bluff

Union Pacific Railroad 1400 Douglas Stop Omaha NE | 68179-1640 | No comments received.

1640

STAKEHOLDER COMMENTS

911 COMMUNICATIONS CENTER:

No comments received.

FIBERCOMM:

No comments received.

IOWA DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES (IDNR):

No comments received.

IOWA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION (IDOT):

No comments received.

LOESS HILLS NATIONAL SCENIC BYWAY:

No comments received.

LOESS HILLS PROGRAM: No comments received.
LONGLINES: No comments received.
LUMEN: No comments received.
MAGELLAN PIPELINE: No sir. No issues from us here. We don't have any assets on that property. A mile or so east and

west we do, but not there. Thank you for following up. — Bryan Ferguson, 9/18/24.

MIDAMERICAN ENERGY COMPANY (Electrical Division):

| have reviewed the attached rezoning application for MEC electric and we have, No conflicts. —
Casey Meinen, 9/4/24.

MIDAMERICAN ENERGY COMPANY (Gas Division):

No comments received.

NATURAL RESOURCES CONSERVATION SERVICES (NRCS):

No comments received.

NORTHERN NATURAL GAS:

No comments received.

NORTHWEST IOWA POWER COOPERATIVE (NIPCO):

Have reviewed this zoning request. NIPCO has no issues with this request. — Jeff Zettel, 9/10/24

NUSTAR PIPELINE:

No comments received.

SIOUXLAND DISTRICT HEALTH DEPARTMENT:

No comments received.

WIATEL:

No comments received.

WINNEBAGO TRIBE:

No comments received.

WOODBURY COUNTY ASSESSOR:

No comments received.

54 138




WOODBURY COUNTY CONSERVATION: None at this time. — Daniel Heissel, 9/3/24

WOODBURY COUNTY EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT: No comments received.
WOODBURY COUNTY EMERGENCY SERVICES: No comments received.
WOODBURY COUNTY ENGINEER: | have reviewed the site and have an approved driveway permit for access to the new tower. The fall

zone for the tower lies outside of the right of way. | have no concerns with the proposed land use at
this location. — Mark Nahra, 9/11/24

WOODBURY COUNTY RECORDER: No comments. Thank you. — Diane Swoboda Peterson, 9/3/24

WOODBURY COUNTY RURAL ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE (REC): No comments received.

WOODBURY COUNTY SOIL AND WATER CONSERVATION The WCSWCD has no comments regarding this project. — Neil Stockfleth, 9/5/24
DISTRICT:

WOODBURY COUNTY TREASURER: No comments received.

PICTOMETRY

55 139



PARCEL REPORT(S

56 140



57 141



58

142



SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREA (SFHA) MAP

59 143



ELEVATION MAP

SOIL REPORT(S

60 144



SOIL MAP(S

61 145



WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS AGENDA ITEM(S) REQUEST FORM

Date: 8/16/2024 Weekly Agenda Date: 8/27/2024

ELECTED OFFICIAL / DEPARTMENT HEAD / CITIZEN:  Supervisors J. Taylor/M. Nelson

WORDING FOR AGENDA ITEM:

Direction for Planning and Zoning Director to Work with Planning and Zoning, the Board of Adjustment
Commission, and Legal Counsel in Order to Make a Recommendation Contemplating
Decommissioning Requirements as a Part of a New Ordinance Regarding Carbon Pipelines

ACTION REQUIRED:

Approve Ordinance I:l Approve Resolution D Approve Motion

Public Hearing |:| Other: Informational I:l Attachments |:|

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:

When something as powerful as eminent domain is used and emplacement of a new carbon pipeline is completed, a key question
must be asked: after these new technologies have reaped the benefit of federal tax credits and the subsidiary energy used, what is
to become of the land? This something that we have engaged in dozens of times regarding the alternative energies of wind and
solar. Woodbury County adopted at our urging an energy resolution and has urged officials to look at new technologies that do not
degrade farmland for future generations, respect private property rights, and leave the land in the spirit of stewardship better than
we found out.

If the Summit plan to expand carbon pipeline through 300 miles that were abandoned by Navigator's C02 pipeline maintains IUB
commission approval by approvals in South and North Dakota and survives any lawsuit (if parties so file), then it is incumbent upon
us to ask a key question: what decommissioning will be required to leave the land as outside companies found it?

While publicly elected officials to include seven other lowa counties have appropriately focused mainly on setback distances and
the use of eminent domain, this approach has an integral and reasonable, "If...then..." measure to protect our land for future
generations.

BACKGROUND:

Decommissioning refers to the process of taking a line out of service safely and permanently. We are currently exploring changes to
decommissioning with wind energy. Why? Because federal policy can dramatically change the viability of alternative energies. We
realize the "shelf life" of such technologies may vacillate with financial viability. Afterwards with solar, wind, and carbon pipeline,
there is a dramatic effect on the land with in the amount of concrete, pipe, metal over thousands of acres of land. Lest 100 years
from now lowa becomes a spotted terrain of a patchwork not just of corn and soybeans but of once lucrative abandoned energy
projects, we must demand a fair process to restore the land to how it was found, a key principle of who we are as a people.

Decommissioning can include leaving piping in place or removal, disconnecting the line from systems and segmenting where
necessary, cleaning the line, addressing stability and soil/slope disturbance, contracting or obligating the monitoring responsibility of
the decommissioned line. A key consideration in the decommissioning process is to minimize disturbance to farmlands, roadways,
wetlands, green spaces, livestock operations, and residences. This would also entail the responsibility for looking after the line by
maintaining protection from corrosion, right of way monitoring and maintenance, signage and contact info, maintaining profile and
survey information for "call before dig" areas. In some cases a bond or other financial obligation is required as part of a
decommissioning process.

The hoped for agenda item asks the Planning and Zoning Director to work collaboratively with P&Z, the BoA, our county attorney's
office, and even outside legal counsel that we have already engaged in order to make sure that this process is well-detailed, legal,
reasonable, and fair.

While setbacks for safety and eminent domain for private property rights have understandably and in many ways (rightly) dominated
the debate, we want to move the discussion to a process wherein we are asked as a county, "If we are to build pipeline through
hundreds of miles of farmland, near neighborhoods, under right of way and roads, what do you all require us to do in order to make
things right for future generations?" Should a carbon pipeline be implemented, our answer to that will not only be to the major
corporations who seek to use the land but will be realized by our children and lowans for generations to come.

146




FINANCIAL IMPACT:

IF THERE IS A CONTRACT INVOLVED IN THE AGENDA ITEM, HAS THE CONTRACT BEEN SUBMITTED AT LEAST ONE WEEK
PRIOR AND ANSWERED WITH A REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY’S OFFICE?

Yes [O No O

RECOMMENDATION:

Direction for Planning and Zoning Director to Work with Planning and Zoning, the Board of Adjustment
Commission, and Legal Counsel in Order to Make a Recommendation Contemplating Decommissioning
Requirements as a Part of a New Ordinance Regarding Carbon Pipelines

ACTION REQUIRED / PROPOSED MOTION:

Direction for Planning and Zoning Director to Work with Planning and Zoning, the Board of Adjustment
Commission, and Legal Counsel in Order to Make a Recommendation Contemplating Decommissioning
Requirements as a Part of a New Ordinance Regarding Carbon Pipelines

Approved by Board of Supervisors April 5, 2016.
147




FINANCIAL IMPACT:

0]

148




DISCUSSION AND PLANNING PROCESS FOR NUCLEAR ENERGY TO BE CONSIDERED FOR
ADDITION TO WOODBURY COUNTY ZONING ORDINANCE (INFORMATION / DISCUSSION
ITEM) SUMMARY: The Woodbury County Board of Supervisors at their meeting on July 2, 2024 voted to direct the
Zoning Commission to begin the process of exploring nuclear energy as a potential energy option in Woodbury County.
This information item is for a discussion on how to proceed with future work sessions and public hearings.

Initial Information about Nuclear
The following is provided for initial informational purposes. The goal is to examine both standard nuclear power plants and small
modular reactors as potential energy opportunities in the unincorporated areas in Woodbury County.

Nuclear Power Plant —
- Anuclear power plant is a thermal power station that harnesses energy from nuclear fuel fission. Here’s how it works: the
heat released during fission boils water, producing steam. This steam drives a turbine connected to a generator, ultimately
producing electricity.

Small Modular Reactors (SMR) —
- Type of advanced nuclear reactor designed to be smaller in size and capacity compared to traditional nuclear reactors.
- Characteristics:
o Small Size. SMRs have a power capacity of up to 30 MW per unit, which is about one-third of the capacity of
conventional nuclear reactors.
o Modular Construction. These reactors are designed to be factory-assembled and transported to the site for
installation.
o Flexibility. SMRs can be deployed in single or multiple modules, making them suitable for a variety of application,
including industrial use and remote areas with limited grid capacity.
o Safety. Many SMR designs incorporate passive safety features, which rely on natural physical processes rather than
active controls to ensure safety.

Articles Links:
- Nuclear Power Plan Licensing Process
o  https://www.nrc.gov/reading-rm/doc-collections/fact-sheets/licensing-process-fs.html
- Office of Nuclear Material Safety and Safeguards
o  https://scp.nrc.gov/
- Governing Legislation
o  www.nrc.gov/about-nrc/governing-laws.html
- Fact Sheet: Biden-Harris Administration Announces New Steps to Bolster Domestic Nuclear Industry and Advance America’s Clean
Energy Future
o  https://www.whitehouse.gov/briefing-room/statements-releases/2024/05/29/fact-sheet-biden-harris-administration-announces-

new-steps-to-bolster-domestic-nuclear-industry-and-advance-americas-clean-energy-future/

- Without a plant currently operating in lowa, does nuclear energy have a future in the state?
o https://www.weareiowa.com/article/tech/science/climate-change/nuclear-energy-in-iowa-future-developments-midamerican/524-
aaed2ac4-7c3b-406a-a84b-c6e356bl181ee
- Newly Signed Bill Will Boost Nuclear Reactor Deployment in the United States
o  https:// www.energy.gov/ne/articles/newly-signed-bill-will-boost-nuclear-reactor-deployment-united-
states#:~:text=President%20Biden%20signed%20the%20Fire.t%20seen%20since%20the%201970s.
- What is a Nuclear Microreactor?
o  https://www.energy.gov/ne/articles/what-nuclear-microreactor
- Micro-reactor Pilot Program
o  https://www.eielson.af.mil/microreactor/
- Project PELE Mobile Nuclear Reactor
o https://www.cto.mil/pele_eis/
- NRC Dockets Construction Permit Application for TerraPower’s Natrium Reactor
o  https://www.energy.gov/ne/articles/nrc-dockets-construction-permit-application-terrapowers-natrium-reactor
- What is High-Assay Low-Enriched Uranium (HALEU)?
o  https://www.energy.gov/ne/articles/what-high-assay-low-enriched-uranium-haleu
- 4 Crucial Steps the Biden-Harris Administration is Taking to Secure a Nuclear Fuel Supply Chain
o  https://www.energy.gov/ne/articles/4-crucial-steps-biden-harris-administration-taking-secure-nuclear-fuel-supply-chain
- New DOE and NRC Agreement Will Lead to Faster Deployment and Licensing of U.S. Nuclear Technologies
o  https://www.energy.gov/ne/articles/new-doe-and-nrc-agreement-will-lead-faster-deployment-and-licensing-us-nuclear
- What are Small Modular Reactors (SMRs)?
o  https://www.iaea.org/newscenter/news/what-are-small-modular-reactors-smrs
- Small modular reactors
o  https://www.iaea.org/topics/small-modular-reactors

149



Nuclear Energy Discussion

Nuclear energy power plants including their establishment is primarily governed by the United
States Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC). The NRC has a significant amount of control
over the permitting and operation of such plants. Companies who wish to get involved in
nuclear must directly work with the NRC through the process of obtaining an “Early site permit
(ESP).” An example of this process can be found at the following NRC website:
https://www.nrc.gov/reactors/new-reactors/large-lwr/esp/north-anna.html

This website illustrates the process for the North Anna Site that was submitted by Dominion
Nuclear North Anna, LLC. It includes application information, a review schedule, a safety
evaluation report, a final environmental impact statement, the North Anna Early Site Permit, and
contacts. There is also a “combined license process” which includes construction and operation
approvals. The applicants must provide detailed plans for the plant’s design, construction, and
operation as well as safety measures. It is the duty of the NRC to thoroughly review the
submissions. The following website includes a list of combined license applications for new
reactors: https://www.nrc.gov/reactors/new-reactors/large-lwr/col.html

An example of a combined license can be found at this link for the North Anna, Unit 3 site:
https://www.nrc.gov/reactors/new-reactors/large-Iwr/col/north-anna.html. The application
materials include: referenced documents; application information; review schedule; safety
evaluations; early site permit; final supplemental environmental impact statement; combined
licenses; related application information; and contacts. In the combined license process, the
application is reviewed and includes a public participation process, safety and environmental
reviews and compliance with the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA). The NRC also is
involved in design certification, construction and operation, and post-license oversight.

It appears at this time that the permitting process for nuclear power plants including modular is a
multi-governmental complex process largely governed by the NRC. The lowa legislature
appears to have considered two study bills (House Study Bill 555 and Senate Study Bill 3075)
which would designate modular nuclear as an alternative energy production facility in lowa. For
more information, there is a January 25, 2024 article written by Wally Taylor entitled “Iowa
Utilities bill includes a good idea — and a lost cause”
https://www.bleedingheartland.com/2024/01/25/iowa-utilities-board-bill-includes-a-good-idea-
and-a-lost-cause/

Role of the County

Presently, under Section 3.03.3 of the Zoning Ordinance, nuclear energy generation could be
administratively interpreted as a utility use that is eligible for conditional use permit
consideration by the Zoning Commission and Board of Adjustment in the General Industrial (GI)
Zoning District. However, as the same section reads “the table in subsection 3.03.4 may be
updated pursuant to the procedure outlined in Section 2.03 from time to time to reflect legislative
acceptance or rejection of the interpretations of the zoning director.” (p. 31).

150



As nuclear and modular nuclear technological systems are evolving, Woodbury County is in a
position to legislatively address the county’s nuclear policy for clarification. At this time, in
terms of county zoning the question is, do the citizens of Woodbury County view nuclear as a
viable alternative energy option for the future? If so, are there areas within the county that would
be most appropriate for nuclear power generation? Depending on the input from the public
stakeholders and the industry, the Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance could potentially be
updated to clearly clarify the permitting of future nuclear projects.

Based on the regulations as presented by the NRC and the State of lowa including the Iowa
Utilities Board, the county could choose to add “Nuclear Energy Generation” as a land use in
Section 3.03.4 (Land Use Summary Table of Allowed Uses...) under the “Utilities” category as
either a “Conditional Use” or a “Principal Allowed Use” in the General Industrial (GI) Zoning
District in the Woodbury County Zoning Ordinance. Regardless of either a conditional use or a
principal allowed use, the applicants must go through a rigorous permitting process through other
levels of government.

It is apparent that nuclear energy is significant, complex, and consequential. As directed by the
Board of Supervisors, the work of the Zoning Commission is to examine nuclear energy as an
option for zoning. Hence, a Zoning Commission public hearing process can be employed to seek
public comments and consider potential recommendations including possibly legislatively
adding “nuclear energy generation” formally as an option to the Zoning Ordinance’s land use
summary table.

Stakeholder Comments:

On July 26, 2024, a letter was sent to over 120 Woodbury County stakeholders ranging from
state, city, county and township officials, utilities, and other stakeholder organizations. They
were requested to offer their initial thoughts about nuclear energy. As of August 22, 2024, a total
of five (5) comments have been received for the record. The letter is available on the subsequent
page followed by the comments.

151



152



153



From: Wendi Hess

Sent: Wednesday, August 7, 2024 9:22 AM

To: Daniel Priestley

Subject: RE: Comments Requested Nuclear Energy in Woodbury County, lowa
Follow Up Flag: Follow up

Flag Status: Flagged

Dan: in regards to the 911 Dispatch Center- having this type of facility in our response area would potentially create a need for
additional training for our staff members along with participating in regular exercises and training related to potential
emergencies at the facility. For us that would become a budgetary item needing to add training funds to our annual budget for
overtime, etc related to the additional training activity that would be necessary. |am not sure if there are any specific
certifications that would be required by our staff.

Thanks,
Wendi

Wendi Hess

Communications Center Director/Accreditation Manager
Woodbury County Communications

PO Box 447

Sioux City, IA 51102

Office: 712-279-6268

whess@sioux-city.org

154



155



From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

Bob Scott
Monday, July 29, 2024 9:44 AM
Daniel Priestley

RE: Comments Requested Nuclear Energy in Woodbury County, lowa

I am all four a nuke plant in the area south of town. | am also for wind energy and solar farms. The construction of a nuclear
plant would be a boon to our local economy. Nuclear plants are so highly regulated that we should not have to do much locally.

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

Follow Up Flag:

Flag Status:

Dan,

Mark Nahra

Friday, July 26, 2024 4:11 PM

Daniel Priestley

RE: Comments Requested Nuclear Energy in Woodbury County, lowa

Follow up
Flagged

156



157



ORDINANCE NO.

WOODBURY COUNTY, IOWA

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE TEXT OF THE WOODBURY COUNTY ZONING

ORDINANCE TO INCLUDE THE USE OF NUCLEAR ENERGY FACILITIES AS AN ENERGY OPTION
IN WOODBURY COUNTY AND TO ALLOW FOR THE ESTABLISHMENT OF SUCH FACILITIES IN
INDUSTRIAL ZONING AREAS AND TO AMEND PORTIONS OF: THE TABLE OF CONTENTS; TO
ADD ANEW SECTION ENTITLED SECTION 5.09: NUCLEAR ENERGY FACILITIES CONDITIONAL
USE; AND TO INCLUDE THE RENUMBERING OF PAGE NUMBERS.

WHEREAS, WOODBURY COUNTY IS COMMITTED TO SUPPORTING SUSTAINABLE AND
RELIABLE ENERGY SOLUTIONS THAT ENSURE LONG-TERM ENVIRONMENTAL AND ECONOMIC
BENEFITS FOR ITS RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES; AND

WHEREAS, NUCLEAR ENERGY IS RECOGNIZED AS A EFFECTIVE METHOD OF PRODUCING
BASELOAD ENERGY THAT IS CARBON-FREE AND CAPABLE OF MEETING THE GROWING
DEMAND FOR CLEAN ENERGY IN BOTH RESIDENTIAL AND INDUSTRIAL SECTORS; AND

WHEREAS, ADVANCEMENTS IN NUCLEAR TECHNOLOGY, INCLUDING SMALL MODULAR
REACTORS (SMRS) AND OTHER INNOVATIVE DESIGNS, PROVIDE A SAFER, MORE EFFICIENT,
AND MORE FLEXIBLE OPTION FOR ENERGY GENERATION COMPARED TO TRADITIONAL
NUCLEAR PLANTS, MAKING THEM A VIABLE ADDITION TO THE COUNTY'S ENERGY PORTFOLIO;
AND

WHEREAS, THE COUNTY ACKNOWLEDGES THE POTENTIAL FOR ECONOMIC GROWTH
THROUGH THE DEVELOPMENT OF NUCLEAR ENERGY FACILITIES, INCLUDING JOB CREATION,
INCREASED INVESTMENT IN LOCAL INFRASTRUCTURE, AND A BROADENED TAX BASE; AND

WHEREAS, WOODBURY COUNTY SEEKS TO DIVERSIFY ITS ENERGY RESOURCES TO
PROMOTE RESILIENCE, ENERGY INDEPENDENCE, AND STABILITY IN ENERGY PRICING FOR ITS
RESIDENTS AND INDUSTRIES; AND

WHEREAS, THE SITING OF NUCLEAR ENERGY FACILITIES IN GENERAL INDUSTRIAL ZONING
AREAS WILL ALLOW FOR BETTER LAND USE PLANNING BY UTILIZING SPACES ALREADY
DESIGNATED FOR LARGE-SCALE INDUSTRIAL OPERATIONS, MINIMIZING POTENTIAL
CONFLICTS WITH RESIDENTIAL OR AGRICULTURAL AREAS, AND ENSURING THE AVAILABILITY
OF APPROPRIATE INFRASTRUCTURE TO SUPPORT SUCH FACILITIES; AND

WHEREAS, THE COUNTY IS COMMITTED TO ENSURING THAT ANY NUCLEAR ENERGY
FACILITIES COMPLY WITH FEDERAL AND STATE SAFETY STANDARDS, AS WELL AS LOCAL
REGULATIONS, TO PROTECT THE HEALTH, SAFETY, AND WELFARE OF THE PUBLIC AND THE
ENVIRONMENT; AND

WHEREAS, THE PASSAGE OF THIS ORDINANCE WILL PROVIDE THE FRAMEWORK FOR THE
REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF CONDITIONAL USE PERMITS FOR NUCLEAR ENERGY FACILITIES
WITHIN INDUSTRIAL ZONES, ENSURING THAT EACH PROJECT IS CONSIDERED ON A CASE-BY-
CASE BASIS WITH INPUT FROM THE COMMUNITY, REGULATORY BODIES, AND EXPERTS;

158



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS:

SUPPORT FOR NUCLEAR ENERGY: WOODBURY COUNTY AFFIRMS ITS SUPPORT FOR THE
DEVELOPMENT OF NUCLEAR ENERGY FACILITIES AS PART OF ITS LONG-TERM ENERGY
STRATEGY TO MEET CLEAN ENERGY GOALS AND FOSTER ECONOMIC GROWTH.

DESIGNATION OF GENERAL AND LIMITED INDUSTRIAL ZONES: THE COUNTY APPROVES THE
AMENDMENT TO ITS ZONING ORDINANCE TO ALLOW NUCLEAR ENERGY FACILITIES AS A
CONDITIONAL USE IN GENERAL AND LIMITED INDUSTRIAL ZONES, ENSURING THAT SUCH
FACILITIES ARE APPROPRIATELY LOCATED WITHIN AREAS DESIGNED FOR INDUSTRIAL
ACTIVITIES.

CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT PROCESS: THE COUNTY WILL ESTABLISH A TRANSPARENT AND
RIGOROUS PROCESS FOR THE EVALUATION OF CONDITIONAL USE PERMITS FOR NUCLEAR
ENERGY FACILITIES, WHICH WILL INCLUDE ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENTS, SAFETY
REVIEWS, AND PUBLIC HEARINGS TO ADDRESS ANY CONCERNS.

COMMITMENT TO SAFETY AND COMPLIANCE: THE COUNTY WILL ENSURE THAT ALL NUCLEAR
ENERGY FACILITIES COMPLY WITH APPLICABLE FEDERAL, STATE, AND LOCAL REGULATIONS,
PARTICULARLY REGARDING SAFETY, ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION, AND EMERGENCY
PREPAREDNESS.

PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT AND EDUCATION: THE COUNTY WILL WORK TO INFORM AND ENGAGE
THE PUBLIC ON THE BENEFITS AND SAFETY MEASURES ASSOCIATED WITH NUCLEAR
ENERGY, PROVIDING OPPORTUNITIES FOR COMMUNITY INPUT THROUGHOUT THE PROCESS.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF WOODBURY
COUNTY, IOWA THAT THE BELOW ZONING ORDINANCE LANGUAGE AMENDMENTS BE MADE:

Amendment #1:

On page 39: To add the following line-item use language within zoning ordinance Section 3.03.4 Land
Use Summary Table of Allowed Uses in each Zoning District under the “Utilities” category:

“Nuclear Energy Facilities”. With placement of the letter “C” within the (Limited Industrial), and Gl
(General Industrial) zoning districts columns on the table related to this line-item use.

On page 104: To add the following definition, “Nuclear Facility” as definition 112 to Article 6. Definitions.
Section 6.02: Definitions as “112. Nuclear Energy Facility” includes any facility designed for the
generation of electricity or power through nuclear fission or fusion, as well as any associated storage or
handling of nuclear materials and waste in compliance with federal and state regulatory requirements.”

Amendment #2:

In the Table of Contents, on page iii: To add “Section 5.09: Nuclear Energy Facilities Conditional Use”
under the Article 5, Supplemental Requirements category ...... (PAGE NUMBER).

Amendment #3:

Beginning on page 92, to re-designate or re-number the definitions in Article 6. Definitions. Section 6.02;
Definitions 112 through 191. The purpose is to add “Nuclear Energy Facilities” as definition 112 thereby
pushing the existing definitions 112 through 191 ahead one position with Article 6. Definitions. Section
6.02 now including definitions 1 through 192.

Beginning on page 82, to amend Article 6. Definitions by moving the start page from page to page

159



Amendment #4:

Beginning on Page 97, to add the following section to be known as “Section 5.09: Nuclear Energy
Facilities Conditional Use.”

Section 5.09: Nuclear Energy Facilities Conditional Use

1. Purpose. This section is established to regulate the siting, development, and operation of
nuclear energy facilities, including but not limited to nuclear power plants and small modular
reactors (SMRs), within Woodbury County. The intent is to ensure public health, safety,
environmental protection, and compliance with federal and state regulations, while facilitating
orderly land use and development.

2. Definition. For the purposes of this ordinance, a “Nuclear Energy Facility” includes any facility
designed for the generation of electricity or power through nuclear fission or fusion, as well as any
associated storage or handling of nuclear materials and waste in compliance with federal and
state regulatory requirements.

3. General Requirements for Conditional Use Permit (CUP) Approval

A. Compliance with Federal and State Regulations
(1) All nuclear energy facilities must comply with regulations set forth by the
Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC), the Environmental Protection Agency
(EPA), and the lowa Department of Natural Resources (IDNR), including but
not limited to licensing, environmental impact assessments, waste
management, and operational safety.

(2) Applicants must provide evidence of approval or pending approval from the
NRC, including required licensing documentation for the proposed facility.

B. Environmental Impact
(1) Applicants shall conduct a comprehensive Environmental Impact Statement
(EIS) in accordance with the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) and
state-level environmental regulations, demonstrating minimal adverse effects
on air and water quality, soil, wildlife habitats, and surrounding land uses.

(2) The applicant must submit a mitigation plan outlining how environmental
impacts will be managed and minimized, including measures for water usage,
waste containment, and radiation control.

C. Safety, Security, and Emergency Response
(1) A detailed Emergency Response Plan must be submitted, reviewed, and
approved by Woodbury County’s Emergency Management Department in
coordination with state and federal authorities. This plan must address potential
radiation leaks, natural disasters, fire, and other hazards.

(2) The facility shall include 24/7 security, perimeter fencing, surveillance systems,
and controlled access points as required by NRC guidelines for nuclear
facilities.

(3) The facility operator must provide ongoing safety training for county emergency
services personnel and coordinate regular emergency response drills.

D. Nuclear Waste Storage and Transportation

160



(1) The storage and transportation of nuclear materials and waste must be in full
compliance with federal standards outlined by the NRC and Department of
Transportation (DOT), including regulations regarding the safe handling,
containment, and transportation of radioactive materials.

(2) A long-term waste management plan shall be submitted as part of the CUP
application, detailing storage solutions, transportation routes, and potential
impacts on local infrastructure and communities.

E. Decommissioning Plan
(1) A detailed decommissioning plan must be submitted, outlining procedures for
safely shutting down the facility at the end of its operational life. The plan shall
include financial assurance mechanisms (such as bonds or escrow accounts)
to ensure the proper removal of radioactive materials and the restoration of the
site to its original condition.

4. Conditions for Approval
A. The County may impose additional conditions, restrictions, or safeguards to ensure

compatibility with surrounding land uses and protect the health, safety, and welfare of the
public.

B. Approval of the CUP may be conditioned upon periodic review by the County to verify
ongoing compliance with applicable regulations and conditions of the permit.

5. Revocation of Permit
A. The conditional use permit may be revoked by the County if the facility is found to be in
violation of any applicable federal, state, or local regulation, or if any conditions of
approval are not met. The County reserves the right to impose corrective actions or
suspend operations as necessary to protect public welfare.

THE WOODBURY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

Matthew Ung, Chairman

Daniel Bittinger Il, Vice-Chairman

Mark Nelson
Attest:

Keith Radig
Patrick Gill, Woodbury County Auditor Jeremy Taylor

Adoption Timeline:

Date of Public Hearing and First Reading
Date of Public Hearing and Second Reading
Date of Public Hearing and Third Reading
Date of Adoption

Published/Effective Date

161





